
CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
Helene Schneider 
Mayor 

 
James L. Armstrong 

City Administrator 
 Cathy Murillo 

Mayor Pro Tempore 
Randy Rowse 
Ordinance Committee Chair 

Ariel Pierre Calonne 
City Attorney 

Dale Francisco 
Finance Committee Chair 

 

Gregg Hart 
Frank Hotchkiss  
Bendy White 

City Hall 
735 Anacapa Street 

http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov 
 

JULY 15, 2014 
AGENDA 

 
ORDER OF BUSINESS:  Regular meetings of the Finance Committee and the Ordinance Committee begin at 12:30 p.m.  
The regular City Council meeting begins at 2:00 p.m. in the Council Chamber at City Hall.   
 
REPORTS:  Copies of the reports relating to agenda items are available for review in the City Clerk's Office, at the Central 
Library, and http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov.  In accordance with state law requirements, this agenda generally contains 
only a brief general description of each item of business to be transacted or discussed at the meeting.  Should you wish 
more detailed information regarding any particular agenda item, you are encouraged to obtain a copy of the Council 
Agenda Report (a "CAR") for that item from either the Clerk's Office, the Reference Desk at the City's Main Library, or 
online at the City's website (http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov).  Materials related to an item on this agenda submitted to 
the City Council after distribution of the agenda packet are available for public inspection in the City Clerk’s Office located 
at City Hall, 735 Anacapa Street, Santa Barbara, CA 93101, during normal business hours. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:  At the beginning of the 2:00 p.m. session of each regular City Council meeting, and at the 
beginning of each special City Council meeting, any member of the public may address the City Council concerning any 
item not on the Council's agenda.  Any person wishing to make such address should first complete and deliver a “Request 
to Speak” form prior to the time that public comment is taken up by the City Council.  Should City Council business 
continue into the evening session of a regular City Council meeting at 6:00 p.m., the City Council will allow any member of 
the public who did not address them during the 2:00 p.m. session to do so.  The total amount of time for public comments 
will be 15 minutes, and no individual speaker may speak for more than 1 minute.  The City Council, upon majority vote, 
may decline to hear a speaker on the grounds that the subject matter is beyond their jurisdiction. 
 
REQUEST TO SPEAK:  A member of the public may address the Finance or Ordinance Committee or City Council 
regarding any scheduled agenda item.  Any person wishing to make such address should first complete and deliver a 
“Request to Speak” form prior to the time that the item is taken up by the Finance or Ordinance Committee or City 
Council. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR:  The Consent Calendar is comprised of items that will not usually require discussion by the City 
Council.  A Consent Calendar item is open for discussion by the City Council upon request of a Councilmember, City staff, 
or member of the public.  Items on the Consent Calendar may be approved by a single motion.  Should you wish to 
comment on an item listed on the Consent Agenda, after turning in your “Request to Speak” form, you should come 
forward to speak at the time the Council considers the Consent Calendar. 
 
AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special 
assistance to gain access to, comment at, or participate in this meeting, please contact the City Administrator's Office at 
564-5305 or inquire at the City Clerk's Office on the day of the meeting.  If possible, notification at least 48 hours prior to 
the meeting will enable the City to make reasonable arrangements in most cases. 
 
TELEVISION COVERAGE:  Each regular City Council meeting is broadcast live in English and Spanish on City TV 
Channel 18 and rebroadcast in English on Wednesdays and Thursdays at 7:00 p.m. and Saturdays at 9:00 a.m., and in 
Spanish on Sundays at 4:00 p.m.  Each televised Council meeting is closed captioned for the hearing impaired.  Check 
the City TV program guide at www.citytv18.com for rebroadcasts of Finance and Ordinance Committee meetings, and for 
any changes to the replay schedule. 

http://www.ci.santa-barbara.ca.us/
http://www.santabarbaraca.gov/


 

7/15/2014 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 1 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING – 2:00 P.M. 
 
AFTERNOON SES SION  

 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
 
CHANGES TO THE AGENDA 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 

1. Subject:  Adoption Of Ordinance For Lease Agreement With Goleta 
Building Materials, Inc. (330.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Approving and Authorizing the Airport 
Director to Execute a 10-Year Lease Agreement With One 5-Year Option, With 
Goleta Building Materials, Inc., a California Corporation, Effective August 14, 
2014, For a Monthly Rental of $10,698, exclusive of utilities. 
  

2. Subject:  Introduction Of Ordinance For 2014-2017 Fire Association 
Memorandum Of Understanding (440.02) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Ratify the Memorandum of Understanding between the City and the Santa 

Barbara City Firefighters' Association for the period of July 1, 2014, to 
December 31, 2017, through introduction and subsequent adoption of, by 
reading of title only, An Ordinance of the Council of the City of Santa 
Barbara Adopting the 2014-2017 Memorandum of Understanding 
Between the City of Santa Barbara and the Santa Barbara City 
Firefighters' Association;  

B. Adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of 
Santa Barbara For Paying and Reporting the Value of Employer-Paid 
Member Contributions for Firefighters' Association Employees Effective 
January 10, 2015; and 

C. Adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of 
Santa Barbara For Paying and Reporting the Value of Employer-Paid 
Member Contributions for Firefighters' Association Employees Effective 
January 9, 2016. 



 

7/15/2014 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 2 

CONSENT CALENDAR (CONT’D) 
 
3. Subject:  Grant Application For The Environmental Enhancement And 

Mitigation Program For The Arroyo Burro Restoration At Barger Canyon 
(540.14) 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Authorizing the Parks and Recreation 
Director, or Designee, to Submit a Grant Application for Grant Funds from the 
Environmental Enhancement and Mitigation Program for the Arroyo Burro 
Restoration at Barger Canyon. 
 
 

4. Subject:  Resolutions Authorizing Execution Of Two Grant Agreements 
With The State of California For Storm Water Infiltration Projects And 
Acceptance Of Grant Funds Totaling $3,458,640 (540.10) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of 

Santa Barbara Authorizing the Parks and Recreation Director, or 
Designee, to Negotiate and Execute an Agreement, and Any Amendments 
Thereto, with the State of California for the City of Santa Barbara Low 
Impact Development - Streets, Sidewalks, and Alleys Project; 

B. Accept a Proposition 84 Storm Water Grant for an amount not to exceed 
$2,307,010 for the Low Impact Development - Streets, Sidewalks, and 
Alleys Project; 

C. Authorize the increase of estimated revenues and appropriations in the 
Fiscal Year 2015 Creeks Capital Fund by $2,307,010, for the Low Impact 
Development - Streets, Sidewalks, and Alleys Project funded from the 
grant; 

D. Adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of 
Santa Barbara Authorizing the Public Works Director, or Designee, to 
Negotiate and Execute an Agreement, and Any Amendments Thereto, 
with the State of California for the Laguna Lot Infiltration Paver Project; 

E. Accept a Proposition 84 Storm Water Grant for an amount not to exceed 
$1,151,630 for the Laguna Lot Infiltration Paver Project; and 

F. Authorize the increase of estimated revenues and appropriations in the 
Fiscal Year 2015 Facilities Fund by $1,151,630 for the Laguna Lot 
Infiltration Paver Project. 

 
 

5. Subject:  Corrected City Fee Resolution (230.05) 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Correcting the Establishment of Certain 
City Fees and Rescinding a Portion of Resolution No. 14-045. 
  



 

7/15/2014 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 3 

CONSENT CALENDAR (CONT’D) 
 
6. Subject:  Tecolotito Creek Berm And Verhelle Bridge Year 8; Basin E/F 

Tidal Restoration Year 4 And Monitoring Contract (560.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council approve and authorize the Airport Director to 
execute a contract with URS Corporation for post-construction biological 
monitoring for the Basin E/F Tidal Restoration Project, in an amount not to 
exceed $64,177, and authorize the Airport Director to approve expenditures up to 
$6,417 for extra services that may result from necessary changes in the scope of 
work. 
  

7. Subject:  Acceptance Of Federal Aviation Administration Airport 
Improvement Program Grant Offer For Santa Barbara Airport (560.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council accept and authorize the Airport Director to 
execute, on behalf of the City, a Federal Aviation Administration Grant offer, No. 
3-06-0235-47, in an amount not to exceed $2,700,000 in Airport Improvement 
Program (AIP) funds, for the rehabilitation of Runway 15L-33R and General 
Aviation Aprons, the purchase of four lighted "X" runway closure signals, and a 
Wildlife Hazard Assessment and Wildlife Hazard Management Plan update. 
  

8. Subject:  Maintenance Agreement With Accela, Inc., For Land Development 
Permit Tracking System (610.01) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Approve and authorize the General Services Manager to issue a purchase 

order for $55,221 with Accela, Inc., as the only known source for 
maintenance services for the City's Tidemark Advantage permit tracking 
software; and  

B. Authorize the renewal of the maintenance purchase order on an annual 
basis for up to five years, subject to annual budget approval. 

 
 

9. Subject:  Increase In Design Support Services For The Alameda Park Well 
Relocation Project (540.10) 

Recommendation:  That Council authorize an increase in the extra services 
amount with Pueblo Water Resources for professional hydrogeologic and 
engineering services for the Alameda Park Well Relocation Project, Contract No. 
24,839, in the amount of $21,632, for a total project expenditure authority of 
$186,083. 
  



 

7/15/2014 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 4 

CONSENT CALENDAR (CONT’D) 

10. Subject:  Service Agreement With "Thresholds To Recovery" For Operation 
Of The Sobering Center At The Faulding Hotel (520.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council approve and authorize the Chief of Police to 
negotiate and execute a three-year service agreement with Thresholds to 
Recovery, Inc., to operate the Sobering Center beginning July 1, 2014, and 
ending June 30, 2017, with annual fees not to exceed $206,652 in Fiscal Year 
2015, $208,716 in Fiscal Year 2016, and $215,496 in Fiscal Year 2017. 
  

11. Subject:  Appropriation Of Funds From The K9 Unit Trust (520.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council appropriate $45,000 from the Police K9 Unit 
Trust Fund reserves to cover Fiscal Year 2015 expenses related to the annual 
care, maintenance and training of police dogs for the K9 Program. 
  

12. Subject:  Rental Agreement For Hilda Ray House (330.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council authorize the Parks and Recreation Director to 
enter into a one-year rental agreement with Tatum Marie Sarinana for the Hilda 
Ray House at Hilda McIntyre Ray Park, commencing July 1, 2014, and ending 
June 30, 2015, for a monthly amount of $1,294. 
  

13. Subject:  Professional Services Agreement - Consulting Services For 
Accounting Software Implementation (210.01) 

Recommendation:  That Council authorize the Finance Director to execute a two-
year professional services agreement with Lance, Soll & Lunghard, LLP, Certified 
Public Accountants, to perform consulting services for assistance with 
implementing the CaseWare Working Papers accounting software, in a total two-
year amount not to exceed $38,865. 
  

14. Subject:  Grant Agreement With South Coast Community Media Access 
Center (230.02) 

Recommendation:  That Council authorize the Finance Director to execute a 
grant agreement, in a form acceptable to the City Attorney, with the South Coast 
Community Media Access Center for management of the public and educational 
access television channels, in an amount of $295,000, plus an amount for public, 
educational and government access (PEG) capital expenditures equal to 50% of 
the actual PEG fees received by the City for Fiscal Year 2015, in an amount not 
to exceed $150,208. 
  



 

7/15/2014 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 5 

CONSENT CALENDAR (CONT’D) 

15. Subject:  Community Promotion Contract With Visit Santa Barbara (230.02) 

Recommendation:  That Council authorize the City Administrator to execute an 
annual community promotion contract with Visit Santa Barbara to provide 
marketing services that promote Santa Barbara as a tourism destination, in an 
amount of $1,380,000. 
  

16. Subject:  Community Promotion Contract With Santa Barbara International 
Film Festival (230.02) 

Recommendation:  That Council authorize the City Administrator to execute an 
annual community promotion contract with Santa Barbara International Film 
Festival in the amount of $76,000, to support film festival programming and year-
round administrative expenses. 
  

17. Subject:  Community Promotion Contract With Old Spanish Days (230.02) 

Recommendation:  That Council authorize the City Administrator to execute a 
community promotion contract with Old Spanish Days in an amount of $98,000, 
covering the period from July 1, 2014, to June 30, 2015. 
  

18. Subject:  Community Promotion Contract With Santa Barbara Region 
Chamber Of Commerce To Support Visitor Information Center (230.02) 

Recommendation:  That Council authorize the City Administrator to execute an 
annual community promotion contract with the Santa Barbara Region Chamber 
of Commerce in an amount of $56,000, to support year-round expenses of the 
Visitor Information Center, covering the period from August 1, 2014, through 
June 30, 2015. 
  

NOTICES 

19. The City Clerk has on Thursday, July 10, 2014, posted this agenda in the Office 
of the City Clerk, on the City Hall Public Notice Board on the outside balcony of 
City Hall, and on the Internet. 

20. Receipt of the Final Report of the 2013-14 Santa Barbara County Grand Jury. 
 
This concludes the Consent Calendar. 



 

7/15/2014 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 6 

CITY COUNCIL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ATTORNEY REPORTS 

PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT 

21. Subject:  Parks And Recreation 2014-2015 Strategic Drought Response 
Plan (540.05) 

Recommendation:  That Council receive a report on the Parks and Recreation 
Department's 2014 Strategic Drought Response Plan and water conservation 
progress to date. 
  

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 

22. Subject:  Bicycle Master Plan Update Community Engagement Process 
(530.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council approve the proposed approach for a 
community engagement process to update the Bicycle Master Plan. 
  

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

23. Subject:  Municipal Code Amendments For Implementation Of Senate Bill 2 
Related To Emergency Shelter Zoning (640.09) 

Recommendation:  That Council introduce and subsequently adopt, by reading of 
title only, An Ordinance of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Establishing 
Regulations for Emergency Shelters. 
  

COUNCIL AND STAFF COMMUNICATIONS 
 
 
COUNCILMEMBER COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENT REPORTS 
 
 
CLOSED SESSIONS 

24. Subject:  Conference With Labor Negotiator (440.05) 

Recommendation:  That Council hold a closed session, per Government Code 
Section 54957.6, to consider instructions to City negotiator Kristine Schmidt, 
Administrative Services Director, regarding negotiations with the Treatment and 
Patrol Bargaining Unit. 
 Scheduling:  Duration, 30 minutes; anytime 
 Report:  None anticipated 
  



 

7/15/2014 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 7 

CLOSED SESSIONS (CONT’D) 

25. Subject:  Public Employment/Public Employee Appointment (170.01) 

Recommendation:  That Council hold a closed session, per Government Code 
Section 54957(b)(1), to discuss the appointment for the position of Interim City 
Administrator and, if appropriate, make a decision regarding that appointment.  
 Scheduling:  Duration, 30 minutes; anytime    
 Report:  Possible 
  

ADJOURNMENT 

 
 



 1 JUL 15 2014 #1 
330.04 

ORDINANCE NO. _______ 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE 
AIRPORT DIRECTOR TO EXECUTE A 10-YEAR LEASE 
AGREEMENT WITH ONE 5-YEAR OPTION WITH GOLETA 
BUILDING MATERIALS, INC., A CALIFORNIA 
CORPORATION, EFFECTIVE AUGUST 14, 2014, FOR A 
MONTHLY RENTAL OF $10,698, EXCLUSIVE OF 
UTILITIES. 

 
 
THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA BARBARA DOES ORDAIN AS 
FOLLOWS:  
 
SECTION 1.  In accordance with the provisions of Section 521 of the Charter of the City 
of Santa Barbara, that certain Lease Agreement between the City of Santa Barbara and 
Goleta Building Materials, Inc., for 3,200 square feet of Building 224 at 6100 Francis 
Botello Road, 31,882 square feet of land at 91 Frederic Lopez Road, and 14,690 square 
feet of land at 90 Frederic Lopez Road, at the Santa Barbara Airport, for a monthly 
rental of $10,698, exclusive of utilities, is hereby approved. 
 

 

 

 

 



Agenda Item No.  2 

File Code No.  440.02 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: July 15, 2014 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: City Administrator’s Office 
 
SUBJECT: Introduction Of Ordinance For 2014-2017 Fire Association 
 Memorandum Of Understanding 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  That Council: 
 
A. Ratify the Memorandum of Understanding between the City and the Santa Barbara 

City Firefighters' Association for the period of July 1, 2014, to December 31, 2017, 
through introduction and subsequent adoption of, by reading of title only, An 
Ordinance of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Adopting the 2014-2017 
Memorandum of Understanding Between the City of Santa Barbara and the Santa 
Barbara City Firefighters' Association;  

B. Adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of Santa 
Barbara For Paying and Reporting the Value of Employer-Paid Member 
Contributions for Firefighters' Association Employees Effective January 10, 2015; 
and  

C. Adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of Santa 
Barbara For Paying and Reporting the Value of Employer-Paid Member 
Contributions for Firefighters' Association Employees Effective January 9, 2016. 

 
DISCUSSION: 
 
City negotiators have reached a tentative agreement with City Firefighters Association 
for a new 3.5 year labor agreement that is consistent with the economic authority 
provided by Council.  The term of the new M.O.U. is from July 1, 2014 through 
December 31, 2017.  The new agreement was ratified by the membership of the 
Firefighter’s Association.   
 
Under the agreement, employees will receive salary increases as follows: 
Date Salary Increase 
January 10, 2015 
January 9, 2016 
January 7, 2017 
July 8, 2017 
 

4.0% 
4.0% 
1.0% 
1.5% 



Council Agenda Report 
Introduction Of Ordinance For 2014-2017 Fire Association Memorandum Of 
Understanding  
July 15, 2014 
Page 2 

 

The above salary increases will be partially offset by increased employee pension 
contributions.   Increasing pension costs have been a key concern for the City in recent 
years.  It has been an aim to have all safety employees paying the full required 9.0% 
member contribution toward their pensions.  During the economic decline, firefighters 
agreed to temporarily pay a contribution to the California Public Employees Retirement 
System (PERS).  In 2013, firefighters agreed to pay 2.98% on an ongoing basis.  As 
part of the new agreement, the employee contribution will increase to 6.0% of salary in 
January 2015, and then in January 2016 firefighters will begin paying the full 9.0% 
member contribution on their own behalf.  
 
The proposed agreement leaves in place minimum staffing requirements negotiated 
during the economic decline.  This does not prohibit the City Council from reducing 
staffing below the minimum level, but it does include a City cost penalty clause as a 
disincentive to do so. Previously, this cost penalty was a 3% increase in City-paid 
pension contributions, but this has been changed to a 3% salary increase under this 
new agreement. Another key change is that a reduction in Aircraft Rescue and 
Firefighting (ARFF) staffing, should Council pursue this, would not trigger the cost 
penalty provision.  
 
The City agreed to begin making a $50 per month match to the Health Savings Account 
(HSA) for any employee enrolled in the HSA-coordinated health plan, increasing to $75 
per month in January 2016.  Other agreements include a reopener to discuss health 
and/or fitness maintenance program, an agreement to implement an employee-funded 
retirement health savings plan, and various clarifications about acting pay and the 
overtime and vacation assignment processes. 
 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
The cost of this agreement will be $44,643 total in Fiscal Year 2015, of which 
approximately $39,946 is a General Fund cost.  The ongoing cost, which will not be fully 
realized until Fiscal Year 2017-2018, will be $589,354, of which approximately $527,351 
is a General Fund cost.   
 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Kristine Schmidt, Administrative Services Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



  

1 

ORDINANCE NO.  _______ 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA ADOPTING THE 2014-2017 
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE 
CITY OF SANTA BARBARA AND THE SANTA BARBARA 
CITY FIREFIGHTERS' ASSOCIATION 

 
 
THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA BARBARA DOES ORDAIN AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1.  The Memorandum of Understanding between the City of Santa Barbara 
and the Santa Barbara City Firefighters' Association entered into as of July 1, 2014, and 
attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit "A" is hereby adopted. 
 
 



2014- 2017 MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
BETWEEN 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 AND 
 SANTA BARBARA 
 CITY FIREFIGHTERS ASSOCIATION, INC. 
 
THIS AGREEMENT, SIGNED ON __________, IS ENTERED INTO AS OF JULY 1, 
2014 BETWEEN THE CITY OF SANTA BARBARA (HEREINAFTER REFERRED TO 
AS "CITY") AND THE SANTA BARBARA CITY FIREFIGHTERS ASSOCIATION, INC. 
(HEREINAFTER REFERRED TO AS "SBCFA" OR “ASSOCIATION”). 
 
Pursuant to Section 3500 et seq. of the Government Code of the State of California, the 
duly authorized representatives of the City and SBCFA, having met and conferred in 
good faith over the issues of wages, hours, and terms and conditions of employment as 
herein set forth, declare their agreement to the provisions of this Memorandum of 
Understanding. 
 
FOR THE CITY:      FOR SBCFA: 
 
 
      __ 
Kristine Schmidt, Employee Relations Mgr. 

 
 
      __ 
Tony Pighetti, President, Fire Captain 

 
      _ 
Jim Bryden, Deputy Fire Chief 

 
      __ 
Kevin Hokom, Fire Captain 

 
      __ 
Michael Pease, Budget Manager 

 
      __ 
Bob Kendall, Fire Captain 

   
      __ 
Jon Turner, Fire Captain 

 
 

 
      __ 
Jeremy Denton, Fire Engineer 

 
  

 
      __ 
Stuart Adams, Counsel 

  
 

 

EXHIBIT A 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 



 

i 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
Alphabetical by Article Title 

 
ARTICLE- TITLE                                                                                                          
PAGE 

1- BENEFITS DURING SICK LEAVE OR AUTHORIZED LEAVE WITHOUT PAY 1 

2- BENEFITS - PART-TIME EMPLOYEES 1 

3- BENEFITS - DOMESTIC PARTNERS 1 

4- BEREAVEMENT LEAVE 1 

5- BIWEEKLY PAY PERIOD 2 

6- CAFETERIA PLAN 2 

7- CALL BACK 2 

8- CERTIFICATE OF ILLNESS 3 

9- CONFERENCE ATTENDANCE 3 

10- DEPENDENT CARE 3 

11- DISABILITY RETIREMENT 3 

12- DISCIPLINARY ACTION 3 

13- DRIVER'S LICENSE 3 

14- DRUG AND ALCOHOL TESTING POLICY 4 

15- EDUCATIONAL REIMBURSEMENT 4 

16- GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE 4 

17- HAZARDOUS MATERIALS TEAM ASSIGNMENT 6 

18- HEALTH INSURANCE FOR UNIT MEMBERS’ SURVIVORS 6 

19- HOLIDAY COMPENSATION 6 

20- HOLIDAY-  ILLNESS OR INJURY 7 

21- IMPLEMENTATION OF MOU 7 

22- INDUSTRIAL LEAVE 7 

23- LAYOFF PROCEDURE 8 

24- LEAD CAPTAIN AND LEAD FIREFIGHTER ASSIGNMENT 8 

25- LIFE INSURANCE 8 

26- LOSS CONTROL SUPPORT (SAFETY) 8 

27- MAINTENANCE OF BENEFITS 9 

28- MANAGEMENT RIGHTS 9 

29- MATERNITY/PARENTAL LEAVE 10 



 

ii 

30- MEAL CONTRIBUTION 10 

31- MEDICAL AND DENTAL INSURANCE 10 

32- MEDICAL AND FITNESS EXAMINATIONS 11 

33- MEETING AND CONFERRING 12 

34- MINIMUM STAFFING 12 

35- MODIFIED DUTY 13 

36- MUNICIPAL CODE CHANGES 14 

37- NO STRIKE OR LOCKOUT 14 

38- NON-DISCRIMINATION 15 

39- OUT-OF-CLASSIFICATION WORK 15 

40- OVERTIME/FAIR LABOR STANDARDS ACT (FLSA) 18 

41- PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS 19 

42- PREMIUM PAY FOR USE OF SPANISH LANGUAGE SKILLS 19 

43- PROBATIONARY PERIOD 20 

44- RETIREE MEDICAL INSURANCE CONTRIBUTION 20 

45- SALARIES 22 

46- SBCFA ACCESS TO WORK LOCATIONS 22 

47- SBCFA BULLETIN BOARDS 23 

48- SCOPE OF THE BARGAINING UNIT 23 

49- SERVICE BETTERMENT PAY (EDUCATION) 23 

50- SHIFT TRADES 23 

51- SICK LEAVE 23 

52- STANDBY PAY 24 

53- STATION MAINTENANCE 24 

54- STEP INCREASE PLAN 24 

55- TERM OF AGREEMENT 24 

56- UNAUTHORIZED LEAVE/SUSPENSION 25 

57- UNIFORM ALLOWANCE 25 

58- VACATION 25 

59- WAIVER 27 

60- WORK SCHEDULES 27 

APPENDIX A 29 

APPENDIX B 37 



 

iii 

 
 



 

Memorandum of Understanding- SBC Firefighters Association Page 1 
 

 
 

1- BENEFITS DURING SICK LEAVE OR AUTHORIZED LEAVE WITHOUT PAY 
 
 No sick leave, vacation, or holidays shall accrue to any employee during any full 

biweekly pay period in which the employee is on authorized leave without pay.  
Employee on leave without pay shall also be responsible for full payment of 
insurance premiums. 

 
2- BENEFITS - PART-TIME EMPLOYEES    

 
Employees filling positions authorized by City Council in the official Position and 
Salary Control Resolution at more than 20 hours per week on a less-than-full 
time basis shall receive benefits as follows: 
 

i. Cafeteria plan contribution, medical contribution, dental contribution, 
vision contribution, holiday and other benefits under this Agreement equal 
to the percent of time regularly scheduled versus a regular full-time (40 
hour or 56 hour) schedule rounded up to the nearest ten percent (10%). 
 
ii. Vacation and sick leave equal to the percent of time actually worked 
versus a regular full-time (40 hour or 56 hour) schedule rounded up to the 
nearest ten percent (10%). 

 
3- BENEFITS - DOMESTIC PARTNERS    

 
The City shall allow same sex and opposite sex domestic partners dependent 
coverage under the medical, dental, and vision plans.  In order to receive this 
benefit, domestic partners must be registered with the City Clerk’s office or the 
Secretary of State.  The affected employee(s) shall be responsible for all tax 
consequences of this benefit. 
 

4- BEREAVEMENT LEAVE 
 
 In case of death of a member of an employee's immediate family, a 40-hour 

employee shall be granted three (3) working days (24 hours) with pay, up to a 
maximum of five (5) days (40 hours), subject to the approval of the Department 
Head. 

 
 Employees of the Fire Department assigned to shift work shall be granted leave 

not to exceed two (2) shifts (48 hours) off with pay. 
 
 Immediate family is defined as mother, father, brother, sister, spouse, registered 

domestic partner, child, grandparents by blood or marriage, mother-in-law, 
father-in-law, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, daughter-in-law, son-in-law, 
grandchildren by blood or marriage, step family members, or person standing in 



 

Memorandum of Understanding- SB City Firefighters Association  Page 2 
 

loco parentis.  “In-law” and “step” relationships shall include the immediate 
family of a registered domestic partner on the same basis as that of a spouse. 

 
 The intent of bereavement leave is to provide employees with adequate time to 

be with their immediate family during a period of anguish, whether it be at the 
time of death, preparation of funeral arrangements, and/or to attend a funeral. 

 
 Responsibility for proper administration of this section shall rest with the Fire 

Chief. 
 

5- BIWEEKLY PAY PERIOD 
 

All references to "hours, shifts, or days" may be considered on the basis of 
"hours per biweekly pay period" through conversion factors providing 
substantially equal employee benefits. 
 

6- CAFETERIA PLAN 
 
 a. A flexible benefits plan known as a "125 Cafeteria Plan" and the "pre-tax 

advantage" provisions related to an employee’s eligible insurance 
premium contributions within the meaning of Section 125(d) of the Internal 
Revenue Code, shall be provided to employees.   

 
b. Each employee shall be eligible to allocate a discretionary amount of 

$232.84 per month. 
   

c. If medical and dental insurance selections exceed the cafeteria plan 
allocation in “b” above, the City will pay the difference of these respective 
insurance premiums up to the amounts in the Medical and Dental 
Insurance article of this MOU; said excess premium payments cannot be 
applied to any other element of the cafeteria plan. 

  
7- CALL BACK 

 
 a. 40 hour per week employees called back to work from an off-duty status 

shall be compensated in accordance with the overtime provision of this 
Agreement. 

 
 b. If an employee is called back to duty on an overtime basis, such 

employee shall be compensated for no less than two hours overtime. 
 
 c. Call back time commences upon the employee's receipt of the City's 

request for the employee to return to duty provided the employee 
promptly departs for his/her designated duty location. 

 



 

Memorandum of Understanding- SB City Firefighters Association  Page 3 
 

 d. The Fire Chief retains the right to set administrative criteria governing 
when a fire investigator call-out, or other call back, is warranted and 
authorized. 

 
8-  CERTIFICATE OF ILLNESS 

 
 Section 3.08.170 of the Municipal Code regarding presentation of a physician's 

statement as proof of illness or sick leave absences, if for more than three 
consecutive working days, shall be interpreted to mean that such a physician's 
statement shall be required for absences of more than two consecutive shifts for 
shift personnel. 

 
9- CONFERENCE ATTENDANCE 

  
SBCFA representatives shall be permitted not more than an aggregate total of 
eight (8) shifts (192 hours) of time off with pay to attend conferences or seminars 
related to SBCFA activities for each fiscal year (July 1 - June 30).  Such 
attendance is subject to approval of the Fire Chief. 

 
10- DEPENDENT CARE 

 
 The City will provide a pre-tax salary reduction plan for employee dependent 

care needs in accordance with Section 129 of the Internal Revenue Code. 
 

11- DISABILITY RETIREMENT 
 
 An employee found physically or mentally incompetent to perform his/her regular 

duties, even with a reasonable accommodation of a disability,  shall be 
terminated pursuant to City Charter Section 1007 or retired, if eligible, pursuant 
to State law and City regulations.  An employee eligible to retire for non-
industrial disability shall be entitled to use a maximum of 180 days (2,160 hours 
for shift personnel and 1,440 hours for 40-hour per week employees) sick leave 
benefits prior to the date the employee is eligible for retirement benefits.  In no 
case shall an industrially injured employee be entitled to use sick leave benefits. 

 
12- DISCIPLINARY ACTION 

 
 The City may provide the option of forfeiture of vacation time in lieu of taking 

other disciplinary action pursuant to Charter Section 1007 and enabling 
ordinances. 

 
13- DRIVER'S LICENSE 

 
 Employees shall perform all activities necessary to maintain a Class 'C' or 

equivalent driver's license on their own time and at their own expense.  The cost 
of any additional required driver's licenses, or the certificates or examinations 



 

Memorandum of Understanding- SB City Firefighters Association  Page 4 
 

necessary to obtain such licenses, shall be paid by the City.  On-duty time, at 
the Fire Department's convenience, shall be provided for required testing and/or 
examinations. 

 
14- DRUG AND ALCOHOL TESTING POLICY 

 
 Employees in the job classifications of Administrative Fire Captain, Fire Captain, 

Fire Engineer, Firefighter, and Fire Inspector I, II and II are covered by the "City 
of Santa Barbara Drug and Alcohol Testing Policy for Fire Unit Employees" 
dated September 2000. 

 
15- EDUCATIONAL REIMBURSEMENT 
 

a. Educational Reimbursement Program: Employees shall be eligible 
for tuition reimbursement through the City of Santa Barbara’s 
Educational Reimbursement Program. 

 
b. Fire Service Education Travel Expenses and Promotional Study 

List Materials:  The Fire Department will provide up to a $400 
reimbursement per fiscal year for the costs of lodging, meals, and 
mileage for fire service related courses, as outlined in the Standard 
Operating Procedures Manual, that are satisfactorily completed 
and receive the prior written reimbursement approval of the Fire 
Chief.  Reimbursement for the costs of books on the current Fire 
Engineer and Fire Captain promotional study list, but not eligible 
for reimbursement under the Educational Reimbursement Program, 
will also be permitted.  The policies regarding reimbursement 
under this section shall be established by the Fire Chief and 
become part of the Santa Barbara City Fire Department's Standard 
Operating Procedures Manual.  Reimbursement for lodging, meals 
and mileage shall be based upon the City of Santa Barbara Travel 
and Expense Reimbursement Policy for City Employees. The $400 
per year available under this section will be accrued on July 1st of 
each fiscal year, up to a maximum ongoing accrual of $800.” 

 
16- GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE 

 
 a. Grievances shall be defined as an alleged violation of this Agreement or 

dispute regarding interpretations, application or enforcement of this 
Agreement or the City Charter, City ordinances, resolutions, and written 
policies related to personnel practices and working conditions.  
Grievances shall not include disagreements regarding employment 
(including promotional) exams, disciplinary action, performance 
evaluations, probationary terminations, and items subject to meet and 
confer. 

 



 

Memorandum of Understanding- SB City Firefighters Association  Page 5 
 

 b. Employees shall be assured freedom from reprisal for using the grievance 
procedure. 

 
 c. Grievances shall be invalid unless filed within thirty (30) calendar days of 

the date the alleged grievable activity occurred or the employee could 
reasonably have known of its occurrence. 

 
 d. Step One - Immediate Supervisor.  Any employee who has a grievance 

shall first try to get it settled through discussion with his immediate 
supervisor without undue delay.  Every effort shall be made to find an 
acceptable solution at the lowest possible level of supervision. 

 
 e. Step Two - Fire Chief.  If after such discussion the employee does not 

believe the grievance has been satisfactorily resolved, he may file a 
formal appeal in writing to the Fire Chief within ten (10) calendar days 
after receiving the informal decision of his immediate supervisor.  Fire 
Chief shall render his written decision and comment to the employee 
within ten (10) calendar days after receiving the appeal. 

 
 f. Step Three - Mediator.  If, within fifteen (15) calendar days after receipt of 

the written decision of the Fire Chief the employee is still dissatisfied, he 
or she may request the services of a mediator from the State Mediation 
and Conciliation Service. 

 
 g. Step Four - City Administrator.  If within fifteen (15) calendar days after 

the mediation process has been completed, or if mediation was not 
requested within fifteen (15) calendar days after receipt of the written 
decision of the Fire Chief, and the employee is still dissatisfied, he may 
appeal the decision to the City Administrator.  Such appeal shall be made 
by filing a written appeal with the City Administrator.  The City 
Administrator shall review the decision of the Fire Chief, and his/her 
decision, which shall be rendered within twenty-five (25) working days 
after the appeal is made, shall be final.  The City Administrator may 
request the advice of the Board of Civil Service Commissioners in any 
grievance proceeding, but he/she shall not be bound to follow any 
recommendation of the Board. 

 
 h. The time limitations for filing and responding to grievances may be waived 

or extended by mutual agreement of the parties.  If either party to the 
grievance so requests, an informal hearing shall be conducted at the Fire 
Chief or City Administrator appeal levels.  Employees may be represented 
by counsel or other person at any stage in the grievance process.  For 
purposes of this Article "working days" refers to days in which the City 
Hall is open for business. 

 



 

Memorandum of Understanding- SB City Firefighters Association  Page 6 
 

 i. Grievances which are general in character and which involve 
interpretation or application of this MOU or City policies or which involve 
matters requiring resolution outside the authority of the Fire Chief shall be 
filed directly with the Administrative Services Director who shall provide a 
written response within ten (10) working days. 

 
  An employee may appeal the response of the Administrative Services 

Director.  The employee's appeal shall be handled in accordance with the 
procedures in steps three and four above. 

 
 j. Complaints regarding performance evaluation (non-grievable) may be 

discussed with next highest level of supervision above the individual 
initiating the evaluation and taken to Fire Chief for final review. 

 
 k. Examinations for employment and promotions shall not be grievable but 

shall be protested in accordance with approved administrative policy.  
City will consult with SBCFA prior to adopting and amending said policy. 

  
17- HAZARDOUS MATERIALS TEAM ASSIGNMENT 

 
Any employee holding the rank of Firefighter, Fire Engineer, or Fire Captain who 
holds either a Hazardous Materials Technician Certificate or a Hazardous 
Materials Specialist Certificate from the State of California shall be paid in 
addition to his/her salary range an increase of either five percent (5%) for a 
Hazardous Materials Technician Certificate or seven percent (7%) for a 
Hazardous Materials Specialist Certificate while assigned to the Hazardous 
Materials Team. 

 
18-  HEALTH INSURANCE FOR UNIT MEMBERS’ SURVIVORS 

 
The City shall maintain and pay for the existing level of insurance benefits for up 
to twelve (12) months for the surviving family of a unit member who dies in the 
line of duty, or for such greater period of time required by state or federal law. 
 

19- HOLIDAY COMPENSATION 
 
 Employees shall be eligible to receive holiday time at the general employee 

holiday and personal leave schedule for 40-hour employees, and six and one-
half (6-1/2) twenty-four hour shifts (156 hours) per year for shift personnel. 

 
 Each employee will have the option to receive holiday compensation earned 

during the payroll year in time off or cash, or any combination thereof.  Cash-out 
will be at the straight time rate of pay at the same time and in the same manner 
as the vacation cash-out process.  Cash-out must be taken at the end of the 
same payroll year in which the holiday time was accrued.  An employee who 
does not cash-out holiday pay accrued during the year must bid to take the time 



 

Memorandum of Understanding- SB City Firefighters Association  Page 7 
 

off in the next year, and will not later be eligible to cash-out this time in lieu of 
taking time off.  

 
Holiday time for suppression personnel shall be taken annually only in 
conjunction with vacation unless otherwise authorized by the Fire Chief.  

 
20- HOLIDAY-  ILLNESS OR INJURY 

 
 When an employee is assigned to work on a day which is a holiday for said 

employee and by reason of illness or job-related illness or injury is unable to 
work as assigned, such employee shall not be charged with a loss of holiday 
time in addition to sick leave or injury leave. 

 
An employee unable to work due to extended illness or injury may cash-out 
holiday time through the holiday/vacation cash-out process at the end of the 
payroll year by notifying the department of the employee's desire to do so in 
writing prior to December 15 of the payroll year. Cash-out must be taken at the 
end of the same payroll year in which the holiday time was accrued.  An 
employee who does not cash-out holiday pay accrued during the year must bid 
to take the time off in the next year, and will not later be eligible to cash-out this 
time in lieu of taking time off. 
 

21- IMPLEMENTATION OF MOU 
 
 

City shall implement the provisions of this Memorandum of Understanding by 
adopting appropriate resolutions, ordinances, and administrative policies. 
 
An employee will be eligible for any increases to salaries and benefits that were 
effective prior to adoption of this Agreement, retroactive to the effective dates 
specified, if the employee was an active City employee and bargaining unit 
member on the date that the City Council ratified the Agreement. 
 

22- INDUSTRIAL LEAVE 
 
 The City shall not deduct either State or Federal withholding taxes from Labor 

Code Section 4850 payments as long as that practice remains in accordance 
with the law and the employee is receiving 4850 payments for the entire 
biweekly pay period.  Employees will hold harmless the City of Santa Barbara for 
any tax or other consequences that may arise from not deducting taxes in 
accordance with this provision. 
 



 

Memorandum of Understanding- SB City Firefighters Association  Page 8 
 

23- LAYOFF PROCEDURE 
 
 In cases of abolition of positions which result in layoff of personnel or reduction 

in force, the following seniority policy shall apply to sworn members of the 
bargaining unit: 

 
 a. The individual with the least time in rank shall be first reduced.  Where 

equal time in rank is the case, total time with the Fire Department shall be 
used to determine seniority. 

 
 b. The individual affected shall have the right to "bump" downward to the 

next lower sworn rank formerly held by the affected employee such that 
the last hired employee in the lowest sworn rank shall be the first 
employee laid off.  Rehiring shall be accomplished pursuant to Section 
3.16.350 of the Municipal Code. 

 
24- LEAD CAPTAIN AND LEAD FIREFIGHTER ASSIGNMENT 

 
Any employee holding the rank of Fire Captain and assigned responsibility as 
Fire Station #1 Lead Captain shall be paid in addition to his/her salary range an 
increase in pay equal to ten percent (10%).  

 
Any employee holding the rank of Firefighter and assigned responsibility as Fire 
Rescue Truck Lead Firefighter shall be paid in addition to his/her salary range 
an increase of seven and one-half percent (7.5%).   

 
25- LIFE INSURANCE 

 
 The City will provide a term life insurance policy in the amount of $75,000 

covering the employees only, with equal accidental death and dismemberment 
coverage.    

 
26- LOSS CONTROL SUPPORT (SAFETY) 

 
 a. The City and SBCFA will abide by all provisions of the California Plan 

approved in accordance with the provisions of the Federal Occupational 
Safety & Health Act of 1970, and any applicable legislation as may be 
passed by the State of California to implement that plan. 

 
 b. Any safety courses the employees are required to take will be provided on 

City time with pay. 
 
 c. The City will conduct a Safety Program on City time for the purpose of 

educating the employees concerning the provisions of the Occupational 
Safety & Health Act as well as the City safety policies. 

 



 

Memorandum of Understanding- SB City Firefighters Association  Page 9 
 

 d. SBCFA will support without qualification the City's Safety Program and 
will encourage its members to attend safety courses if required by the City 
and made available on City time. 

 
 e. Both the City and SBCFA recognize the need and will strive to reduce the 

number of industrial injuries among the employees. 
 
 f. The City will either provide all safety equipment or will reimburse the 

employee for purchasing the equipment, whenever such equipment has 
been required by the City as necessary for the job.  Such equipment may 
include, but not be limited to, safety shoes, safety glasses, helmets, 
gloves, safety boots, life jackets, and all related safety items.  The City 
will purchase wildland boots for new employees only The City shall retain 
the right to determine the minimum specifications of the safety equipment, 
procurement, procedures, and limitations and exclusions. 

 
27- MAINTENANCE OF BENEFITS 

 
 a. All benefits (other than direct wages) as provided by ordinances, 

resolutions, and City Charter, in existence at the commencement of this 
Agreement, shall not be diminished, lessened, altered or reduced except 
as may be herein provided for the duration of the Agreement. 

 
 b. Wage adjustments as provided for from time to time by ordinance, 

resolution, or City Charter, as such may be amended in accordance with 
this Agreement, shall also continue for the duration of this Agreement. 

 
c. The City has the right and prerogative to assign duties to and direct 

employees in accordance with applicable job specifications and Section 
3.12 of the Santa Barbara Municipal Code. 

 
28- MANAGEMENT RIGHTS 

 
 This section is to be interpreted in a manner consistent with applicable laws and 

with due regard for the provisions of this Agreement. 
 
 The City has an exclusive right to manage and direct the performance of 

services and the work force performing such services unless the City has 
specifically delegated, abridged, or modified any such rights in this Agreement.  
Such rights shall include but not be limited to the sole right to determine the 
organizational structure of the City, establish levels and types of services to be 
provided, determine the methods, means, and number of personnel by which 
operations are to be conducted including sole authority to contract or 
subcontract for municipal services, and to exercise complete control and 
discretion over the technology of performing the City's work.   

 



 

Memorandum of Understanding- SB City Firefighters Association  Page 10 
 

 The City retains complete authority over the policies and direction and 
administration of the Fire Department, including but not limited to standards and 
methods of selection for employment, promotion and performance evaluation, 
disciplinary action; relief of employees from duty because of lack of work or 
other legitimate reasons; maintenance of the efficiency of government 
operations; establishment of the work week and work schedules; and 
determination of the content of job classifications. 

 
29- MATERNITY/PARENTAL LEAVE 

 
An employee may request  to take pregnancy and/or parental leave as provided 
under the City’s “FMLA/CFRA Family Care and Medical Leave Policy”, 
“Maternity Leave Policy”, and/or “Parental Leave Policy, or as provided under 
state or federal law. 

 
30- MEAL CONTRIBUTION 

 
Employees are required by the City as a condition of employment to contribute 
financially to meals in the Fire Station at a charge equal to the value of the meal, 
irrespective of whether the employee chooses to eat the meal.  Employees shall 
be solely responsible for any financial or tax liability regarding this provision.  
Accordingly, the City shall be held harmless from any such liability.  The City 
also shall not be responsible for maintaining any records or providing 
administration regarding this provision. 

 
31- MEDICAL AND DENTAL INSURANCE 

 
For the length of this Agreement the City will pay 100% of the premium for 
medical insurance for the employee only up to a maximum monthly amount of 
$1412.70.  
 

 Should the amount of "employee only" premium be less than the dollar limits 
herein described, the difference between the "employee only" premium and said 
dollar amount limits shall be applied to employee dependent medical coverage, 
if any. 

 
Effective January 1, 2015, for an employee enrolled in a PPO plan that is 
coordinated with a Health Savings Account (HSA), the City will match the 
employee’s contribution to the HSA on a dollar-for-dollar basis, not to exceed a 
maximum City contribution of $50.00 per month, provided however that the total 
combined employer and employee amount will not exceed the annual indexed 
allowable HSA contribution limits.  Effective January 1, 2016, this amount will be 
increased to a match not to exceed $75.00 per month. 
 



 

Memorandum of Understanding- SB City Firefighters Association  Page 11 
 

For the length of this Agreement the City shall pay 100% of the premium for 
dental insurance coverage for the employee only up to a maximum monthly 
amount of $52.00.  

 
 The dental insurance shall provide for payments based upon 100% of 

reasonable and customary charges.  The City will update dental schedule to 
reflect current, usual, customary, and reasonable charges in the Santa Barbara 
area. 

 
 The City retains full and complete control over the selection, approval, and 

administration of insurance programs to include selection of the carrier, 
insurance contract renewal, and changes in program specifications.  However, 
the City may not modify the benefits if such modification results in an increased 
cost to employees or reduces current benefits, without agreement by the 
Association.  

 
 The City will administer the medical plans option and the City will provide a 

vision care option for unit employees. 
 

32- MEDICAL AND FITNESS EXAMINATIONS 
 
 The City shall continue to provide a program of annual medical exams for unit 

employees regularly assigned to the Hazardous Materials Response Team 
(HAZMAT); as well as, continuing a program of periodic fitness exams for all unit 
employees.  The City retains full and complete control over these programs. 

 
 The City will provide up to $250 for members under 45 years old and $350 for 

members 45 years and older for employees' medical examinations (upon receipt 
of invoice) for unit members who do not receive annual HAZMAT examinations 
based on the following schedule: 

 
   25-34 years old -- every 4 years; 
   35-44 years old -- every 3 years; 
   45 +  years old -- every 2 years. 
 

The parties will reopen negotiations, upon either party’s 30 day prior written 
notice to the other, with regard to implementing a health and/or fitness 
maintenance program, which may establish requirements to demonstrate 
minimum  job-related levels of health and/or fitness, and/or establish a program 
to reward employees for achieving and maintaining such level of fitness. 
 



 

Memorandum of Understanding- SB City Firefighters Association  Page 12 
 

33- MEETING AND CONFERRING 
 
 Meeting and conferring over the renewal or continuation of this Agreement shall 

be initiated at the request of either party after September 1 of the last year of this 
Agreement, but not later than October 1 of the last year of this Agreement. Every 
effort will be made to reach an agreement prior to the expiration of this 
Agreement. 

 
34-  MINIMUM STAFFING 

 
For the duration of the Agreement, subject to the requirements of Article X, Section 
1008 of the City Charter, the City agrees to initially maintain the following minimum 
staffing levels: 
 

a. The minimum staffing requirements of the Department shall be as follows: 
(1) For Non-ARFF suppression, 25 sworn fire suppression personnel 

per shift within the City, not including sworn management, 
consisting of 7 engine companies and 1 truck company. Each 
engine company shall be comprised of one Fire Captain, one Fire 
Engineer and one Firefighter.  The truck company shall be staffed 
with one Fire Captain, one Fire Engineer, and two Firefighters. 

(2) For the Aircraft Rescue and Fire Fighting (ARFF) Suppression 
Company, there will be 3 sworn fire suppression personnel per 
shift, comprised of one Fire Captain and two Fire Engineers.   

(3) Staff on mutual aid of a duration of 12 hours or less will be 
included in the above numbers, in which case back filling shall be 
at the discretion of the Fire Chief.   

(4) Employee assigned and paid in an “acting” capacity on a shift will 
be included in the above numbers at the acting rank.  As provided 
under the department’s Standard Operating Procedure 
“Overtime/Mandate”, acting employees will only be assigned where 
not enough personnel of the needed rank have made themselves 
available to work.  City acknowledges that it is not its intent to 
permanently staff vacancies at the Engineer or Captain rank with 
acting employees. Out of classification work shall not exceed ten 
(10) consecutive shifts unless operational needs require a longer 
duration. The ten (10) consecutive shifts may be extended if 
operational needs require an extension and after the City has met 
and consulted with the Association. 

(5) For the Prevention Bureau there shall be a minimum of 6 
authorized positions on the official list of authorized positions. The 
City Council may direct that these positions, if vacated by the 
incumbent employee for reasons other than an involuntary 
termination, remain unfunded and unfilled without violating this 
section.   

(6) There shall also remain a Training Captain position on the official 



 

Memorandum of Understanding- SB City Firefighters Association  Page 13 
 

list of authorized positions.  The City Council may direct that this 
position, if vacated by the incumbent employee for reasons other 
than an involuntary termination,  remain unfunded and unfilled 
without violating this section, however it is the intent of this section 
for the Training Captain position remain funded and filled if fiscal 
conditions permit.   
 

b. If the City Council exercises its rights under Article X, Section 1008 of the 
City Charter, or otherwise discontinues the minimum staffing levels in Section 
3(a), as outlined above, without the express written consent of the Association: 

(1) The City will give the Association a minimum of 60 days written 
notice prior to the effective date of the change to minimum staffing 
(the “change date”),  and 

(2) In the event the Association believes that such intended action will 
affect the safety or workload of affected employees, it shall so 
advise the City, whereupon the City and the Association shall meet 
and confer in good faith over the impacts of the change,  Such 
meeting and conferring, however, shall not prevent the City from 
implementing the staffing change on an interim basis not less than 
60 days after notice to the Association, but prior to the conclusion 
of negotiations over the impacts of the change. 
 

c. Prior to making a decision to “contract out” work currently being 
performed by ARFF Suppression staff, the City will provide notice to the 
Association and the opportunity to meet and confer over both the decision and 
the effects of such decision. 
 
d. If the City Council exercises its rights under Article X, Section 1008 of the 
City Charter, or otherwise discontinues the minimum staffing levels in Section 
34(a)(ii) Non-ARFF Suppression, Section 34(a)(v) Prevention, or Section 
34(a)(vi)  Training Captain, without the express written consent of the 
Association the City will prospectively increase salaries across-the-board by 3%. 
 This subsection “d” shall not apply to a reduction in ARFF Suppression staffing. 

 
35- MODIFIED DUTY 
 

a.   The City’s Modified Work Program, which can be found in Chapter 4 and 
in Appendix 20 of the Injury and Illness Prevention Program (IIPP), shall apply to 
members of the Association.  

 
b. The following provisions will apply to temporary modified duty 
assignments at the Fire department.   
 

(1) Industrial Injury/Illness  
i. The Deputy Fire Chief will coordinate all modified duty 

assignments for industrial injury or illness.   



 

Memorandum of Understanding- SB City Firefighters Association  Page 14 
 

ii. An employee unable to work due to an industrial injury or 
illness shall immediately notify the on-duty Battalion Chief whenever there 
is a change to the employee’s work restrictions. 

iii. An employee shall immediately make himself or herself 
available to return to available modified duty upon authorization by the 
treating physician. 

iv. Refusal by an employee with a job related injury or illness to 
accept a modified duty assignment under the work restrictions approved 
by the treating physician may result in loss of compensation and benefits 
under California Worker’s Compensation law and/or Labor Code §4850, 
consistent with applicable law. 

v. An employee on modified duty will not be denied normal 
promotional or training opportunities based on his or her modified duty 
status. 

vi. Modified duty assignments will be scheduled as follows, 
unless otherwise scheduled by the Fire Chief: 

A.       Short term:  For modified duty of less than three 
weeks (21 consecutive calendar days) the employee will work 8:00 
a.m. to 5:00 p.m. on the regularly assigned shift. 

B.       Long term:  For modified duty of more than three 
weeks, the employee will be converted to a 40-hour work week 
(typically four 10-hour days).  
 

(2) Non-Industrial Injury/Illness 
i. The Fire Chief may consider requests for a voluntary 

modified duty assignment from an employee who sustains a non-industrial 
injury/illness.  

ii. If approved, a fire department employee will work a modified 
duty assignment in lieu of using sick leave or other disability benefits.   

iii. For all non-industrial injury or illness the employee will be 
converted to a 40-hour work week (typically four 10-hour days). 

iv. The Fire Chief may end any such modified duty assignment 
at his or her sole discretion.  

 
36- MUNICIPAL CODE CHANGES 

 
    

During the term of this Agreement the City and the SBCFA shall meet and confer 
with regard to any City proposed updates to Municipal Code Title 3 to reflect 
current practices. 

 
37- NO STRIKE OR LOCKOUT 

 
 a. During the term of this Agreement, the City will not lockout employees and 

SBCFA will not engage in labor practices detrimental to providing 
services to the citizens of Santa Barbara or detrimental to the interests of 



 

Memorandum of Understanding- SB City Firefighters Association  Page 15 
 

the City; nor will SBCFA sanction, support, condone, approve, or engage 
in any strike, sick-in, slow-down, work stoppage, or speed-up. All matters 
of controversy coming within the scope of this Agreement will be settled 
by established grievance procedures. 

 
 b. Violation of the above shall be just cause for disciplinary action including 

termination. 
 
 c. City and SBCFA will not  breach the terms of this Memorandum of 

Understanding or commit any unfair labor practices during the term of this 
Agreement. 

 
38- NON-DISCRIMINATION 

 
 a. The provisions of this Agreement shall be applied equally to all 

employees covered herein without favor or discrimination because of 
race, religious creed, color, national origin, ancestry, physical disability, 
mental disability, medical condition, genetic information, marital status, 
sex, gender, gender identity, gender expression, pregnancy, age, sexual 
orientation, political or religious affiliations, union membership, or military 
and veteran status.. 

 
 b. The City and SBCFA will commit themselves to the goal of equal 

employment opportunity in all City services. 
 

 c. The taking of FMLA leave, or other leaves of absence protected under 
state and federal law, will not be used as a negative factor in employment 
actions, such as hiring, promotions, or disciplinary actions, nor will such 
leave be counted as a negative factor under attendance policies, provided 
that the employee has complied with any and all notice and proof 
requirements applicable to such leave. 

 
39- OUT-OF-CLASSIFICATION WORK 

 
a. Suppression Employees.  When a certified employee  has worked out-of-

classification, the certified employee shall be compensated at the rate of 
the higher classification while the out-of-classification work continues. 

   
  Compensation for working out-of-class shall be as follows: 
 
  (1) Firefighters working as Acting Engineer, and Engineers working as 

Acting Captain: 
 
   The lowest salary step of the higher classification that is at least 

5% above the employee's current base pay. 
 



 

Memorandum of Understanding- SB City Firefighters Association  Page 16 
 

   



 

Memorandum of Understanding- SB City Firefighters Association  Page 17 
 

(2) Firefighters working as Acting Captain: 
 
   The lowest salary step of the higher classification that is at least 

10% above the employee's current base salary. 
 
  For the purposes of this subsection, an out-of-classification assignment is 

defined as the full-time performance of all the duties of an authorized, 
funded, permanent, full-time position in one classification by an employee 
in a position in another classification.  Credit or pay for out-of-
classification work shall accrue in half or full shift increments only. 

 
 b. An employee assigned to work as a Battalion Chief shall be compensated 

at the greater of either minimum base salary assigned to that class or at 
least receive a 15% (fifteen percent) increase in base salary (up to 
maximum of range) for each full shift or day the employee is assigned 
such work. 

 
 c. Prevention Employees.  Working a Fire Prevention employee out-of-

classification that is not certified as an Inspector II or III will occur only to 
meet the work requirements within the City and that such out-of-
classification work will terminate fifteen (15) consecutive work days or 
thirty (30) work days in any one calendar year, or if extended beyond 
fifteen (15) consecutive or thirty (30) work days, the employee shall be 
compensated at the rate of the higher classification while the out-of-
classification work continues.  When an employee with certification has 
worked out-of-classification, the certified employee shall be compensated 
at the rate of the higher classification while the out-of-classification work 
continues. 

 
  For purposes of this subsection, an out-of-classification assignment is 

defined as assignment by the Fire Chief or designee of the full-time 
performance of the significant duties of an authorized, funded, permanent, 
full-time position in one or more higher classification(s) by an employee in 
a position in another classification.  "Significant duties" shall be as 
defined on the appropriate class specification. 

 
  When an employee works out-of-classification continuously for fifteen 

(15) working days or more, the City shall place a letter in the employee's 
personnel file acknowledging the out-of-classification work. 

 
  It is the intent of this subsection to compensate employees for assigned 

out-of-class work which extends beyond fifteen (15) consecutive or thirty 
(30) work days in any one calendar year. 



 

Memorandum of Understanding- SB City Firefighters Association  Page 18 
 

 
40- OVERTIME/FAIR LABOR STANDARDS ACT (FLSA) 

 
 a. All unit members are exempt under the provisions of the 7K exemption of 

the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA). 
 
 b. Suppression employees shall be on a 27-day work period unless the City 

implements a 24-day cycle, such as that included in the “Policy Regarding 
48/96 Schedule” reflected in Appendix B to this Agreement, at which time 
there shall be a 24-day work period. 

 
 c.  Overtime compensation for employees shall be as follows: 
 
  (1) Suppression Employees.  Suppression employees shall be 

compensated at time and one-half their regular rate of pay for all 
hours worked in excess of 204 hours in a 27-day work period.  
Upon implementation of a 24-day work period, suppression 
employees shall be compensated at time plus one-half for all hours 
worked in excess of 182 hours in a 24-day work period.  Paid leave 
time shall count as time worked for purposes of this section.  All 
emergency call back and hold over time shall be compensated at 
time and one-half. 

 
  (2) Prevention Employees.  Prevention employees shall be 

compensated at one and one-half times their regular rate of pay for 
all hours worked in excess of their regularly scheduled shift and/or 
in excess of 40 hours per week.  Paid leave time shall count as 
time worked for purposes of this section. 

 
 d. Hourly rates for suppression employees shall be based on the 

established biweekly salary divided by 112 hours. 
 
 e. Employees assigned to fire watch overtime hours (e.g. movie sets, 

concerts) will be paid at time plus one-half. 
 

f. Emergency callback overtime is paid from time of notification to time of 
departure from the station or other assigned reporting site.  Other 
overtime, including but not limited to scheduled and mandated overtime, 
is paid from arrival to until departure from the station or other assigned 
reporting site. 

 
g. Employees shall have the option to be compensated by CTO for any 

portion of overtime worked at a time and one-half CTO rate, subject to a 
CTO accrual limit of 108 hours for suppression employees and 60 hours 
for prevention employees.  Unless employees specifically designate CTO 
compensation for overtime worked, employees will receive monetary 



 

Memorandum of Understanding- SB City Firefighters Association  Page 19 
 

compensation for such overtime.  CTO shall be taken off under the same 
policies and procedures that govern vacation including the ability to utilize 
when an employee attends fire-related training.  An employee may also 
request, in the same manner as vacation time, to utilize CTO beyond the 
maximum five employees per shift if sufficient staffing will be available.  
The availability of sufficient staffing will be determined by the department 
at 0630 hours on the day of intended use.  The employee requesting the 
CTO will be responsible for calling the department between 0630 and 
0700 hours on the day of intended use to see if the CTO request is 
granted. 

 
If approved by the department, suppression employees may accrue up to 
144 CTO hours for use to attend scheduled, fire-related training and 
classes or for use by an employee who has had to deplete his/her 
vacation time to extend a recovery period due to sickness or off-duty 
injury. 

 
41- PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS 

 
 The City will continue deducting monies from payroll and remit same to SBCFA 

as authorized by employee payroll deduction authorizations in accordance with 
present policy.  Any changes in dues deductions shall be subject to 
indemnification of the City by SBCFA. 

 
 SBCFA will meet and confer at the City's request regarding the addition or 

deletion of other payroll deductions. 
  

42- PREMIUM PAY FOR USE OF SPANISH LANGUAGE SKILLS 
 
 For all employees designated by the Fire Chief, who establish to the satisfaction 

of the Chief and the Human Resources Manager proficiency in conversing and 
reading skills in Spanish as demonstrated by appropriate testing, the City will 
pay premium pay of $51.20 each biweekly pay period.   

 
Employees receiving such premium pay may be required to show continued 
proficiency as demonstrated by an annual recertification exam that is the same 
as the initial qualifying exam. 

 
Employees who are off-duty for an extended period of time due to illness or 
injury (including industrial-related illness or injury) and are designated by the 
Fire Chief to take the exam, may take the test to establish proficiency in Spanish 
language skills; however, he or she will not begin receiving the premium pay 
until they return to active duty. 

 



 

Memorandum of Understanding- SB City Firefighters Association  Page 20 
 

43- PROBATIONARY PERIOD 
 

The City may extend the probationary period upon written agreement of the 
employee.  A consecutive period of time served by an employee in an acting 
capacity immediately prior to his/her regular appointment to the position shall be 
applied to the one year probationary period. 

 
 In addition, any period of ten (10) or more shifts served by an employee in an 

acting capacity within the six (6) months immediately prior to promotion shall be 
credited to the employee's probationary period. 

 
44- RETIREE MEDICAL INSURANCE CONTRIBUTION 

 
 a. This provision is applicable to employees who retire from City service on 

or after July 1, 1994, and 
 
  1. Have 15 or more years of classified or unclassified service; or 
 
  2. Retire from City with an industrial disability. 
 
 b. For employees who retire on or after the date this Agreement is ratified by 

the City Council, the City shall contribute $10.00 per month, per year of 
service up to a maximum of 35 years (i.e., $350.00/month) towards the 
purchase of medical insurance for the retiree and his/her spouse or 
registered domestic partner, if applicable.   

 
  Employees who retire from the City with an industrial disability shall 

receive a minimum contribution based upon 15 years of service, or actual 
years of service, whichever is greater. 

 
 c. The retiree is not limited to purchase of a City sponsored plan, provided 

however, that if the retiree purchases another insurance plan, the retiree 
must supply the City with adequate proof of insurance coverage prior to 
any contribution from the City.  Proof of such coverage shall be provided 
to the City on a periodic basis, as reasonably determined by the City. 

 
 d. The City shall continue to make its contribution until the retiree reaches 

age 65 or dies, whichever occurs first, provided however, that if the 
retiree dies before reaching the age of 65 and there is a surviving spouse 
or registered domestic partner, the City's contribution shall cease when 
the retiree would have reached age 65.  Thereafter, the spouse or 
registered domestic partner may remain on the insurance plan, at his/her 
own cost, subject to the conditions set forth by the insurance company. 

 
 e. In the event Health Care legislation is passed which affects the nature of 

the benefit described above, the parties will reopen negotiations and 



 

Memorandum of Understanding- SB City Firefighters Association  Page 21 
 

modify this benefit, if necessary, so as to maintain their original intent 
(e.g., eligibility, scope, cost). 

 
42. RETIREMENT 
 

a. For employees who are “Classic” employees under the Public Employees 
Retirement System (PERS): 

(1) The City shall provide the 3% at age 50 PERS retirement formula for Fire 
safety employees. 

(2) The City will pay 6.02% of the 9.00% employee's member contribution, 
which amount will be reduced as follows: 

 Current Effective  

1/10/2015 

Effective  

1/9/2016 

Employee Paid Member Contribution 2.98% 6.00% 9.00%  

City Paid Member Contribution (EPMC) 6.02% 3.00% 0% 

Total Member Contribution 9.00% 9.00% 9.00% 

 
(3) The City shall report to PERS the value of Employer Paid Member 

Contributions as compensation earnable pursuant to Government Code 
Section 20636(c)(4) through enabling City resolution.  This provision will 
be discontinued as of January 1, 2016 when the City no longer makes 
Employer Paid Member Contributions. 

(4) The City shall provide One-Year Highest Compensation pursuant to 
Section 20042 of the California Government Code. 
 

b. Effective January 1, 2013, “New” Fire Safety members as defined by California 
Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act of 2013 (hereinafter “AB 340”) will be 
covered under the 2.7% at 57 Safety retirement formula, with a final 
compensation measurement period of the average of the highest three (3) 
consecutive years, as well as all other statutory requirements of AB 340.  
Effective January 1, 2013, new employees and/or members as defined by AB 
340 shall contribute half the normal cost for benefits, as defined by AB 340; the 
City will not pay any portion of these employees’ required contributions.  
  

c. For both “Classic” and “New” PERS members:  
(1) The City shall provide Post-Retirement Survivor Allowance to Continue 

After Remarriage pursuant to Section 21635 of the California Government 
Code.  This provides that if the surviving spouse remarries on or after 
January 1, 1985, the Post-Retirement Survivor Continuance will not 
cease.  This section will apply on account of remarriages that occur on 
and after the contract inclusion date for survivors or contracting agency 
members. 



 

Memorandum of Understanding- SB City Firefighters Association  Page 22 
 

(2) The City shall provide Increased Level of 1959 Survivor Benefits pursuant 
to Section 21572 of the California Government Code.  This benefit allows 
the City to provide 25% higher levels of 1959 Survivor Benefits than the 
level one benefits provided under section 21571 of the California 
Government Code.  

(3) Suppression employees will have fifty-six (56) hours of regular salary 
reported to PERS. 

(4) The City shall provide for employees to convert unused accumulated sick 
leave to additional PERS service credit at the time of retirement. 
(Government Code Section 20965). 

(5) The City’s contract with PERS shall provide that Fire Inspectors I, II and 
III shall be designated as safety employees for purposes of retirement.  
(Government Code Section 20433). 

 
 

45- SALARIES 
 
 a. The compensation which shall be paid to fire personnel shall be in 

accordance with Section 1211 (b) of the City Charter as amended. 
 
 b. Further, the City agrees to provide employees with a minimum 5% 

increase in base salary upon promotion up to the maximum of the salary 
provided in the salary range for the position. 

  
 c. The following across-the-board increases will go into effect as indicated:   
 

Effective Date Base Salary Increase 
January 10, 2015 4.0% 
January 9, 2016 4.0% 
January 7, 2017 1.0% 
July 7, 2017 1.5% 

 
 

46- SBCFA ACCESS TO WORK LOCATIONS 
 

a. SBCFA officers or employees shall be permitted reasonable access to 
work locations for the purpose of processing grievances or contacting 
members concerning issues of wages, hours, or terms and conditions of 
employment.  Work locations will not be entered without the knowledge 
and consent of the Chief Officer on duty.  Access shall not interfere with 
normal department operations or established safety or security 
requirements. 

 
b. Solicitation of membership and activities concerning SBCFA internal 

management shall not be conducted during working hours without the 
consent of the Fire Chief.  The right to solicit members and conduct 



 

Memorandum of Understanding- SB City Firefighters Association  Page 23 
 

SBCFA activities shall not be unreasonably withheld if said activities are 
conducted during non-scheduled activity hours. 

 
c. SBCFA shall submit requests to the Chief or his designee at least twenty-

four (24) hours in advance of its desire to conduct a SBCFA meeting on 
City property.  The Fire Chief or his designee has the discretion to 
approve any request but may not withhold approval unreasonably.  The 
Fire Chief's response to SBCFA will be made within a reasonable time so 
that SBCFA can make other arrangements if necessary. 

 
47- SBCFA BULLETIN BOARDS 

 
 The Association may furnish a bulletin board at each main work location for the 

conduct of Association business.  The size and location of the boards must be 
approved by the City.  All materials to be posted on such bulletin board shall be 
non-defamatory, must be approved and signed by an Association official and 
shall be used only for information related to the following subjects:  Association 
recreational, social and related news bulletins, meeting notices, election notices 
and results, and other official Association business such as Committee reports. 

 
48- SCOPE OF THE BARGAINING UNIT 

 
 The bargaining unit will represent all employees in the classifications of 

Firefighter, Fire Engineer, Fire Captain, Fire Inspector I, Fire Inspector II and 
Fire Inspector III. 

 
49- SERVICE BETTERMENT PAY (EDUCATION) 

 
 The former City Service Betterment Pay Plan  was eliminated January 1, 1977.. 
 

50- SHIFT TRADES 
 
 Employees may voluntarily exchange work shifts or any portion of a shift with 24 

hours advance notice and approval from the Fire Chief or designated 
representative.  Employees exchanging shift time shall be of equal rank. 

 
 The City and Fire Department are not responsible for shift exchange 

arrangements made between employees.  Outstanding shift exchange paybacks 
are the responsibility of the individual employee. 

 
51- SICK LEAVE 

 
 Employees shall be eligible to accrue sick leave at the rate of 12 days (144 

hours for shift personnel and 96 hours for 40-hour per week employees) per 
year.  Sick leave may be accumulated up to a maximum of 180 days (2,160 
hours for shift personnel and 1,440 hours for 40-hour per week employees).  In 



 

Memorandum of Understanding- SB City Firefighters Association  Page 24 
 

no case shall sick leave be used in lieu of or in addition to vacation or industrial 
injury/illness leave. 

 
52- STANDBY PAY 

 
 When department management assigns 40 hour per week prevention employees 

to be on standby duty, the employees shall be compensated and governed by 
the following: 

 
  a. Employees shall be ready to respond to calls for their services.   
 
  b. Employees shall be readily reachable by telephone or paging 

device. 
 
  c. Employees shall remain within sixty minutes travel time from Santa 

Barbara City. 
 

 d. Employees shall refrain from activities which might impair their 
ability to perform their assigned duties.   

 
The hourly standby pay amount will be $5.41 per hour. 
 

 Employees shall not accrue standby pay simultaneously with overtime pay. 
 

53- STATION MAINTENANCE 
 
 Employees shall be responsible for interior and exterior day-to-day routine 

maintenance necessary to maintain cleanliness of fire stations, related buildings 
and appurtenant grounds.  Any additional work other than that which is 
necessary to maintain cleanliness shall not be required unless mutually agreed 
by the Association and the City. 

 
54- STEP INCREASE PLAN 

 
 a. Entry Level Firefighters shall be appointed at the A step.  Entry level 

personnel shall be eligible for a salary step increase to the B step upon 
satisfactory completion of a probationary period of one year and a 
"probationary firefighters examination." 

 
 b. Further step increases through the salary range shall require, in addition 

to satisfactory performance, a period of one year of actual service in each 
step. 

 
55- TERM OF AGREEMENT 

 



 

Memorandum of Understanding- SB City Firefighters Association  Page 25 
 

 The term of this Memorandum of Understanding is for three and one half (3.5) 
years commencing on July 1, 2014 and expiring on December 31, 2017. 

 
56- UNAUTHORIZED LEAVE/SUSPENSION 

 
No sick leave, vacation, or holiday time shall accrue or be paid during any period 
of unauthorized leave or suspension.  Should the suspension later be 
overturned, employee shall receive "back" pay and benefits that would have 
accrued to the employee as if the suspension had not taken place. 

 
57- UNIFORM ALLOWANCE 

 
 a. The City shall provide employees in the bargaining unit an annual uniform 

allowance of $595 per full year that provides the entire City contribution 
for maintenance, cleaning and replacement of any authorized uniforms.  
Payment of the uniform allowance will be paid to employees who are on 
the payroll during the pay period ending two (2) weeks prior to the payday 
on which the uniform allowance is paid in June or December of each year. 
 Payment will be made in a separate check, one-half ($297.50) in 
December and one-half ($297.50) in June, per the following schedule:  

   
  December 12, 2014 and June 10, 2015 
  December 11, 2015 and June 10, 2016 
  December 9, 2016 and June 9, 2017 
  December 8, 2017 
 

 b. Newly hired employees will receive the full annual uniform allowance 
upon their commencement of employment with the City.  Following twelve 
(12) months of employment, employees will receive their uniform 
allowance pursuant to the provisions of paragraph 'a' above. 

 
 c. The Fire Department's dress, fatigue and physical fitness exercise 

uniforms are for official on-duty use only and are not to be mixed with 
personal clothing or worn off-duty.  Any use of fire equipment or the 
wearing of the Fire Department uniform by fire personnel not on duty will 
only occur with the express permission of the Fire Chief or designee. 

 
 d. The Fire Department will exchange uniforms destroyed in the line of duty. 
 
 e. The City will clean employee turnouts as needed. 

 
58- VACATION 

 
 a. The following vacation schedule shall apply to shift personnel: 
                       • 0 - 9 years continuous service accrues at 11 days (132 hours) per year. 
                      • 10 years continuous service & over accrues at 17 days (204 hours) per  



 

Memorandum of Understanding- SB City Firefighters Association  Page 26 
 

                       year. 
 
 b. Employees assigned to 40-hour work week prevention function shall 

receive the general employees vacation schedule. 
 
 c. Vacation hours bid in any vacation year must be taken by the end of that 

vacation year or the employee will cease accruing vacation, unless the 
employee elects to cash-out “unscheduled” vacation time pursuant to 
paragraph “e” below.  It shall be the employees’ responsibility to monitor 
their vacation accrual and schedule their unbid vacation days.  Said 
limitation on accumulation of vacation hours shall not apply if scheduled 
vacations are canceled by the City for emergencies or canceled due to 
illness, injury or personal emergencies of employees.  All vacation hours 
carried over due to the cancellation of a scheduled vacation shall either 
be taken or cashed in by the end of the following vacation year. 

 
 d. Employees may maintain a bank of unbid vacation hours not to exceed 

their previous year's accrual.  These unbid vacation hours may be taken 
with prior scheduling and approval by the City consistent with the staffing 
needs of the department. 

 
  Each year an employee must bid sufficient vacation hours so that his/her 

unbid hours do not exceed an amount equal to his/her previous year's 
vacation accrual. 

 
 e. If a 40-hour employee takes a minimum of 80 hours of vacation during a 

payroll year, that employee is eligible to cash out any remaining vacation 
time.  If a 56-hour employee takes a minimum of 96 hours of vacation 
during a payroll year, the employee is eligible to cash out any remaining 
"unscheduled" vacation time.  Cash-outs of vacation time shall occur 
annually in conjunction with the vacation scheduling process. 

 
  f. Vacations shall be scheduled in accordance with Municipal Code Chapter 

3.08.  A maximum of four (4) employees per shift may schedule vacation, 
holiday, or compensatory time off during any vacation year.   

 
  Effective with the 2008 vacation year, a 5th employee may be scheduled 

for vacation, holiday, or compensatory time off during any shift. The 5th 
slot will be available for bid during the normal 2008 vacation bid process. 
Once the vacation bid period is complete, an employee may request to 
use unbid vacation for an available 5th slot, provided he/she arranges to 
cover his/her own shift under the practice commonly referred to as a “wild 
card process”.   

 
  Beginning with the normal 2009 vacation bid process, based on 

unforeseen operational impacts of the new 5th vacation slot and following 



 

Memorandum of Understanding- SB City Firefighters Association  Page 27 
 

informal consultation with the Association to explore alternatives, the Fire 
Chief may  require that an employee requesting to take vacation in the 5th 
slot during the annual bid process must arrange to cover his/her own shift 
under the wild card process. 

 
 g.  The City retains the right to cancel scheduled time off during 

emergencies.   
 

59- WAIVER 
 

 Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, each party voluntarily and 
unqualifiably waives the right and each agrees that the other party shall not be 
obligated to meet and confer with respect to any subject or matter pertaining to 
or covered by this Agreement.  Nothing in the foregoing however, shall preclude 
the parties from meeting and consult during the term of this Agreement on 
matters of mutual concern.  Such meeting and consulting shall be by mutual 
consent only.   

 
 Nothing in this Agreement shall in any way diminish the rights of the employees, 

the City, or the SBCFA as established by the Meyers-Milias-Brown Act of the 
State of California and all amendments thereto, or Santa Barbara Municipal 
Code, Chapter 3.12, except as herein provided. 

 
60- WORK SCHEDULES 

 
a. Suppression Employees 

 
  (1) Suppression employees shall be regularly scheduled to work a 

48/96 schedule, subject to the City’s right to discontinue this schedule 
and return to the 3-4 schedule, as provided under the “Policy Regarding 
48/96 Schedule” reflected in Appendix B to this Agreement.  

 
   (2) City shall designate the employee's work week and may change an 

employee to a 40-hour week by providing 90 calendar days advance 
notice unless mutually agreed by employee and City or unless 
unanticipatable circumstances, other than discipline or retraining, 
necessitate lesser notice in order to maintain service levels and normal 
activities.  The 90 calendar day notice will not apply to an employee 
whose schedule changes when starting or ending a temporary modified 
duty assignment. 

 
(3) Any firefighter, fire engineer, or fire captain that is either: 

 
i. Assigned by the Fire Chief or Deputy Chief to a 40-hour work 

schedule while on mandatory temporary modified duty due to an 
industrial illness or injury; or 



 

Memorandum of Understanding- SB City Firefighters Association  Page 28 
 

ii. Designated by the Fire Chief to work in an administrative capacity 
on a schedule of 40 hours a week to meet the needs of the City,  

 
will receive a biweekly “administrative assignment pay”.  The biweekly 
amount will be approximately equal to 3 hours at the straight time hourly 
rate of pay for an employee in the same job classification, but assigned to 
a 56-hours per week schedule.  
 
The purpose of this pay will be to maintain a salary for the employee on a 
40-hour per week administrative assignment that is approximately equal 
to that of an employee assigned to a 56-hour per week schedule.  Any 
previous practice designed to achieve this salary equivalency will be 
discontinued.  An employee assigned to a 40-hour schedule at his or her 
own request (e.g., due to a non-industrial illness or injury) will not be 
eligible for administrative assignment pay. 

 
  (4) If the City desires to change the regular work schedule, other than 

returning to the 3-4 schedule  as provided under the “Policy Regarding 
48/96 Schedule” reflected in Appendix B to this Agreement, it shall notify 
the Association and provide it the opportunity to meet and confer. 

 
 b.   Prevention/Investigation Employees 
 

 Employees shall be regularly scheduled to work an average 40-hour work 
week and shall receive a minimum of two (2) consecutive days off subject 
to emergency call back, overtime or standby.  The City shall designate the 
employees' work week. 

 
c. Moving from 40-hour to 56-hour shift 

 
When an employee moves from a 40 hour shift to a 56 hour shift, and vice 
versa, no conversion shall be made to the hours in the employee’s 
accrued leave banks.  An employee may use previously accrued vacation 
on an hour-for-hour basis.  However, the employee will begin accruing 
leave at the new rate applicable to that new schedule. 



 

Memorandum of Understanding- SB City Firefighters Association  Page 29 
 

 
 APPENDIX A 

 
 CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 CATASTROPHIC LEAVE POLICY 
 
 
  I. PURPOSE:  To establish a program whereby City employees can donate 

vacation, unscheduled holiday and/or compensatory time to the sick leave banks 
of permanent full-time and permanent part-time employees who are 
incapacitated due to a catastrophic off-duty illness or injury. 

 
 II. DEFINITION:  A catastrophic illness or injury is a severe illness or injury which is 

unusual, unexpected, or immediate in nature; and which is expected to preclude 
an employee from returning to work for an extended period of time, during which 
the employee will exhaust all of his/her accumulated leave balances. 

 
III. POLICY:  City employees may donate vacation, unscheduled holiday and/or 

compensatory time to a permanent full-time or permanent part-time employee if: 
 
 A. An employee experiences a catastrophic illness or injury which requires 

him/her to be absent from work for an extended period of time; 
 
 B. The employee has nearly exhausted all leave balances (sick, vacation, 

personal leave, holiday, compensatory time); and 
 
 C. The employee or if incapacitated, the legally recognized representative 

has agreed to accept the donation if approved by the Department Head 
and the City Administrator. 

 
 D. The Department Head will take action to help ensure that each 

employee's decision to donate or not donate to a Personal Catastrophic 
Leave Account is kept confidential and that the donor and recipient 
employees are not pressured to participate. 

 
 E. State and Federal income tax on the value of vacation, unscheduled 

holiday and/or compensatory time donated shall be deducted from the 
recipient employee's pay at the time the hours are used. 

 
IV. PROCEDURES: 
 
 A. A request is made by the recipient employee or if incapacitated, the 

legally recognized representative to the Department Head for the 
establishment of a Personal Catastrophic Leave Account.  This request 
may be made prior to the employee exhausting all of his/her paid leave 



 

Memorandum of Understanding- SB City Firefighters Association  Page 30 
 

balances so that time donated may be utilized immediately upon 
exhaustion of the employee's leave balances, but not before. 

 
 B. Upon approval of the Department Head and the City Administrator, and 

upon agreement of the recipient employee, a Personal Catastrophic 
Leave Account will be established.  The employee or if incapacitated, the 
legally recognized representative will sign the "Request to Receive 
Donation(s)" form allowing publication and distribution of information 
regarding his/her situation. 

 
 C. The employee or if incapacitated, the legally recognized representative 

will be required to provide verification of the illness or injury from an 
attending physician before and while using time donated under this 
program.  All information provided by the employee's physician will remain 
confidential. 

 
 D. The request for donations shall occur in three month intervals and may be 

extended up to a maximum of twelve (12) continuous months for any one 
catastrophic illness/injury, based upon approval of the Department Head 
and City Administrator. 

 
 E. Donated vacation, unscheduled holiday and/or compensatory time shall 

be converted and credited to the recipient in equivalent hours of sick 
leave at the recipient's base hourly rate.  (e.g., employee A makes 
$20/hour and donates 1 hour of vacation time to employee B who earns 
$10/hour.  B's sick leave bank is increased by 2 hours for each hour 
donated by A.) 

 
 F. Employees will use the "Donation of Vacation, Unscheduled Holiday 

and/or Compensatory Time" form to submit donations of vacation, 
unscheduled holiday and/or compensatory time directly to Human 
Resources.  All donations will be reviewed for compliance with this policy. 
 After review, the form will be forwarded to Payroll for action and 
adjustment to the donor's and recipient's paid leave balances. 

 
 G. All donations of vacation, unscheduled holiday and/or compensatory time 

shall be in increments of 4 hours or more (e.g. 4, 8, 12 hours) and shall 
be made in three month increments.  An employee may not donate 
vacation, unscheduled holiday or compensatory time which would reduce 
his or her total accrued combined balance of vacation, compensatory 
time, personal leave, holiday and sick leave to less than 120 hours after 
the donation. 

 
 H. The donation of vacation, unscheduled holiday and/or compensatory time 

is irreversible.  Should the recipient employee not use all the donated 
time for the catastrophic illness or injury, any balance will revert to a City-



 

Memorandum of Understanding- SB City Firefighters Association  Page 31 
 

wide "Catastrophic Leave Bank" for future use by employees with need 
for that donated time pursuant to the provisions of this Catastrophic Leave 
Policy. 

 
 I. A report on the usage of Personal Catastrophic Leave Accounts and 

status of the City-wide "Catastrophic Leave Bank" will be available to 
recognized labor organizations and others with a need to know.  The 
report will include the identity of the recipient(s), hours donated, hours 
used and the remaining balance(s). 

 



 

Memorandum of Understanding- SB City Firefighters Association  Page 32 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
CATASTROPHIC LEAVE POLICY (FIRE) 
REQUEST TO RECEIVE DONATION(S) 

 
This form is for those City employees who are incapacitated due to a catastrophic illness or 
injury and wish to benefit from a City-established employee-donated Personal Catastrophic 
Leave Account.  To be eligible to participate in the program, it is foreseen that an employee 
will use all of his/her accumulated leave balances because of a catastrophic illness or injury; 
however, any hours donated may not be utilized until the employee's leave balances are 
actually exhausted. 
 
The purpose of this form is not to be intrusive into the personal life of any employee.  The goal 
is to obtain enough information so that the decision to establish a Personal Catastrophic 
Leave Account for any given employee will be based on appropriate considerations.  The 
intent is to establish a Personal Catastrophic Leave Account for those employees truly in 
need. 
 
Name:                                                                           Date:   __________                                

            
Job Title:                                                                        Department: 

_________________           
 
Please describe why you are requesting use of a Personal Catastrophic Leave Account 
including information such as the nature of the catastrophe.  (A doctor's Certificate of 
Disability will be required.  Other pertinent information may be required by the City.  All 
information provided by your physician will remain confidential.) 
                                                                                                                                  
 
                                                                                                                                 
 
              
                                                                                                                               
 
 
How much donated time do you estimate you may need? 
                                                                                                                                         
 
I agree to allow this information to be released to those employees wishing to donate their 
vacation, unscheduled holiday and/or compensatory time to me, as well as those people 
involved in the administration of the program. 
 
 ____________________________________    ______________     
Signed by the Requesting Employee or, if incapacitated,  Date 
 the Legally Recognized Representative  
 
 ____________________________________    ______________     
Signed by the Department Head      Date    
 



 

 

 ____________________________________    ______________     
Signed by the City Administrator      Date 



 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



 

 

 CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 CATASTROPHIC LEAVE POLICY (FIRE) 
  

DONATION OF VACATION, UNSCHEDULED HOLIDAY 
AND/OR COMPENSATORY TIME 

 
 
 CONFIDENTIAL 
 
 
TO:  Human Resources 
 
FROM: ____________________________________     
  (Employee Name and Department) 
 
DATE:                                                                                           
 
 
I understand that this donation of my vacation, unscheduled holiday and/or 
compensatory time is irrevocable.  Should the employee receiving the donation not use 
all of the donated time for the catastrophic illness or injury, the balance will remain with 
the Catastrophic Leave Bank for future use by other employees with need for the 
donated time. 
 
I understand that I may only donate vacation, unscheduled holiday and/or 
compensatory time may only be donated in increments of four hours or more (e.g. 4, 8, 
12 hours). 
 
I understand that I cannot donate vacation, unscheduled holiday, and/or compensatory 
time which would reduce my total accumulated vacation, compensatory time, personal 
leave, holiday and sick leave to less than 120 hours after my donation. 
 
I have read and understand all of the above and I freely and without restraint elect to 
donate         vacation hours;        unscheduled holiday hours;        compensatory time to 
a Personal Catastrophic Leave Account established for the benefit of                             
                        __________ (employee's name).                                                               
  
 
 
____________________________________      
NAME:  (please print) 
 
____________________________________    ______________     
SIGNATURE:                                                                                          DATE:                 
                                                                                      



 

 

APPENDIX B 
 

FIRE SUPPRESSION 
POLICY REGARDING 48/96 SCHEDULE 

 
 
1. APPLICATION:  This agreement will apply to Fire Suppression employees on a 

24-hour shift schedule. 
2. EFFECTIVE DATE:  The new 48/96 work schedule will be effective on January 

6, 2007 and continue for a trial period ending on June 20, 2008. 
3. TERMINATION OF 48/96 SCHEDULE:  With 90 days advanced written notice, 

the City may, at its sole option, discontinue the 48/96 work schedule for failure to 
meet the objectives of the 48/96 work schedule (e.g., the items listed in Section 
9, “Objectives of 48/96 Schedule”, below).  The 48/96 schedule may also be 
discontinued by mutual agreement between the City and the Association, 
however this section shall not create an obligation for either party to meet and 
confer on this matter prior to discontinuing the work schedule. 

4. EXPIRATION OF TRIAL PERIOD: Either the City or the Association may 
exercise the right to return to the previous “3-4” work schedule (also called a 
“Kelly” schedule) following the trial period by submitting a request in writing to 
the other party at least 60 days prior to the expiration of the trial period.  The 
schedule change will be accomplished as soon as practicable after the 
expiration of the trial period without incurring additional City overtime costs.  If 
neither party exercises this right, the 48/96 schedule will continue, subject to the 
cancellation options as provided in Section 3 (“Termination of 48/96 Schedule”), 
above. 

5. FLSA WORK PERIOD: The work period will be defined as a 24-day work period, 
as permitted by the current Memorandum of understanding (MOU) and the Fair 
Labor Standards Act (FLSA), in order to accommodate the 48/96 schedule.  
Overtime will be paid in accordance with Section 39(c)(1) of the M.O.U. 
(“Overtime/Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA)”) 

6. DESCRIPTION OF 48/96 WORK SCHEDULE:  A duty shift will be a period of 24 
consecutive hours, starting at 0800 hours one day and continuing to 0800 hours 
the next day.  A scheduled rotation will occur after 2 shifts (48 hours), followed 
by 96 hours off.  This will result in 10 hours of scheduled overtime per 24-day 
FLSA work period. 

7. HOLIDAY BLACK- OUT PERIOD:  During the month of December annually, a 
“holiday black-out period” will be imposed wherein no vacation time off will be 
authorized between December 22nd and December 25th.  However, a supervisor 
may approve an employee’s use of vacation time off during this period if the 
employee arranges his or her own relief coverage. 



 

 

8. MAXIMUM CONTINUOUS DUTY: The maximum allowable continuous duty 
hours are capped at 96 hours (mandatory and/or voluntary), with a minimum 12-
hour period thereafter before the employee returns to any duty.  For off-district 
assignments through mutual aid or unusual circumstances, such as a local 
disaster, an exception the maximum continuous duty may be approved by the 
Fire Chief or his/her designee. 

9. MINIMUM TIME OFF: Vacation, comp-time, holiday, and sick leave may be 
scheduled only in blocks of 12 or 24 hours, except as required by state, local or 
federal law. 

10. OBJECTIVES OF 48/96 SCHEDULE:  It shall be the goal of the 48/96 schedule 
change to enhance employee morale and job satisfaction, increase productivity 
and training opportunities, improve continuity in the management of collateral 
assignments, and reduce commuter trips by 50% for all Suppression staff 
without negative impacts on the City including, but not limited to, the following 
areas: 

• Sick leave use 
• Number of injuries/worker’s compensations claims 
• Number of vehicle accidents 
• Training hours completed (including required LEAP training) 
• Number of fire inspections performed 
• Compliance with P3 objectives for the Operations Division 
• Employee fatigue 
• Resulting operational difficulties/challenges  
• Compliance with new and existing policies 
• Overtime costs 
• Representation of protected classes in the fire service. 

 



1 

RESOLUTION NO. 14- 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA FOR PAYING AND REPORTING THE 
VALUE OF EMPLOYER-PAID MEMBER CONTRIBUTIONS 
FOR FIREFIGHTERS’ ASSOCIATION EMPLOYEES 
EFFECTIVE JANUARY 10, 2015 
 

WHEREAS, the governing body of the City of Santa Barbara has the authority to 
implement Government Code Section 20636(c) (4) pursuant to Section 20691; 

WHEREAS, the governing body of the City of Santa Barbara has a written labor policy 
or agreement which specifically provides for the normal member contributions to be paid 
by the employer, and reported as additional compensation; 

WHEREAS, one of the steps in the procedures to implement Section 20691 is the 
adoption by the governing body of the City of Santa Barbara of a Resolution to 
commence paying and reporting the value of said Employer Paid Member Contributions 
(EPMC); 

WHEREAS, the governing body of the City of Santa Barbara has identified the following 
conditions for the purpose of its election to pay EPMC; 

• This benefit shall apply to all employees of the Santa Barbara City Firefighters' 
Association who are "Classic" CalPERS members and not subject to 
restrictions on EPMC under the California Public Employees' Pension Reform 
Act of 2013. 

• This benefit shall consist of paying 3.000% (Percent) of the normal 
contributions as EPMC, and reporting the same percent (value) of 
compensation earnable** {excluding Government Code Section 20636(c)(4)} 
as additional compensation. 

• The effective date of this Resolution shall be January 10, 2015.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the governing body of the City of Santa 
Barbara elects to pay and report the value of EPMC, as set forth above. 

        BY 

 

        (Name of Official)  

 

(Date adopted and approved)   (Title of Official)  

* Note:  Payment of EPMC and reporting the value of EPMC on compensation earnable 
is on pay rate and special compensation except special compensation 
delineated in Government Code Section 20636(c)(4) which is the monetary 
value of EPMC on compensation earnable. 



1 

RESOLUTION NO. 14- 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA FOR PAYING AND REPORTING THE 
VALUE OF EMPLOYER-PAID MEMBER CONTRIBUTIONS 
FOR FIREFIGHTERS’ ASSOCIATION EMPLOYEES 
EFFECTIVE JANUARY 9, 2016 

 

WHEREAS, the governing body of the City of Santa Barbara has the authority to 
implement Government Code Section 20636(c) (4) pursuant to Section 20691; 

WHEREAS, the governing body of the City of Santa Barbara has a written labor policy 
or agreement which specifically provides for the normal member contributions to 
be paid by the employer, and reported as additional compensation; 

WHEREAS, one of the steps in the procedures to implement Section 20691 is the 
adoption by the governing body of the City of Santa Barbara of a Resolution to 
commence paying and reporting the value of said Employer Paid Member 
Contributions (EPMC); 

WHEREAS, the governing body of the City of Santa Barbara has identified the following 
conditions for the purpose of its election to pay EPMC; 

• This benefit shall apply to all employees of the Santa Barbara City Firefighters' 
Association who are "Classic" CalPERS members and not subject to 
restrictions on EPMC under the California Public Employees' Pension Reform 
Act of 2013. 

• This benefit shall consist of paying 0.000% (Percent) of the normal 
contributions as EPMC, and reporting the same percent (value) of 
compensation earnable** {excluding Government Code Section 20636(c)(4)} 
as additional compensation. 

• The effective date of this Resolution shall be January 9, 2016.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the governing body of the City of Santa 
Barbara elects to pay and report the value of EPMC, as set forth above. 

        BY 

 

        (Name of Official)  

 

(Date adopted and approved)   (Title of Official)  

* Note:  Payment of EPMC and reporting the value of EPMC on compensation earnable 
is on pay rate and special compensation except special compensation 
delineated in Government Code Section 20636(c)(4) which is the monetary 
value of EPMC on compensation earnable. 



Agenda Item No.  3 

File Code No.  540.14 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 

AGENDA DATE: July 15, 2014 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Creeks Division, Parks and Recreation Department 
 
SUBJECT: Grant Application For The Environmental Enhancement And 

Mitigation Program For The Arroyo Burro Restoration At Barger 
Canyon   

 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of 
Santa Barbara Authorizing the Parks and Recreation Director, or Designee, to Submit a 
Grant Application for Grant Funds from the Environmental Enhancement and Mitigation 
Program for the Arroyo Burro Restoration at Barger Canyon.   
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
In December 2013, the Creeks Division purchased a 14-acre parcel in Barger Canyon in 
order to preserve and restore 2,100 linear feet of Arroyo Burro. The parcel, including the 
riparian corridor, was degraded in the past due to agricultural development. The Creeks 
Division is currently developing a design to restore this reach of Arroyo Burro. The goals 
of the project are to improve water quality, restore the degraded riparian corridor, and 
improve wildlife habitat.    
 
The Creeks Division is actively pursuing grant funds to help pay for restoration of the 
parcel. The Creeks Division has identified the Caltran’s Environmental Enhancement and 
Mitigation Program (EEMP) grant program as a possible source of funds for the 
restoration effort. In order to apply for grant funds from the EEMP, a resolution from the 
City Council is required.   
 
SUSTAINABILITY IMPACT:   
 
The purpose of this project is to improve water quality and riparian habitat in Arroyo 
Burro. These efforts will contribute to local, regional, and federal objectives of improving 
water quality and riparian habitat.  
 
PREPARED BY: Cameron Benson, Creeks Restoration/Water Quality Manager 
SUBMITTED BY: Nancy Rapp, Parks and Recreation Director 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 



1 

RESOLUTION NO:    
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA AUTHORIZING THE PARKS AND 
RECREATION DIRECTOR, OR DESIGNEE, TO SUBMIT A 
GRANT APPLICATION FOR GRANT FUNDS FROM THE 
ENVIRONMENTAL ENHANCEMENT AND MITIGATION 
PROGRAM FOR THE ARROYO BURRO RESTORATION AT 
BARGER CANYON 

 
 
WHEREAS, the Legislature and Governor of the State of California have enacted 
Section 164.56 of the  California Streets And Highways Code, which is intended to 
provide grant funds to local, state and federal agencies and nonprofit entities for 
projects to enhance and mitigate the environmental impacts of modified or new public 
transportation facilities;  
 
WHEREAS, the California Natural Resources Agency has been delegated the 
responsibility for the administration of this grant program, establishing necessary 
procedures and criteria, and is required to submit to the California Transportation 
Commission a list of recommended projects from which the grant recipients will be 
selected; and 
 
WHEREAS, the applicant, if selected, will enter into an agreement with the State of 
California to carry out the Project. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA 
BARBARA AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1.  The Parks and Recreation Director, or designee, of the City of Santa 
Barbara is hereby authorized to submit a grant application for grant funds from the 
Environmental Enhancement and Mitigation Program (EEMP) for the Arroyo Burro 
Restoration at Barger Canyon. 
 
SECTION 2.  Certifies that Applicant understands the requirements in the Program 
Guidelines. 
 
SECTION 3.  Certifies that Applicant or title holder will have sufficient funds to operate 
and maintain the project consistent with the land tenure requirements; or will secure the 
resources to do so. 
 
SECTION 4.  Certifies that Applicant will record a document against the real property that 
defines the State’s interest in the property whether the Grantee owns the property or not. 
 



2 

SECTION 5.  Certifies that Applicant will comply with the provisions of Section 1771.5 of 
the State Labor Code regarding payment of prevailing wages on Projects awarded 
EEMP Funds. 
  
SECTION 6.  If applicable, certifies that the project will comply with any laws and 
regulations including, but not limited to, legal requirements for building codes, health 
and safety codes, disabled access laws, environmental laws and, that prior to 
commencement of construction, all applicable licenses and permits will have been 
obtained. 
 
SECTION 7.  Certifies that Applicant will work towards the Governor’s State Planning 
Priorities intended to promote equity, strengthen the economy, protect the environment, 
and promote public health and safety as included in Government Code Section 
65041.1. 
 
SECTION 8.  The Council appoints the Parks and Recreation Director, or designee, as 
agent of the City of Santa Barbara to conduct negotiations, execute and submit all 
documents including, but not limited to, applications, agreements, amendments, 
payment requests and other documents, which may be necessary for the completion of 
the aforementioned project. 
 
 



Agenda Item No.  4 

File Code No.  540.10 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 
 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: July 15, 2014 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Creeks Division, Parks and Recreation Department 
 Facilities Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Resolutions Authorizing Execution Of Two Grant Agreements With The 

State Of California For Storm Water Infiltration Projects And Acceptance 
Of Grant Funds Totaling $3,458,640  

 
RECOMMENDATION:  That Council: 

 
A. Adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara 

Authorizing the Parks and Recreation Director, or Designee, to Negotiate and Execute 
an Agreement, and Any Amendments Thereto, with the State of California for the City 
of Santa Barbara Low Impact Development – Streets, Sidewalks, and Alleys Project; 

B. Accept a Proposition 84 Storm Water Grant for an amount not to exceed $2,307,010 
for the Low Impact Development – Streets, Sidewalks, and Alleys Project; 

C. Authorize the increase of estimated revenues and appropriations in the Fiscal 
Year 2015 Creeks Capital Fund by $2,307,010, for the Low Impact Development – 
Streets, Sidewalks, and Alleys Project funded from the grant; 

D. Adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara 
Authorizing the Public Works Director, or Designee, to Negotiate and Execute an 
Agreement, and Any Amendments Thereto, with the State of California for the Laguna 
Lot Infiltration Paver Project; 

E. Accept a Proposition 84 Storm Water Grant for an amount not to exceed $1,151,630 
for the Laguna Lot Infiltration Paver Project; and 

F. Authorize the increase of estimated revenues and appropriations in the Fiscal Year 
2015 Facilities Fund by $1,151,630 for the Laguna Lot Infiltration Paver Project. 

 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Background 
 
Storm water and urban runoff from impervious surfaces are major sources of surface water 
quality degradation. Runoff from streets, alleys, sidewalks, and parking lots often contains 
pollutants including hydrocarbons, fine sediments, bacteria, metals, nutrients, and other 
pollutants that are toxic to aquatic organisms and potentially harmful to human health. 



Council Agenda Report 
Resolutions Authorizing Execution Of Two Grant Agreements With The State Of California 
For Storm Water Infiltration Projects And Acceptance Of Grant Funds Totaling $3,458,640 
July 15, 2014 
Page 2 
 
 
Project Descriptions 
 
The purpose of these projects is to design and install permeable paver systems to treat 
storm water and urban runoff through infiltration.   
 
Project 1 - The Low Impact Development (LID) – Streets, Sidewalks, and Alleys Project 
will retrofit paved areas at three sites.  This project will replace over 90,000 square feet of 
existing asphalt and concrete with permeable pavers. This will allow storm water and 
urban runoff to infiltrate into the soil, providing water treatment and groundwater recharge.  
The project is located at the following sites: 
 

1) The sidewalks surrounding Alice Keck Park Memorial Gardens 
2) Plaza de Vera Cruz Alley 
3) The 600 and 700 blocks of North Quarantina Street 

 
Project 2 - The Laguna Lot Infiltration Paver Project will retrofit the City-owned parking lot 
located on the 600 block of Laguna Street that serves as employee and public parking, as 
well as maintenance fleet parking for several Parks and Recreation Department and Public 
Works Department divisions. This project will replace almost 62,000 square feet of existing 
asphalt and concrete with permeable pavers, also allowing for storm water and urban 
runoff to infiltrate into the soil. 
 
These sites were selected because they are high use areas, provide an opportunity to 
remove a significant area of impermeable surfaces, and drain directly into Mission and 
Laguna Creeks.  The primary purpose of the pavers is to detain and filter polluted storm 
water and incidental urban runoff through passive infiltration without compromising the 
existing use of the streets, sidewalks, alleys, parking lot, or surrounding structures.  A 
secondary purpose of this project is to serve as a demonstration of how to retrofit existing 
streets, sidewalks, alleys, and parking lots to improve water quality while minimizing the 
cost of construction and post construction maintenance. 
 
Grant Funding 
 
Proposition 84, the Safe Drinking Water, Water Quality and Supply, Flood Control, River and 
Coastal Protection Bond Act of 2006, was approved by California voters in the general 
election on November 7, 2006. Proposition 84 provides the State Water Board $90 million for 
matching grants to local public agencies for the reduction and prevention of storm water 
contamination of rivers, lakes, and streams (PRC § 75050[m]).  After bond and program 
administration costs, approximately $82 million was made available for projects.  Projects 
must either implement LID strategies or assist in compliance of established storm water Total 
Maximum Daily Loads. The State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) has distributed 
Storm Water Grant Program (SWGP) funding through two rounds of funding.  The program 
does require recipients to provide 20% matching funds for the grant awards. 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Resolutions Authorizing Execution Of Two Grant Agreements With The State Of California 
For Storm Water Infiltration Projects And Acceptance Of Grant Funds Totaling $3,458,640 
July 15, 2014 
Page 3 
 
Although competition was extremely high for these funds, the Creeks Division was 
awarded a $2,307,010 grant for the LID – Streets, Sidewalks, and Alleys Project, and the 
Facilities Division was awarded $1,151,630 for the Laguna Lot Infiltration Paver Project.  
These projects were selected because they implement LID strategies and improve water 
quality in Santa Barbara creeks.  With the successful design and installation of permeable 
pavers at the MacKenzie Park Parking Lot in 2011, and the Storm Water Infiltration Project 
at Oak Park, Stevens Park, and the Westside Neighborhood Center in 2013 (partially 
funded by Proposition 84 Round 1 grant funds), the City has demonstrated the capacity to 
implement LID projects.   
 
The SWGP guidelines require a resolution authorizing the applicant’s representative to 
negotiate and execute a grant agreement.  Once a grant agreement has been executed 
and construction plans and specifications have been completed, the project will be put out 
to bid for construction.  Construction is anticipated to take place between April 2015 and 
September 2016 for both projects. 
 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
Project 1- The total estimated cost of the project is $2,920,992.  The grant will provide 
$2,307,010 toward the design and construction of the LID - Streets, Sidewalks, and Alleys 
Project.  It is estimated that the project will require Measure B matching funds in the 
amount of $613,982.  Final project costs will be determined once construction bids are 
received.  Measure B matching funds for the project are available in the Creeks Division 
Capital Improvement Program and Creeks Fund Reserve. 
 
Project 2 - The total estimated cost of the project is $1,463,744.  The grant will provide 
$1,151,630 toward the design and construction of the Laguna Lot Infiltration Paver Project. 
The match funding required for the grant is $312,114. Staff anticipate providing the match 
through a combination of in-kind services and appropriations from the Facilities Capital 
Fund reserves. Staff will request appropriation reserves at the time the construction 
contract is awarded. 
 
SUSTAINABILITY IMPACT:   
 
Storm water and urban runoff from impervious surfaces are a major source of surface 
water quality degradation.  Infiltrating polluted runoff provides passive treatment at the 
source, which enhances watersheds and beaches, reduces damaging peak storm water 
flows, recharges groundwater, and requires no power consumption for operation. 
 
PREPARED BY: Cameron Benson, Creeks Restoration/Clean Water Manager 
 Jim Dewey, Facilities Manager 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Nancy L. Rapp, Parks and Recreation Director 
 Rebecca Bjork, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator's Office 



1 
 

RESOLUTION NO:    
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA AUTHORIZING THE PARKS AND 
RECREATION DIRECTOR, OR DESIGNEE, TO NEGOTIATE 
AND EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT, AND ANY 
AMENDMENTS THERETO, WITH THE STATE OF 
CALIFORNIA FOR THE CITY OF SANTA BARBARA LOW 
IIMPACT DEVELOPMENT – STREETS, SIDEWALKS, AND 
ALLEYS PROJECT 

 
City of Santa Barbara Low Impact Development – Streets, Sidewalks, and Alleys 
Project 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Santa Barbara is authorized to enter into an agreement with the 
State of California;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA 
BARBARA AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1.  The Parks and Recreation Director, or designee, of the City of Santa 
Barbara is hereby authorized to negotiate and execute an agreement, and any 
amendments thereto, between the City of Santa Barbara and the State of California for the 
City of Santa Barbara LID – Streets, Sidewalks, and Alleys Project according to the terms 
and conditions set forth in the agreement. 
 
SECTION 2.  The Council appoints the Parks and Recreation Director, or designee, as 
representative of the City of Santa Barbara to conduct negotiations, and execute and 
submit all documents, including, but not limited to, applications, agreements, amendments, 
payment requests, and other documents, which may be necessary for the completion of 
the proposed project. 
 



1 
 

RESOLUTION NO:    
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA AUTHORIZING THE PUBLIC WORKS 
DIRECTOR, OR DESIGNEE, TO NEGOTIATE AND 
EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT, AND ANY AMENDMENTS 
THERETO, WITH THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA FOR THE 
LAGUNA LOT INFILTRATION PAVER PROJECT 

 
Laguna Lot Infiltration Paver Project 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Santa Barbara is authorized to enter into an agreement with the 
State of California;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA 
BARBARA AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1.  The Public Works Director, or designee, of the City of Santa Barbara is 
hereby authorized to negotiate and execute an agreement between the City of Santa 
Barbara and the State of California for the Laguna Lot Infiltration Paver Project 
according to the terms and conditions set forth in the agreement; and 
 
SECTION 2.  The Council appoints the Public Works Director, or designee, as 
representative of the City of Santa Barbara to conduct negotiations, and execute and 
submit all documents including, but not limited to, applications, agreements, 
amendments, payment requests and other documents which may be necessary for the 
completion of the proposed project. 

 



Agenda Item No.  5 
 

File Code No.  230.05 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 
 

 
AGENDA DATE: July 15, 2014 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Water Resources Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Corrected City Fee Resolution 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
That Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of 
Santa Barbara Correcting the Establishment of Certain City Fees and Rescinding a 
Portion of Resolution No. 14-045. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
On June 17, 2014, as a part of adopting the City’s Fiscal Year 2015 budget, the Council 
adopted Resolution No. 14-045 establishing Citywide fees for Fiscal Year 2015.  Staff 
has discovered a typographical error in the section of the new fee resolution that deals 
with rates for City water service.  Section 1.C.1, relating to metered water charges for 
the Single Family Residential customers, provides 4 hundred cubic feet (HCF) per 
month at $3.28 per HCF and the next 12 HCF per month at $6.39 per HCF, with all 
remaining usage incorrectly described as “Over 18 HCF.”  The correct notation should 
be “Over 16 HCF,” based on the sum of the first block allotment of 4 HCF and the 
second block allotment of 12 HCF.  The Proposition 218 rate notice mailed to customers 
prior to rate adoption, as well as other informational materials sent to customers and 
presented during budget hearings, correctly noted that the Block 3 rate would apply to 
usage over 16 HCF/month.  The recommended resolution is a corrected version of the 
complete City fee resolution.      
 
 
PREPARED BY: Joshua Haggmark, Acting Water Resources Manager/BF 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Rebecca J. Bjork, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO. _____        
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA CORRECTING THE ESTABLISHMENT 
OF CERTAIN CITY FEES AND RESCINDING A PORTION 
OF RESOLUTION NO. 14-045 

 

WHEREAS, the City provides, maintains and operates a variety of programs and 
services to the public; 

WHEREAS, certain sections of the state and municipal code authorize the imposition 
and collection of fees to defray the costs of providing certain programs and services;  

WHEREAS, certain fee schedules as attached cite the specific state or municipal 
authority under which fees and charges are collected; and, 

WHEREAS, Resolution No. 14-045, adopted June 17, 2014 contains a typographical 
error in Section 1.C.1 of the Water Rates and Fees section corrected as follows: 

PAGE 110 
1. Residential Single Family   

First 4 hcf  $3.28 
Next 12 hcf    $6.39 
Over 18 16 hcf  $13.44 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA 
BARBARA THAT: 

 

Section 1.  The Council hereby determines and finds that: 
 

a. Funds are needed to defray the cost of providing programs and services 
furnished by the City. 

 
b. The funds needed to defray such operating expenses can and should be 

obtained by setting fees and charges for these programs and services.  
 
c. The setting of fees and charges for these programs and services is exempt 

from compliance with the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA) under Public Resources Code Section 21080(b)(8)(1)-(4) and Title 14 of the 
California Administrative Code, Section 15273(a)(1)-(4). 
 

Section 2. The penalties, fees, and service charges for the Fiscal Year 2015 are adopted 
as set forth in the City of Santa Barbara Schedule of Penalties, Fees and Service 
Charges, attached hereto. 
 

Section 3. The penalties, fees, and service charges contained in the attached schedule 
shall be effective July 1, 2014, unless otherwise indicated. 
 

Section 4. Section 1.C.1 of the Water Rates and Fees section of Resolution No. 14-045 
is hereby rescinded.    
 

Section 5. All other fee resolutions in effect and not rescinded herein, shall remain in full 
force. 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
[This page is intentionally left blank.] 





































































































































































































































 

 

defined in Subsection B above.  Usage shall be measured in units of 100 cubic 
feet (HCF). 

 
Usage Quantities 
(Monthly, except as specified) 

 Rate 
($/HCF) 

   
1. Residential Single Family   

First 4 hcf  $3.28 
Next 12 hcf    $6.39 
Over 18 16 hcf  $13.44 

   
2. Multi-Family 1-4 Dwelling Units   

First 4 hcf/unit  $3.28 
Next 4 hcf/unit  $6.39 
Over 8 hcf/unit    $13.44 

   
3. Multi-Family Over 4 Dwelling Units   

First 4 hcf/unit  $3.28 
Next 4 hcf/unit  $6.39 
Over 8 hcf/unit  $13.44 

   
4. Commercial   

Up to 100% of base allotment:  $5.32 
All other use:  $11.61 

   
5. Industrial   

Up to 100% of base allotment:  $5.32 
All other use:  $11.61 

   
6. Irrigation - Potable: 

The first tier of all irrigation accounts shall be calculated using the 
following formula: 
 

Monthly Water Budget  = (ETo)(.62/748)((PF x HA)/IE))  
 
Where 
 ETo = Reference evapotranspiration (weather factor) 
 0.62/748 = Conversion factor (inches to HCF) 
 PF = Plant factor  
 HA =Square footage of irrigated area(s) 

110









































Agenda Item No.  6 

File Code No.  560.04 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: July 15, 2014 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Facility Planning and Development Division, Airport Department 
 
SUBJECT: Tecolotito Creek Berm And Verhelle Bridge Year 8; Basin E/F Tidal 

Restoration Year 4 And Monitoring Contract 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council approve and authorize the Airport Director to execute a contract with URS 
Corporation for post-construction biological monitoring for the Basin E/F Tidal 
Restoration Project, in an amount not to exceed $64,177, and authorize the Airport 
Director to approve expenditures up to $6,417 for extra services that may result from 
necessary changes in the scope of work. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Tecolotito Creek Berm and Verhelle Bridge Restoration Sites were constructed in 2006.  
In 2013 they did not meet the native plant cover criteria required under the permit for the 
Airfield Safety Projects.  Additional seeding and weeding took place in April 2014.  The 
work in this contract will provide final monitoring and reporting to complete these two 
mitigation projects. 
 
The Tidal Restoration Demonstration Project also began in February 2006 to determine 
the ecological and safety effects of restoring tidal circulation in the Goleta Slough.  That 
project demonstrated an increase in biodiversity with a decrease in bird-aircraft strike 
hazard (BASH) risk.  In September 2010, the Airport Department began construction of 
the Basin E/F Tidal Restoration Project as final biological mitigation for the Airfield 
Safety Projects.  The work under this contract will be monitoring and maintenance of the 
Basin E/F Restoration Site for year 4 of the Airport’s 7 year mitigation monitoring permit 
obligation. 
 
Consultant Selection 
In September 2006, the Airport solicited for biological monitoring and reporting services 
associated with this project.  Consistent with federal requirements, the consultant 
selection process followed federal guidelines, which require selection based on the 
qualifications of the consultant, not a fee-based bid.  The fee is negotiated after the 
best-qualified consultant is identified. 



Council Agenda Report 
Tecolotito Creek Berm And Verhelle Bridge Year 8; Basin E/F Tidal Restoration Year 4 
And Monitoring Contract  
July 15, 2014 
Page 2 

 

 
Requests for Proposals were sent to qualified firms, and four responses were received.  
All four responding firms were interviewed and URS Corporation was ranked as having 
the best qualifications for the work involved.   
 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
Funds for this contract are available in the Airport Department Operating Budget. 
 
SUSTAINABILITY IMPACT:   
 
This contract will further the City’s sustainability program by enhancing the Goleta 
Slough Reserve ecosystem and protecting it from threats such as invasive plant 
species. 
 
PREPARED BY: Andrew Bermond, AICP, Project Planner 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Hazel Johns, Airport Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



Agenda Item No.  7 
 

File Code No.  560.04 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: July 15, 2014 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Administration Division, Airport Department 
 
SUBJECT: Acceptance Of Federal Aviation Administration Airport Improvement 
 Program Grant Offer For Santa Barbara Airport 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council accept and authorize the Airport Director to execute, on behalf of the City, 
a Federal Aviation Administration Grant offer, No. 3-06-0235-47, in an amount not to 
exceed $2,700,000 in Airport Improvement Program (AIP) funds, for the rehabilitation of 
Runway 15L-33R and General Aviation Aprons, the purchase of four lighted “X” runway 
closure signals, and a Wildlife Hazard Assessment and Wildlife Hazard Management 
Plan Update.   
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Background 
 
The FAA, under authorization from the United States Congress, distributes AIP funds 
each year.  Half of each year’s authorized level of AIP funding is distributed to all 
eligible commercial service airports through an entitlement program that guarantees a 
minimum level of federal assistance each year based on prior year passenger 
enplanement levels.  The remaining AIP funds are distributed on a discretionary basis.   
Santa Barbara’s total funding amount for the 2014 entitlement grant is estimated at 
$2,700,000.  
 
Grant Projects 
 
The Runway 15L-33R and General Aviation Apron Rehabilitation and Seal Coat project 
will extend the useful life of portions of the airfield and remove foreign object debris 
hazards.  Pavement for Runway 15L-33R and terminal apron areas is 10-15 years old 
and in poor condition.  The general aviation apron area is more than 50 years old and in 
very poor condition. 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Acceptance Of Federal Aviation Administration Airport Improvement Program Grant 
Offer For Santa Barbara Airport 
July 15, 2014 
Page 2 
 

 

The second project will replace four lighted “X” runway closure signals.  Existing signals 
are 10-20 years old and require extensive maintenance during runway closures.  Failure 
of the lighted “X”’s poses a potential safety risk as a closed runway may be improperly 
marked.   
 
The Wildlife Hazard Assessment and Wildlife Hazard Management Plan Update will 
identify new wildlife strike hazards, wildlife attractants, and mitigation/minimization 
strategies to safely and environmentally responsibly minimize the risk of bird strike 
hazards in response to the Santa Barbara County Flood Control District’s decision to 
discontinue maintenance of an open channel at the mouth of the Goleta Slough estuary. 
 
Grant Offer 
 
Airport staff has been verbally notified by FAA that the Airport Improvement Grant 
application has been approved.  In order to meet the FAA’s deadline for acceptance of 
the grant award, staff is requesting early authorization, based upon the verbal 
notification, for the Airport Director to execute the grant agreements for the Federal 
Fiscal Year 2014, when the actual documents with the specific fund amounts arrive. 
 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
Upon receipt of the actual grant agreements, staff will return to Council to appropriate 
the grant revenue and matching sponsor share, 9.3% of the total project cost, which will 
be funded from the Airport Capital fund. 
 
 
PREPARED BY: Hazel Johns, Airport Director 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Hazel Johns, Airport Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



Agenda Item No.  8 
 

File Code No.  610.01 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 

AGENDA DATE: July 15, 2014 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Administration, Housing & Human Services Division,  
 Community Development Department  
 
SUBJECT: Maintenance Agreement With Accela, Inc., For Land Development 

Permit Tracking System 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  That Council:  
 
A. Approve and authorize the General Services Manager to issue a purchase order for 

$55,221 with Accela, Inc., as the only known source for maintenance services for 
the City’s Tidemark Advantage permit tracking software; and  

B. Authorize the renewal of the maintenance purchase order on an annual basis for 
up to five years, subject to annual budget approval. 

 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The City of Santa Barbara’s Land Development Team (LDT) uses Accela, Inc. as the 
provider for permit tracking system, Tidemark Advantage, along with various modules 
such as Cashier for processing LDT payments.  Accela, Inc. is the developer of the 
software system and is the only known source that can provide the maintenance. 
 
The LDT plans to replace its permit tracking software and has collected approximately 
$700,000 in permit fees to pay for the replacement. The Request for Proposal process 
will begin in early Fiscal Year 2015.  It is expected to take at least two years until a new 
system is up and running, and it is highly recommended that a maintenance agreement 
remain in place until that time. 
 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
Funds are available in the Community Development Department’s Fiscal Year 2015 
budget for the annual maintenance.  No additional appropriations are required. 
 
 
PREPARED BY: Sue Gray, Community Development Business Manager 
 
SUBMITTED BY: George Buell, Community Development Director  
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 



Agenda Item No.  9 
 

File Code No.  540.10 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 
 
 

 
AGENDA DATE: July 15, 2014 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Engineering Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Increase In Design Support Services For The Alameda Park Well 

Relocation Project 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council authorize an increase in the extra services amount with Pueblo Water 
Resources for professional hydrogeologic and engineering services for the Alameda 
Park Well Relocation Project, Contract No. 24,839, in the amount of $21,632, for a total 
project expenditure authority of $186,083. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The Alameda Park Well (Well) was constructed in 1990 and draws water from 
Groundwater Storage Unit 1 in the downtown area. The City relies on this Well to 
provide irrigation water to the park as well as one of the many potable water sources 
that meets the needs of its customers citywide. The existing Well has sand migrating 
into the casing due to corrosion and is no longer viable for water production. 
 
The proposed work consists of undertaking the hydrogeologic and engineering services 
necessary to assess the relocation of a new Well on or near the City’s property at 200 
East Micheltorena Street. It also includes developing plans, specifications, and 
estimates for drilling, developing, and connecting the new Well to the City’s water 
distribution system; permitting assistance, and providing construction support during the 
implementation of the developed plans. 
 
CURRENT STATUS 
 
The design kickoff meeting for the Alameda Park Well Relocation Project (Project) was 
held on May 28, 2014, with the consultant and staff from the City’s Parks and 
Recreation Department. From this meeting, both parties agreed that a landscape 
architect and arborist services would be required for completion of design services. At 



Council Agenda Report 
Increase In Design Support Services For The Alameda Park Well Relocation Project  
July 15, 2014 
Page 2 
 

 

the request of the City, Pueblo Water Resources has retained sub-contractors to 
perform these services. The costs listed reflect this change in design scope. 
 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
FUNDING   
 
The following summarizes the expenditures recommended in this report: 
 

(TYPE OF) SERVICES CONTRACT FUNDING SUMMARY 
 

 
Base 

Contract 
Change Order 

 
Total 

 

Initial Contract Amount $149,501 $14,950 $164,451 

Proposed Increase $0 $21,632 $21,632 

Total $149,501 $36,582 $186,083 
 
The following summarizes all Project design costs, construction contract funding, and 
other Project costs. 
 

ESTIMATED TOTAL PROJECT COST  
*Cents have been rounded to the nearest dollar in this table.   

 

Design (by Contract) $149,501 
Other Design Costs (Contract) $14,950 
Design Management (by City Staff) $143,404 
Increased Costs $21,632 
Design                                                                               Subtotal $329,487 

Construction                                                                     Subtotal $1,820,000 

Project Total $2,149,487 
 
If the recommendation is approved, the total professional services contract expenditure 
authority will be increased to $186,083.  
 
There are sufficient appropriated funds in the Drought Water Fund for this cost. The 
funds will be taken from budgeted costs for water purchases in Fiscal Year 2015, 
totaling $3 million. Staff does not anticipate needing all of these funds.  
 
PREPARED BY: Amanda Flesse, Supervising Engineer/PM/mj 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Rebecca J. Bjork, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 



Agenda Item No.  10 

File Code No.  520.04 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: July 15, 2014 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Police Department, Patrol Division 
 
SUBJECT: Service Agreement With “Thresholds To Recovery” For Operation Of 

The Sobering Center At The Faulding Hotel 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council approve and authorize the Chief of Police to negotiate and execute a 
three-year service agreement with Thresholds to Recovery, Inc., to operate the 
Sobering Center beginning July 1, 2014, and ending June 30, 2017, with annual fees 
not to exceed $206,652 in Fiscal Year 2015, $208,716 in Fiscal Year 2016, and 
$215,496 in Fiscal Year 2017. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The City has used Thresholds to Recovery, Inc., to operate the Sobering Center at the 
Faulding Hotel since 1994.  The purpose of the Sobering Center is to provide an 
opportunity for public inebriates to voluntarily get sober in a safe, alcohol-free 
environment, as opposed to being arrested and booked into Santa Barbara County Jail.   
Having public inebriates treated at the Sobering Center reduces police officers’ time to 
address this issue and permits officers to remain in the City to handle other urgent 
matters.   
 
From June 1, 2013, to May 31, 2014, Thresholds to Recovery, Inc., processed 414 first-
time offenders and 288 repeat offenders for a total of 702 admissions.  Since opening in 
1994, Thresholds to Recovery, Inc., has processed approximately 13,400 first-time 
individual admissions and 21,600 total client admissions. 
 
Funds to operate the Sobering Center come from monies previously allocated to pay for 
the public inebriates’ jail booking fees.  Personnel at Thresholds to Recovery are 
experts in the field of drug and alcohol programs, targeting low-income clients.  
Continued success is anticipated based on the positive program evaluations (performed 
annually) received over the past nine years.  Sobering Center has  continued to be an 
excellent treatment network for first-time offenders. Therefore, the Sobering Center is a 
valuable resource to the Police Department and the community.  
 



Council Agenda Report 
Service Agreement With “Thresholds To Recovery” For Operation Of The Sobering Center 
At The Faulding Hotel 
July 15, 2014 
Page 2 

 

BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
Funding for this contract is included in the Police Department’s Fiscal Year 2015 
budget. 
 
Thresholds to Recovery, Inc., has agreed to operate the Sobering Center for fees of up 
to $206,652 in Fiscal Year 2015, $208,716 in Fiscal Year 2016 and $215,496 in Fiscal 
Year 2017.  These amounts represent an increase of 4% in total operating costs over 
the three year period.  
 
Thresholds to Recovery, Inc., is receiving funds that are legislatively appropriated on a 
single fiscal year basis. As such, the City reserves the right to cancel this Agreement 
upon not less than thirty (30) days’ notice if funds are not appropriated in subsequent 
fiscal years or are otherwise made unavailable to the City to support continuation of the 
agreement.  
 
 
PREPARED BY: Brent Mandrell, Police Lieutenant 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Camerino Sanchez, Chief of Police 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



Agenda Item No.  11 

File Code No.  520.04 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: July 15, 2014 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Chief’s Staff, Police Department 
 
SUBJECT: Appropriation Of Funds From The K9 Unit Trust  
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council appropriate $45,000 from the Police K9 Unit Trust Fund reserves to cover 
Fiscal Year 2015 expenses related to the annual care, maintenance and training of 
police dogs for the K9 Program. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The City maintains a trust fund for donations received for the benefit of the Santa 
Barbara Police Department K9 Program.  These funds are used to help offset the cost 
of training, maintaining and procuring police dogs, as well as the day to day equipment 
necessary in maintaining a healthy working environment. 
 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
There are sufficient reserve funds available in the trust to cover the transfer for annual 
expenses. 
 
PREPARED BY: David Whitham, Captain 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Camerino Sanchez, Chief of Police 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



Agenda Item No.  12 

File Code No.  330.04 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE:  July 15, 2014 
 
TO:    Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM:   Administration Division, Parks and Recreation Department 
 
SUBJECT:  Rental Agreement For Hilda Ray House 
 

RECOMMENDATION:   

That Council authorize the Parks and Recreation Director to enter into a one-year rental 
agreement with Tatum Marie Sarinana for the Hilda Ray House at Hilda McIntyre Ray 
Park, commencing July 1, 2014, and ending June 30, 2015, for a monthly amount of 
$1,294. 

DISCUSSION:   

The house at Hilda McIntyre Ray Park was rehabilitated in 1995 using Housing 
Rehabilitation Loan Program funds, establishing the house as low-income housing. The 
two-bedroom, one-bath house became available for rent after the last tenant vacated 
the property in August 2004. The house underwent repairs and some minor 
improvements. The Parks and Recreation Department developed a process in 
December 2005 to advertise and select a tenant for the house.  The house was made 
available to all who met the Federal income requirements.  A committee consisting of 
the then, Parks and Recreation Business Manager, Parks and Recreation Community 
Services Supervisor, and Community Development Department Housing Programs 
Specialist reviewed all applications received.  Ms. Tatum Marie Sarinana was selected.  
Ms. Sarinana and her two children currently reside in the house.   

Ms. Sarinana will be responsible to pay monthly rent of $1,294 and maintain the house 
and yard. There are no duties assigned to the tenant as would be associated with a 
park caretaker; this arrangement is strictly a rental agreement. 

A copy of this agreement is available in the City Clerk’s Office for public review. 



Council Agenda Report 
Rental Agreement For Hilda Ray House  
July 15, 2014 
Page 2 

 

BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION:   

The rent for the house is $1,294 per month. The funds are utilized to repay the Federal 
loan and a portion goes into a reserve account to pay for maintenance and repair on the 
house.  There is no fiscal impact to the Department budget for maintenance of this 
residence. 

PREPARED BY: Jill E. Zachary, Assistant Parks and Recreation Director 

SUBMITTED BY: Nancy L. Rapp, Parks and Recreation Director 

APPROVED BY: City Administrator's Office 



Agenda Item No.  13 

File Code No.  210.01 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: July 15, 2014 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM:  Accounting Division, Finance Department 
 
SUBJECT: Professional Services Agreement - Consulting Services For 

Accounting Software Implementation 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council authorize the Finance Director to execute a two-year professional services 
agreement with Lance, Soll & Lunghard, LLP, Certified Public Accountants, to perform 
consulting services for assistance with implementing the CaseWare Working Papers 
accounting software, in a total two-year amount not to exceed $38,865. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Currently the Finance Department compiles and produces the Comprehensive Annual 
Financial Report (CAFR) using Microsoft Office products. As the software programs 
utilized to produce the CAFR are not integrated, there is a significant amount of work 
effort in maintaining the individual programs causing inefficiencies in the Finance 
Department and a higher risk for error.  
 
A software solution was provided as a component of Munis, the new financial 
management system from Tyler Technologies; however, after a thorough review and 
analysis of this module, it was determined to be only a partial solution and it failed to 
provide an integrated solution for the CAFR.  
 
Based on an extensive analysis of available software packages capable of providing an 
integrated software solution for the compilation and preparation of the Comprehensive 
Annual Financial Report, the Finance Department has selected the CaseWare Working 
Papers (CaseWare) software for an annual licensing cost of $6,565. The software 
product will allow for increased efficiencies in the Finance Department with regards to 
preparation of the CAFR, audit work papers and interim financial reports. It will also 
reduce staff overtime costs and the likelihood and/or frequency of reporting errors due 
to the integrated features of the system. 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Professional Services Agreement - Consulting Services For Accounting Software 
Implementation  
July 15, 2014 
Page 2 

 
 

 

Due to the expertise required for CaseWare implementation and limited staffing 
resources in the Finance Department and Information Systems Department - primarily 
resulting from the ongoing Munis implementation project - the Finance Department is 
recommending the City enter into a contract with the City’s current external auditors, 
Lance, Soll & Lunghard, LLP (LSL), to provide professional consulting services to assist 
with the implementation of CaseWare at a two-year amount not to exceed $38,865. LSL 
has extensive experience with implementing and utilizing CaseWare and currently uses 
the software to produce CAFRs for a significant number of its municipal clients. As the 
City’s current external auditors, LSL is both familiar with the City’s operations and 
financial account structure necessary to assist with the set-up and implementation of 
CaseWare for the City. 
 
Consulting services to be provided by LSL include three distinct elements as described 
below.  
 
CaseWare Implementation - Fiscal Year 2014 CAFR - $18,780 
 
During Fiscal Year 2015, LSL will implement the financial statement component of 
CaseWare to produce all of the financial statements contained within the CAFR. In 
addition, LSL will produce the footnote and statistical sections of the CAFR utilizing data 
exported from CaseWare. Training on CaseWare fundamentals, closing working papers 
and financial statement maintenance and production utilizing CaseWare will be provided 
by LSL. Five (5) hours of technical support and project assistance are included in this 
element of the software implementation.  
 
Monthly Interim Reporting - $5,675 
 
LSL will develop a customized reporting model utilizing CaseWare to produce monthly 
interim financial reports. As a component of the Munis implementation project, custom 
interim reports were scheduled to be developed at either an hourly programming cost by 
Tyler Technologies or by City Information System staff to replace the interim reporting 
model made obsolete by the new financial management system. Due to enhanced 
features of the CaseWare software and resource limitations at Tyler Technologies and 
within Information Systems, Finance staff is recommending the use of CaseWare to 
produce the monthly interim reports. LSL will provide training on interim reporting tools, 
including the production and maintenance of the report tables.  
 
CaseWare Implementation – Fiscal Year 2015 CAFR - $14,410 
 
During Fiscal Year 2016, LSL will implement the final phase of the CaseWare software, 
titled CaseView, to produce all components of the CAFR. The implemented financial 
model will include all components of the introductory, financial and statistical sections of 
the CAFR. On-Site training on CaseView CAFR preparation and maintenance will be 



Council Agenda Report 
Professional Services Agreement - Consulting Services For Accounting Software 
Implementation  
July 15, 2014 
Page 3 

 
 

 

included. Fifteen (15) hours of technical support and project assistance are included in 
this second phase of the implementation. 
 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
Funding for the implementation of a CAFR module in Munis and the development of 
monthly interim reports was budgeted as a component of the new financial 
management system replacement project. Staff is recommending the use of available 
appropriations from the Munis implementation project in the Information Systems 
Capital Project Fund to fund the contract with LSL for consulting services as follows: 
 
 

Fiscal Year 2015  Fiscal Year 2016 

Phase 1 – 2014 CAFR $18,780  Phase 3 – 2015 CAFR $14,410 

Phase 2 – Interim Reporting $5,675  Total FY16 $14,410 

Total FY15 $24,455  

 
 
PREPARED BY: Julie Nemes, Accounting Manager 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Robert Samario, Finance Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator's Office 
 



Agenda Item No.  14 

File Code No.  230.02 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE:  July 15, 2014 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Accounting Divisions, Finance Department 
 
SUBJECT: Grant Agreement With South Coast Community Media Access 

Center 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council authorize the Finance Director to execute a grant agreement, in a form 
acceptable to the City Attorney, with the South Coast Community Media Access Center for 
management of the public and educational access television channels, in an amount of 
$295,000, plus an amount for public, educational and government access (PEG) capital 
expenditures equal to 50% of the actual PEG fees received by the City for Fiscal Year 
2015, in an amount not to exceed $150,208. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Since January 1, 2003, upon its formation, the South Coast Community Media Access 
Center, doing business as TV Santa Barbara (TVSB), has been designated by the 
County of Santa Barbara under its cable franchise with Cox Communications as the 
nonprofit entity to manage the public and educational access channels in the Santa 
Barbara South Coast region. The City has maintained annual grant agreements with 
TVSB since that time.  
 
The Fiscal Year 2015 adopted budget includes $295,000 in base funding for 
management of the public and educational access television channels in the 
Community Promotions program. In accordance with the adopted Fiscal Year 2015 
budget, the operational funding for TVSB provided in this agreement includes a 2% 
increase in funding as compared to the Fiscal Year 2014 agreement. The adopted 
Community Promotions budget also includes an additional amount not to exceed 
$150,208 for PEG capital expenditures generated from PEG fees levied on Cox 
Communications.  
 



Council Agenda Report 
Grant Agreement With South Coast Community Media Access Center 
July 15, 2014 
Page 2 
 
 

 

The following is a summary of the major provisions of the proposed grant agreement with 
TVSB for fiscal year 2014: 
 

1. Term:  July 1, 2014 – June 30, 2015 
 
2. Base Funding: The City will grant TVSB quarterly advance payments of $70,000 for 

public and educational access support for a total of $280,000. Additionally, the City 
will grant $15,000 to be paid in January 2015, dedicated for support of educational 
access. The total annual base funding of $295,000 represents a 2% increase in 
funding as compared to the Fiscal Year 2014 agreement. 

 
3. PEG Capital Funding: Under the current state video franchising law, PEG fees may 

be levied on video service providers and are restricted to PEG-related capital 
expenditures. The City will grant TVSB an additional amount not to exceed 
$138,000 from PEG fees received by the City for Fiscal Year 2015 to be used 
solely for capital to cover the second year of capital expenditures contained in its 
Five Year Capital Improvement Plan.  
 
Resolution No. 13-049, adopted on June 18, 2013, includes a PEG fee of 1.0% of 
which 0.5% percent is designed to provide for capital funding to TVSB. The PEG 
capital funding will be paid quarterly, based on actual PEG fee collections during 
the previous quarter. The PEG capital funding of $138,000 is an increase from the 
current $126,000 contained in the Fiscal Year 2014 agreement. The increased 
capital funding will be paid by the additional PEG fees levied on Cox and, while not 
required to do so, Cox may elect to pass through the PEG fee increase to its 
subscribers on their cable bills. 
 
In addition to the PEG capital funding of $138,000 for Fiscal Year 2015, the City will 
grant TVSB an amount equal to $12,208, representing 50% of additional actual 
PEG fees received by the City for Fiscal Year 2014, to be used solely for capital 
expenditures. 

 
4. Indemnification: The City will be indemnified against any and all claims and actions 

arising from the performance of services under the agreement.  Indemnification is a 
standard provision in all City grant agreements, including human services and 
community promotions grants. All nonprofit entities receiving City grant funds are 
required to defend and indemnify the City from any and all claims which may arise 
as a result of the actions of the Grantee. 

 
5. Insurance: The insurance provisions are standard insurance requirements for City 

grant recipients with the exception of the liability policy requirements. Because of 
the specialized nature of services provided under the agreement, this agreement 
requires a media and broadcaster’s liability policy.  This is the same type of policy 
required of Cox Communications under the City’s prior franchise agreement. 

 



Council Agenda Report 
Grant Agreement With South Coast Community Media Access Center 
July 15, 2014 
Page 3 
 
 

 

6. Compliance with Laws and Regulations:  The agreement states that TVSB will 
comply with all applicable state and federal laws and regulations with specific 
reference to the Ralph M. Brown Act and the Public Records Act.  This language is 
consistent with the County of Santa Barbara’s legal compliance provisions in their 
operating agreement with CMAC and the previous City agreements with TVSB. 

 
The TVSB Board reviewed and accepted the agreement at its June 26, 2014, Board 
meeting.  Staff recommends Council authorize the Finance Director to execute the 
agreement.  
 
The contract is available for review in the City Clerk’s Office at City Hall at 735 Anacapa 
Street.  
 
 
PREPARED BY: Julie Nemes, Accounting Manager 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Robert Samario, Finance Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator's Office 
 





Agenda Item No.  16 
 

File Code No.  230.02 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 

AGENDA DATE:  July 15, 2014 
 
TO:    Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM:   City Administrator’s Office 
 
SUBJECT:  Community Promotion Contract With Santa Barbara International 

Film Festival 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
That Council authorize the City Administrator to execute an annual community 
promotion contract with Santa Barbara International Film Festival in the amount of 
$76,000, to support film festival programming and year-round administrative expenses. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The Mayor and Council’s Office Arts and Community Promotion budget includes 
$76,000 for the Santa Barbara International Film Festival for Fiscal Year 2015, an 
increase of $25,000 from the prior year. The funding will be used for the promotion of 
the festival and year-round administrative expenses.  The term of the contract extends 
over the period of July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014. The film festival will celebrate its 
30th anniversary with the event scheduled from January 27 to February 7, 2015. In the 
upcoming year, the festival will add an extra day and expand programming and free 
events. 
 
The festival has been recognized as one of the premiere film festivals, drawing 
thousands of visitors from outside Santa Barbara. Ticket sales and theater counts from 
2014 showed a 13% increase in attendance from the prior year. An extra day will be 
added to the festival in the upcoming year with an estimated 5,000 people attending, 
including approximately 1,950 out-of-town visitors.  
 
The economic impact from arts and cultural events in Santa Barbara is significant. 
Cultural arts programs and events provide a major boost to the local economy through 
ticket sales, sponsorships, services, supplies, and employee salaries. Recognizing 
cultural arts as a vital component of the community’s economic vitality and the 
importance of providing free entertainment to the community, the City provides $2.6 
million for events, festivals, and arts and community promotion organizations. 
 
The contract is available for review in the City Clerk’s Office at City Hall at 735 Anacapa 
Street.  
 



Council Agenda Report 
Community Promotion Contract With Santa Barbara International Film Festival 
July 15, 2014 
Page 2 
 

 

Document: Form Letters1  0/0/00 0:00 AM 

 
PREPARED BY: Nina Johnson, Assistant to the City Administrator 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Jim Armstrong, City Administrator 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator's Office 



Agenda Item No.  17 
 

File Code No.  230.02 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 

AGENDA DATE:  July 15, 2014 
 
TO:    Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM:   City Administrator’s Office 
 
SUBJECT:  Community Promotion Contract With Old Spanish Days 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
That Council authorize the City Administrator to execute a community promotion 
contract with Old Spanish Days in an amount of $98,000, covering the period from 
July 1, 2014 to June 30, 2015. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The Mayor and Council’s Office Arts and Community Promotion budget includes 
$98,000 for the Old Spanish Days organization for Fiscal Year 2015. The funding will be 
used for organizing, promoting, and sponsoring the community celebration of Fiesta, as 
well as supporting year-round administrative expenses. The funds will cover janitorial 
service for cleaning, trash pick-up, and portable toilets at the two “Mercados” and 
power-washing of the De la Guerra Mercado area. These funds will also partially cover 
promotional costs for posters and brochures.  
 
The Old Spanish Days community celebration known as Fiesta helps educate the 
community about the history and traditions of Santa Barbara’s heritage. The event 
includes a historic parade, evening variety shows, and marketplaces for entertainment, 
food and crafts. The community festival is a vehicle for numerous non-profit and service 
groups to raise funds for local causes.  
 
Old Spanish Days is celebrating its 90th anniversary with the event scheduled from July 
30 through August 3, 2014.  
 
The economic impact from arts and cultural events in Santa Barbara is significant. 
Cultural arts programs and events provide a major boost to the local economy through 
ticket sales, sponsorships, services, supplies, and employee salaries. Recognizing 
cultural arts as a vital component of the community’s economic vitality and the 
importance of providing free entertainment to the community, the City provides $2.6 
million for events, festivals, and arts and community promotion organizations. 
 
The contract is available for review in the City Clerk’s Office at City Hall at 735 Anacapa 
Street.  



Council Agenda Report 
Community Promotion Contract With Old Spanish Days 
July 15, 2014 
Page 2 
 

 

Document: Form Letters1  0/0/00 0:00 AM 

 
 
PREPARED BY: Nina Johnson, Assistant to the City Administrator 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Jim Armstrong, City Administrator 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator's Office 



Agenda Item No.  18 
 

File Code No.  230.02 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 

AGENDA DATE:  July 15, 2014 
 
TO:    Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM:   City Administrator’s Office 
 
SUBJECT:  Community Promotion Contract For The Santa Barbara Region 

Chamber Of Commerce To Support Visitor Information Center 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
That Council authorize the City Administrator to execute an annual community 
promotion contract with the Santa Barbara Region Chamber of Commerce in an amount 
of $56,000, to support year-round expenses of the Visitor Information Center, covering 
the period from August 1, 2014, to June 30, 2015. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The Mayor and Council’s Office Arts and Community Promotion budget includes 
$56,000 for the Santa Barbara Region Chamber of Commerce to operate the Visitor 
Information Center. This contract will help support year-round administrative expenses 
for the Visitor Information Center, including salary and benefit expenses and office 
services and supplies. Since the existing agreement with the Chamber expires on July 
31, the proposed agreement will be modified for the upcoming year to expire on June 30 
to more closely align with the fiscal year for future agreements.   
 
Located at 1 State Street, the Visitor Information Center assists visitors with wayfinding 
services, free maps, assistance with hotel reservations, and information on restaurants, 
points of interest, and arts and cultural activities. The Center provides services seven 
days a week for 55 hours per week between February and October and 50 hours per 
week between November and January.  
 
To enhance tourism and support the cultural arts community, the City provides 
approximately $2.6 million for events, festivals, and arts and community promotion 
organizations. 
 
The contract is available for review in the City Clerk’s Office at City Hall at 735 Anacapa 
Street.  
 
PREPARED BY: Nina Johnson, Assistant to the City Administrator 
SUBMITTED BY: Jim Armstrong, City Administrator 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator's Office 



Agenda Item No.  21 

File Code No.  540.05 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: July 15, 2014 
 
TO:   Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM:  Administration Division, Parks and Recreation Department 
 
SUBJECT:  Parks And Recreation 2014-2015 Strategic Drought Response Plan  
 

RECOMMENDATION:   

That Council receive a report on the Parks and Recreation Department’s 2014 Strategic 
Drought Response Plan and water conservation progress to date. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 
The Santa Barbara City Council declared a Stage One Drought on February 11, 2014. 
With only limited rainfall since then, a Stage Two Drought was declared on May 20, 2014, 
and Extraordinary Water Conservation Regulations have been adopted. City water users 
are required to reduce water use by 20%, more with irrigation. If rainfall continues to be 
below the norm, Santa Barbara could face a Stage Three Drought as early as next spring. 
To assist the Parks and Recreation Department (Department) in meeting water 
conservation objectives, staff developed the 2014-2015 Strategic Drought Response Plan 
to meet the City’s water conservation mandate. The Plan is intended as a working tool that 
will be modified as conditions change. 
 
In developing the Plan, a number of factors were taken into consideration, including short-
term and longer-term impacts of reduced irrigation, the need to protect historic and other 
resources, how the public uses parks and recreation facilities, programmatic changes, 
infrastructure modifications, and fiscal impacts. The Plan looks at parks, sports fields, 
trees, public landscape areas, recreation facilities, creek restoration areas, and the golf 
course. Water conservation strategies, water infrastructure efficiencies, irrigation priorities, 
public access/operational changes and fiscal concerns are addressed by area. 
 
Parks and recreation facilities are grouped into three irrigation priority categories, 1) No 
Change, 2) Irrigation Reduced 20-30%, and 3) No Irrigation. A number of significant or 
historic trees have been identified for supplemental watering. The West Beach Wading 
Pool will remain closed due to a leak, but the Oak Park Wading Pool will operate as usual. 
Extremely low flow showerheads (0.62gpm) are being installed in several department 
facilities and the number of activated showers is being reduced. The Municipal Golf 
Course has prioritized irrigation for those areas that most affect play. Outreach and public 



Council Agenda Report 
Parks And Recreation 2014-2015 Strategic Drought Response Plan  
July 15, 2014 
Page 2 
 

 

education is being emphasized in all park and recreation facilities to encourage water 
conservation.   
 
Since the Stage One Drought declaration in February, the Parks and Recreation 
Department’s water use is down by 34% through May compared to the same period last 
year. While this is good news, with drier and warmer conditions expected in the coming 
months, staff will be challenged to keep conservation between 20-30%, particularly as turf, 
shrubs, planter beds and trees are already suffering from three years of extremely dry 
conditions.  

DISCUSSION: 

Background 
 
The 2013-2014 rain year is the fifth driest year on record, and Santa Barbara is currently 
experiencing the driest three-year period on record. The Santa Barbara City Council 
declared a Stage One Drought on February 11, 2014, asking the community to voluntarily 
conserve water by 20%. With only limited rainfall since then, a Stage Two Drought was 
declared on May 20, 2014, and Extraordinary Water Conservation Regulations have been 
adopted. City water users are required to reduce water use by 20%, more with irrigation. 
To encourage compliance, higher water rates went into effect on July 1, 2014. If rainfall 
continues to be below the norm, Santa Barbara could face Stage Three Drought as early 
as next spring.  
 
2014 Strategic Drought Response Plan 
 
The Parks and Recreation Department manages a diverse array of public resources and 
facilities, including parks, trees, municipal golf course, recreation and community buildings, 
sports facilities, ballfields, pools and more. To assist the Department in meeting water 
conservation objectives staff developed the 2014 Strategic Drought Response Plan. The 
Plan is intended as a working tool that will be modified as progress and conditions change. 
Water conservation is the key objective. However, as stewards of the community’s park 
and recreation resources, the Department needs to carefully manage how and where 
water is used to mitigate long-term damage and potential loss of these valued community 
assets.   
 
In developing the Plan a number of factors were taken into consideration, including: 

1. Short-term and longer-term impact of reduced water use to turf, plants, and trees 
2. Need to protect historic and other resources  
3. Priorities for public use of certain parks and recreation facilities 
4. Programmatic changes which could conserve water use 
5. Modifications to irrigation and plumbing infrastructure to further increase water 

conservation 



Council Agenda Report 
Parks And Recreation 2014-2015 Strategic Drought Response Plan  
July 15, 2014 
Page 3 
 

 

6. Financial impacts due to increased cost of water, revenue loss from the changed 
appearance park and facility rentals areas; and, particularly, loss of play and 
revenue at the Santa Barbara Municipal Golf Course.  

 
The Plan includes Parks, Sports Fields and Public Landscaped Areas; Trees; Recreation 
Facilities (including facilities, pools, showers); Creek Restoration Areas; Golf Course; and, 
Department-wide efforts. For each area, the following are covered in depth: water 
conservation strategy, water infrastructure efficiencies, irrigation priorities, public 
access/operational changes and fiscal concerns.  
 
Overview of Parks and Recreation Water Use 
 
The Department uses both potable and recycled water. Seventy four percent (74%) of all 
water used is recycled water for irrigation. Potable water (26%) is used in restrooms, 
showers, kitchens, pools, ponds, drinking fountains and watering young trees.  At the golf 
course, the majority of water use is recycled. The primary use of potable water at the golf 
course is on the delicate golf greens (small, manicured area immediately surrounding each 
hole).  

 
Until construction of the Tertiary Treatment Facility Rehabilitation Project is complete in 
summer 2015, the recycled water system is delivering potable water. Once the plant is 
functioning, the Department’s use of potable water will decrease significantly, providing an 
equal benefit to the City’s potable water resources. Under normal circumstances, 1% of 
the City’s potable water use would be attributed to Parks, Recreation and Golf. With the 
recycled plant under construction, that potable water use increases to 3.2%.  
 
Some highlights of the Plan include: 
 
1. Parks, Sports Fields and Public Landscaped Areas 
The Parks Division is responsible for maintenance of 47 City parks, as well as landscaped 
areas of 26 sports facilities and recreation buildings, various City facilities such as the 



Council Agenda Report 
Parks And Recreation 2014-2015 Strategic Drought Response Plan  
July 15, 2014 
Page 4 
 

 

libraries and City Hall, as well as 81 medians, islands, and parkways areas throughout the 
City. Turf, planter beds, and trees are the main categories of plant material that are 
considered; turf irrigation is the largest water use in the Parks Division. Irrigation priorities 
have been determined based on how the area is used by the public, safety, types and 
characterization of horticultural or landscaping elements (i.e., historically important, unique 
species, etc.), as well as short and long-term impacts of sustained drought conditions. Two 
tables, Irrigation Priorities for Turf Areas and Irrigation Priorities for Planter Beds show how 
various park/facility areas are prioritized into three categories: No Change in Irrigation, 
Irrigation Reduced 20-30%, and Irrigation Off. For example, Alice Keck Park Memorial 
Garden with its unique horticultural assets and higher visitation, and ballfields which serve 
community recreation needs, are a higher irrigation priority than most other parks. In 
addition to changes to landscape irrigation, there will be new restrictions on water use for 
permitted events in parks and decorative water fountains in two parks have been turned 
off. Maintenance of water ponds in Chase Palm Park and Alice Keck Park Memorial 
Garden are not affected under Stage Two regulations. 
 
2. Trees 
The Parks Division is responsible for maintaining over 32,000 trees, including 23,600 
street trees, and 9,295 trees in parks and public property. With three years of drier weather 
many trees around the area are beginning to show stress. The general strategy will be to 
limit the loss of this important community resource. New trees are regularly watered the 
first three years to establish the root system, then watering is tapered off and the tree is 
sustained through rainfall or localized irrigation in parks or from front lawns.  No changes 
are planned to this operation; however, no new trees wil be planted while drought 
conditions persist. A number of trees have been prioritized to receive supplemental water, 
including those that are an important community asset, of a rare species, of high value, or 
are historic or a notable specimen.  Adjustments are being made in pruning practices for 
tree health and public safety. All trees will continue to receive the care and maintenance 
necessary for tree health and public safety. Staff is developing outreach tools to 
encourage residents to help water street trees 
 
3. Recreation Facilities  
The Recreation Division manages nine recreation and rental facilities, three neighborhood 
centers, two lawn bowl clubs, four community gardens, four swimming pools and two 
tennis facilities. Aquatic facilities (pools, showers, locker rooms) are the biggest water 
user. The emphasis in recreation facilities will be installation of additional low-water use 
plumbing fixtures and educating and encouraging facility users to conserve water, 
particularly in showers, kitchens and restrooms.  
 
The only change in pool programming is that West Beach Wading Pool will remain closed 
this summer season. The pool has a significant leak requiring extensive repairs; also, 
operation requires daily power washing for health and safety reasons. Oak Park Wading 
Pool will operate per normal schedule. A pool cover is being purchased for Ortega Park 
Pool to comply with Stage Two Drought Regulations. The Public Works Director has 
granted an exemption for Oak Park Wading Pool since the pool is drained every year 



Council Agenda Report 
Parks And Recreation 2014-2015 Strategic Drought Response Plan  
July 15, 2014 
Page 5 
 

 

when the pool is not in use.. Pool decks are routinely cleaned on a daily basis with hoses 
using high pressure/shut off water nozzles. To comply with Stage Two Drought 
Regulations the Department is purchasing three battery powered blowers for daily 
maintenance.  On an as needed basis, maintenance staff will spot clean using buckets 
and brushes or high pressure water nozzles to minimize the amount of water required to 
meet Health and Safety regulations.  
 
The Recreation Division manages five shower facilities. Extremely low-flow showerheads 
(0.62gpm) are being installed to reduce water use by 50% and signage will inform patrons 
that showers should not exceed five minutes.  At Los Baños, the Department is proposing 
to reduce the number of showerheads and install water cut off valves which would allow 
staff to turn off all non-health code required showers during summer recreation swim when 
showers are often left running and unattended. At Cabrillo Bathhouse, the number of 
showerheads will be reduced by 50% and installation of a handle activated shower will 
create a greater sense of urgency to take a shorter shower. The upper showerheads of the 
East Beach outside showers will be turned off, leaving the two, foot showers active. 
Showers at Municipal Tennis Facility, which have infrequent use, are being turned off. No 
changes are proposed at Carrillo Gym showers due to infrequent use; however, staff will 
carefully monitor use and implement changes as needed.  
 
The Department maintains 12 tennis courts at the Municipal Tennis Center and two tennis 
courts at Oak Park. Regular tennis court washing practices on City courts is conducted 
twice a week with a water efficient water broom using recycled water. To further conserve 
water, Tennis is purchasing a battery powered blower for daily court maintenance. As 
needed, the water broom will be used to remove any stubborn residues or materials that 
create unsafe playing surfaces.    
 
4. Creek Restoration Areas 
The Creek Restoration Water Quality Improvement Program has completed 12 creek 
restoration projects. Sites are initially irrigated for two to three years following plant 
installation and irrigation is completely shut off after three years. After June, only the 
Mission Creek Restoration Project at Tallant Road will receive occasional watering.  
 
5. Golf Course 
The Santa Barbara Golf Club, the City’s only municipal golf course, is open for play 364 
days a year, with over 4,000 people a year playing more than 64,000 rounds. The course 
operates as an enterprise fund, meaning it is dependent upon revenue generated at the 
course and does not receive any tax dollars. The challenges facing the golf course to 
maintain an attractive playing experience while conserving water are not to be 
underestimated. In the last major drought (1989-90), play declined over 25%, affecting 
revenues for the City and its concessionaires for several years. The golf course has faced 
serious financial setbacks over the last few years related to major construction and the 
recession. Although play has increased somewhat since the lowest point in 2009, it has 
still not recovered to pre- 2009 levels. Staff is very concerned about dry course conditions 



Council Agenda Report 
Parks And Recreation 2014-2015 Strategic Drought Response Plan  
July 15, 2014 
Page 6 
 

 

becoming a deterrent to play, further jeopardizing revenue and financial solvency of the 
municipal golf course.  
 
The golf course is set in just under 100 acres of land with 20 putting greens, hundreds of 
trees, and miles of fairway.  Careful and specialized management of irrigation will ensure 
the golf course meets the standards expected of paying customers, while demonstrating 
effective water conservation to achieve the desired reduction in water use. The Plan 
identifies which areas of the golf course are a higher priority for water use, with higher 
priorities being the greens, teaching areas, certain trees, and tee boxes. Lower priority 
areas include fairways, rough, and other low-traffic or non-playable areas. The Santa 
Barbara Golf Club has a well-earned reputation for the quality of putting surfaces – 
maintaining that reputation is the highest priority for the golf course. Given that, it is 
unlikely that much can be done to reduce the amount of water used on greens without 
damaging the turf beyond repair. Moreover, the grass on the greens is particularly 
sensitive to heat and dry conditions due to the need to maintain it at a shorter cut.   Since 
only 10% of the water used at the course is used on greens, it is expected that savings 
from other areas will negate the need to risk the putting surfaces.  
 
Hand watering is currently practiced on the greens and some trees to save water. When 
the weather is exceptionally dry and hot, it is necessary to use sprinklers or hand water the 
greens, which may occur outside of the allowed hours. The Public Works Director has 
approved an exemption from the Stage Two Drought Regulations to allow for watering the 
greens outside of allowed hours. Aerification has been stepped up and completed earlier 
in the year than would be typical, improving the water penetration and effectiveness. Turf 
maintenance equipment is now being cleaned using air pressure and will be washed with 
water far less often. The ProShop and Mulligans Restaurant are engaged in promoting 
water conservation within their respective businesses. Golf carts, routinely cleaned with 
hose and nozzle, are being washed with cloths. Full cart washes will be limited to once a 
month.  
 
6. Department-Wide Efforts  
Most significant drought responses are discussed by program. However, the Plan also 
addresses the following: 
• New planting projects in parks, facilities and public right of ways will likely be delayed 

until drought conditions improve.  
• The frequency of vehicle washing is being reduced except where there is risk of 

damage to equipment.  
• Outreach and Public Education is a critical component of implementing this Strategic 

Drought Response. Water conservation signage is being installed at the golf course 
and park areas, as well as public buildings, shower facilities, and restrooms. 
Information and the Drought Strategic Response Plan are being placed on the 
Department website as well.    

 



Council Agenda Report 
Parks And Recreation 2014-2015 Strategic Drought Response Plan  
July 15, 2014 
Page 7 
 

 

Measuring Outcomes and Progress to Date  
 
The Department is closely monitoring the 107 Parks and Recreation water accounts with 
respect to water use and water cost versus budget. While water cost may increase, less 
water is expected to be used throughout the Department. In the Parks Division and Golf 
Division, most water meters are being monitored on a daily and/or weekly basis to assist 
with water conservation planning. Due to varying water priorities, it is expected that there 
may be a reduction greater than 20% in some areas, while others may have a lower 
reduction or even an increase in use. Division and department performance is reviewed on 
a weekly and monthly basis, for progress towards the water conservation target, and 
monitoring impacts to natural resources and programs. Staff will provide occasional 
reports to the Parks and Recreation Commission on implementation of the Strategic 
Drought Response Plan. Staff provides a monthly status report to the Golf Advisory 
Committee on golf course conditions and water conservation efforts. 
 
Much of the Plan has been implemented over the past several months in response to 
increasing drought concerns. Since the Stage One Drought declaration in February the 
Parks and Recreation Department’s water use is down by 34% through May compared to 
this same period last year.  
 

 % of Total  
Department Water Use 

% Water Conservation 
Achieved Feb-May 2014 

Parks Division 49% 34% 
Golf Division 47% 34% 
Recreation Division 4% 27% 
Department Overall 100% 34% 

 
Both the Parks Division and Golf Course have achieved a 34% reduction. Many park 
areas as well as parts of the golf course are showing brown and dry conditions. The 
Recreation Division, which is the lowest water user in the Department, is down 27%. While 
this is good news, with drier and warmer conditions expected in the coming months, staff 
will be challenged to keep conservation between 20-30%, particularly as turf, shrubs, 
planter beds and trees are already suffering from three years of extremely dry conditions. 
Aquatic and shower facilities are heading into their peak seasons. Although the planned 
water infrastructure improvements will help reduce water use, overall water for these 
programs is generally higher in the summer months.  
 
Conclusion 
 
The 2014 Strategic Drought Response Plan will guide the Parks and Recreation 
Department to achieve City water conservation objectives. Water conservation is the key 
objective as the City, region, and state are facing unprecedented drought conditions. 
However, as stewards of the community’s park and recreation resources, the Department 
will also need to carefully manage how and where water is used to mitigate long-term 
damage and potential loss of these valued community assets.   



Council Agenda Report 
Parks And Recreation 2014-2015 Strategic Drought Response Plan  
July 15, 2014 
Page 8 
 

 

BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
No additional funds have been appropriated to the Parks and Recreation budget for 
implementation of the Plan. The Parks, Recreation, and Golf Divisions are incurring 
additional expenses related to water infrastructure improvements. Those costs are being 
tracked in case State funding becomes available to assist communities with Water 
Conservation and Drought Response. In Fiscal Year 2015, the increased cost of water, 
particularly potable water, may have an impact on budgets even though less water volume 
will likely be used. At the Golf Course, play surpassed last year’s performance November 
2013 – April 2014. However, with the drier conditions on the course, play has been down 
since the start of May and year-end revenues are likely to be more than $40,000 less than 
originally projected. Staff will continue to monitor play and whether any modifications to the 
Fiscal Year 2015 Golf Budget should be considered. 
 
SUSTAINABILITY IMPACT:   

The Parks and Recreation 2014 Strategic Drought Response Plan is intended to achieve a 
minimum reduction of 20% water use over the previous year, and will be modified if 
conditions change. This water conservation target will help extend the City’s limited water 
resources through this challenging Drought. While water conservation is the key objective, 
the Plan also works to protect the City’s parks, trees, natural resources, and recreational 
spaces from resource loss and long-term drought impacts.  

 
ATTACHMENT: Parks and Recreation 2014-2015 Strategic Drought Response Plan,  
   June 30, 2014  
 
SUBMITTED BY: Nancy L. Rapp, Parks and Recreation Director 

APPROVED BY: City Administrator's Office 



  
 

     
 

City of Santa Barbara 
Parks and Recreation Department 

 

 

2014 - 2015 
STRATEGIC DROUGHT 

RESPONSE PLAN 
 

This Plan has been developed to guide the Parks and Recreation Department’s 
response to the Stage Two Drought Condition declared by the City of Santa 

Barbara City Council on May 20, 2014. The plan will be modified as needed in 
response to progress or changed conditions.  

 
 

June 30, 2014 
 

 





CITY OF SANTA BARBARA PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT                                   
2014-2015 STRATEGIC DROUGHT RESPONSE PLAN 

 

June 2014 i   
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

I. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ........................................................................................................... 1 

 

II. INTRODUCTION ..................................................................................................................... 8 

Infrastructure Water Efficiencies 

Irrigation Water Efficiencies 

Department Water Use – Potable and Recycled 

 

III. PARKS, SPORTS FIELDS AND PUBLIC LANDSCAPED AREAS ..................................................... 11 

General Strategy   

Water Efficiencies 

Turf Areas  

Sports Fields 

Planter Beds 

Medians, Islands and Parkways 

Park and Picnic Rentals Areas, Private and Public Events   

Water Fountains and Ponds  

Barbeques and Increased Wild Fire Concerns  

Public Buildings Maintained by Parks Division 

 

IV. TREES .................................................................................................................................. 16  

General Strategy 

Irrigation Priorities 

Water Efficiencies 

 

V. RECREATION FACILITIES ....................................................................................................... 18 

General Strategy 
Water Efficiencies 
Swimming Pools 
Shower Facilities 
Tennis Courts 
Recreation Rental Facilities 



CITY OF SANTA BARBARA PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT                                   
2014-2015 STRATEGIC DROUGHT RESPONSE PLAN 

 

June 2014 ii   
 

Neighborhood Centers 
Community Gardens 

 

VI. CREEK RESTORATION AREAS ................................................................................................ 22 

General strategy 
 

VII. GOLF COURSE ...................................................................................................................... 23 

General Strategy 
Water Efficiencies 
Maintenance Practices and Modifications 
Reduced Irrigation Frequency, Duration and Coverage 
Trees 
Exception to Stage Two Regulations  
Signage 
Mulligan’s Restaurant  
Cleaning of Vehicles, Equipment and Golf Carts 
 

VIII. DEPARTMENT WIDE EFFORTS AND CONCLUSION .................................................................. 28 

Outreach and Public Education 
Landscape Installation or Renovation Projects 
Vehicle Washing 
Financial Impacts of Drought Water Rates 
Accountability 
Conclusion 



CITY OF SANTA BARBARA PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT                                   
2014-2015 STRATEGIC DROUGHT RESPONSE PLAN 

 

June 2014 1   
 

I. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
In Santa Barbara, it is not unusual to experience extremely dry conditions from time to time. Water is a 
precious resource and conservation is routinely practiced throughout the community. In our City parks, 
recreation facilities, community buildings, and golf course, water conservation is always a priority.  Like 
much of Santa Barbara, the City’s infrastructure has become significantly more water efficient since the 
previous serious drought and overall water use has declined since that time. 
 
The 2013-2014 rain year is the fifth driest year on record, and Santa Barbara is currently experiencing 
the three consecutive driest years on record. The Santa Barbara City Council declared a Stage One 
Drought on February 11, 2014, asking the community to voluntarily conserve water by 20%. With only 
limited rainfall since then, a Stage Two Drought was declared on May 20, 2014, and Extraordinary Water 
Conservation Regulations have been adopted. City water users are required to reduce water use by 20%, 
more with irrigation. To encourage compliance, higher water rates will go into effect on July 1, 2014. If 
rainfall continues to be below the norm, Santa Barbara could face Stage Three Drought as early as next 
spring. To assist the Parks and Recreation Department (Department) in meeting water conservation 
objectives, staff developed the 2014-2015 Strategic Drought Response Plan to meet the City’s water 
conservation mandate. The Plan is intended as a working tool that will be modified as conditions 
change. 
 
In developing this Strategic Drought Response Plan for the Parks and Recreation Department, a number 
of factors were taken into consideration, including: 

1. Short-term and longer-term impact of reduced water use to turf, plants, and trees 
2. Need to protect historic and other resources  
3. Priorities for public use of certain parks and recreation facilities 
4. Programmatic changes which could conserve water use 
5. Modifications to irrigation and plumbing infrastructure which could further increase water 

conservation 
6. Financial impacts due to increased cost of water, loss of revenue from the changed appearance 

park and facility rentals areas; and, particularly loss of play and revenue at the Santa Barbara 
municipal golf course.  

 
Water Use, Potable and Recycled 
The Department uses both potable and recycled water. In Water Year (WY) 2013, 49% of all water use 
was in the Parks Division, 47% was at the Golf Course, and 4% was in the Recreation Division. Of all 
water used, 74% is Recycled and 26% is potable.  Recycled water is used in irrigating parks and facility 
landscaping. Potable water is used in restrooms, showers, kitchens, and pools.  In parks, potable water is 
also used for watering young trees, and in fountains, ponds, park restrooms and drinking fountains. At 
the golf course, 88% of water use is recycled and 12% is potable. The majority of potable water is used 
on the golf greens (small, manicured area immediately surrounding each hole), and in restrooms, the 



CITY OF SANTA BARBARA PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT                                   
2014-2015 STRATEGIC DROUGHT RESPONSE PLAN 

 

June 2014 2   
 

restaurant facility, and drinking fountains. The following charts reflect how water is used in the 
department.  

 
 
The City’s recycled water facility has been in a steady state of decline over the past few years. The 
Tertiary Treatment Facility Rehabilitation Project is now underway and due to be completed in summer 
2015. Until then, the recycled water system is delivering potable water. Once the facility is in operation 
there will be no further reliance on the City’s potable water resources. Because of this, the Parks and 
Recreation Department Strategic Drought Response Plan makes no differentiation in the type of water 
used for this water year. Once the plant is functioning, the department’s use of potable water will 
decrease significantly, providing an equal benefit to the City’s potable water resources. Under normal 
circumstances, 1% of the City’s potable water use would be attributed to Parks, Recreation and Golf. 
With the recycled plant under construction, that potable water use increases to 3.2%.  
 
Parks, Sports Fields and Public Landscaped Areas 
The Parks Division is responsible for maintenance of 47 City parks, as well as landscaped areas of 26 
sports facilities and recreation buildings, various City facilities such as the libraries and City Hall, as well 
as 81 medians, islands, and parkways areas throughout the City. Turf, planter beds, and trees are the 
main categories of plant material that are considered in the 2014-2015 Strategic Drought Response Plan. 
Turf irrigation is the largest water use in the Parks Division.  
 
Irrigation priorities have been determined based on how the area is used by the public, safety, types and 
characterization of horticultural or landscaping elements (i.e., historically important, unique species, 
etc.), as well as short and long-term impacts of sustained drought conditions. Water resources will be 
directed first to higher priority needs, with fewer to no resources applied to others. Two tables, 
Irrigation Priorities for Turf Areas (pg. 12) and Irrigation Priorities for Planter Beds (pg. 14), show how 
various park/facility areas are prioritized into three categories:  No Change in Irrigation, Irrigation 



CITY OF SANTA BARBARA PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT                                   
2014-2015 STRATEGIC DROUGHT RESPONSE PLAN 

 

June 2014 3   
 

Reduced 20-30%, and Irrigation Off.  Staff will monitor conditions and adjust the plan as needed over 
the drought period.  
 
Other than changes to landscape irrigation, there will be new restrictions on water use for permitted 
events in parks and decorative water fountains in two parks have been turned off. Maintenance of 
water ponds in Chase Palm Park and Alice Keck Park Memorial Garden are not affected under Stage Two 
regulations. 
 
Trees 
The Parks Division is responsible for maintaining over 32,000 trees, including 23,600 street trees, and 
9,295 trees in parks and public property. Inadequate water uptake during prolonged drought conditions 
can adversely affect several of a tree’s growth processes. Long-term damage from drought happens over 
a period of years and includes stunted growth, branch die-back, and possible death. With three years of 
dryer weather many trees around the area are beginning to show stress. The Parks Division’s general 
strategy will be to limit the loss of this important community resource.  
 
New trees are regularly watered the first three years to establish the root system, then watering is 
tapered off and the tree is sustained through rainfall or localized irrigation in parks or from front lawns.  
No changes are planned to this operation. A number of trees have been prioritized to receive 
supplemental water, including those that are an important community asset, of a rare species, of high 
value, or are historic or a notable specimen.  Additional strategies include adjustments in pruning 
practices for tree health and public safety, resupplying mulch to newly planted trees, and the 
postponement of new plantings. All trees will continue to receive the care and maintenance necessary 
for tree health and public safety.  
 
Recreation Facilities 
The Recreation Division manages nine recreation and rental facilities, three neighborhood centers, two 
lawn bowl clubs, four community gardens, four swimming pools and two tennis facilities. Water use 
includes restrooms, drinking fountains, kitchens, showers, pools, and gardens. Of these, aquatic facilities 
(pools, showers, locker rooms) are the biggest water user. The emphasis in recreation facilities will be 
installation of additional low-water use plumbing fixtures and educating and encouraging facility users 
to conserve water, particularly in showers, kitchens and restrooms.  
 
The only change in pool programming is that West Beach Wading Pool will remain closed this summer 
season. The pool has a significant leak requiring extensive repairs; also, operation requires daily power 
washing for health and safety reasons. Oak Park Wading Pool will operate per normal schedule. A pool 
cover is being purchased for Ortega Park Pool to comply with Stage Two Drought Regulations. The Public 
Works Director has granted an exemption for Oak Park Wading Pool due to the seasonal nature of the 
facility, and because the pool is drained when out of season. 
 



CITY OF SANTA BARBARA PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT                                   
2014-2015 STRATEGIC DROUGHT RESPONSE PLAN 

 

June 2014 4   
 

Pool decks are routinely cleaned on a daily basis with hoses using high pressure/shut off water nozzles.  
To comply with Stage Two Drought Regulations and reduce water use, the Department is purchasing 
three battery powered blowers for daily maintenance.  On an as needed basis, maintenance staff will 
spot clean using buckets and brushes or high pressure water nozzles to minimize the amount of water 
required to meet Health and Safety regulations.  
 
The Recreation Division manages five shower facilities. Extremely low flow shower heads (0.62gpm) are 
being installed to reduce water use by 50% and signage will inform patrons that showers should not 
exceed five minutes.  At Los Baños, the Department is proposing to reduce the number of showerheads 
and install water cut off valves which would allow staff to turn off all non-health code required showers 
during summer recreation swim when showers are often left running and unattended.  Showers prior to 
entering and immediately exiting the pool will be available but not during programming. At Cabrillo 
Bathhouse, the number of showerheads will be reduced by 50% and installation of a handle activated 
shower will create a greater sense of urgency to take a shorter shower. The upper shower heads of the 
East Beach outside showers will be turned off, leaving the two foot showers active. Showers at 
Municipal Tennis Facility, which have infrequent use, are being turned off. No changes are proposed at 
Carrillo Gym showers due to infrequent use; however, staff will carefully monitor use and implement 
changes as needed.  
 
The Department maintains 12 tennis courts at the Municipal Tennis Center and two tennis courts at Oak 
Park. SBCC maintains the eight tennis courts at Pershing Park. Regular tennis court washing practices on 
City courts is conducted twice a week with a water efficient water broom using recycled water. To 
further conserve water, Tennis is purchasing a battery powered blower for daily court maintenance. As 
needed, the water broom will be used to remove any stubborn residues or materials that create unsafe 
playing surfaces.    
 
At Recreation rental facilities and neighborhood centers water conservation will focus on educating 
facility users, eliminating wasteful water activities and new water conservation policies for caterers.  At 
the four community gardens, hand watering with a self-closing nozzle will only be allowed between 4:00 
pm and 10:30 am, additional mulch will be provided, and bilingual signage will be posted.  
 
Creek Restoration Areas 
The Creek Restoration Water Quality Improvement Program has completed four large creek restoration 
projects that have over 23,000 native plants and eight smaller projects with over 3,700 plants.  The sites 
are initially irrigated for two to three years following plant installation.  Irrigation is completely shut off 
after three years. Currently only two projects are still being irrigated, and after June only the Mission 
Creek Restoration Project at Tallant Road will receive occasional watering.  
 
Golf Course 
The Santa Barbara Golf Club, the city’s only municipal golf course, is open for play 364 days a year, with 
over 4,000 people a year playing more than 64,000 rounds. The course operates as an enterprise fund, 



CITY OF SANTA BARBARA PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT                                   
2014-2015 STRATEGIC DROUGHT RESPONSE PLAN 

 

June 2014 5   
 

meaning it is dependent upon revenue generated at the course and does not receive any tax dollars. The 
golf course is set in just under 100 acres of land with 20 putting greens, hundreds of trees, and miles of 
fairway.  The challenges facing the golf course to maintain an attractive playing experience while 
conserving water are not to be underestimated. In the last major drought (1989-90), play declined over 
25%, affecting revenues for the City and its concessionaires for several years. The golf course has faced 
serious financial setbacks over the last few years related to major construction and the recession. 
Although play has increased somewhat since the lowest point in 2009, it has still not recovered to pre- 
2009 levels. Staff is very concerned about dry course conditions becoming a deterrent to play, further 
jeopardizing revenue and financial solvency of the municipal golf course.  
 
At the golf course, 88% of water used is recycled and 12% is potable. Potable water is used in the 
restaurant, restrooms, and drinking fountains. It is also used to water the golf greens (for non-golfers 
this is the small, manicured putting area immediately surrounding each hole). The chemicals found in 
recycled water make it too damaging for the delicate turf comprising the greens, so potable water is 
used. Recycled water is used for the majority of irrigation and other areas of the course where allowed. 
 
Careful and specialized management of irrigation will ensure the golf course meets the standards 
expected of paying customers, while demonstrating effective water conservation to achieve the desired 
reduction in water use. The plan identifies which areas of the golf course area higher priority for water 
use, with the higher priorities being the greens, teaching areas, certain trees, and tee boxes. Lower 
priority areas include fairways, rough, and other low-traffic or non-playable areas.  
 
 The Santa Barbara Golf Club has a well-earned reputation for the quality of putting surfaces – 
maintaining that reputation is the highest priority for the golf course. Given that, it is unlikely that much 
can be done to reduce the amount of water used on greens without damaging the turf beyond repair. 
Moreover, the grass on the greens is particularly sensitive to heat and dry conditions given the need to 
maintain it at a shorter cut.   Since only 10% of the water used at the course is used on greens, it is 
expected that savings from other areas will negate the need to risk the putting surfaces.  
 
Hand watering is currently practiced on the greens and some trees to save water. This is less efficient 
from a labor standpoint, but necessary to ensure appropriate coverage and cooling in certain conditions. 
The Public Works Director has approved an exception from the Stage Two Drought Regulations to allow 
for watering the greens outside of allowed hours. When the weather is exceptionally dry and hot, it is 
necessary to use sprinklers or hand water the greens, which may occur outside of the allowed hours. 
The hose that is used for hand watering the greens has an automatic shut off nozzle as required within 
the regulations. 
 
Aerification has been stepped up and completed earlier in the year than would be typical. Aerification 
improves the amount of water that penetrates the turf and in turn encourages stronger deeper roots for 
the grass helping to improve the resilience of the turf and allowing staff to water more infrequently 



CITY OF SANTA BARBARA PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT                                   
2014-2015 STRATEGIC DROUGHT RESPONSE PLAN 

 

June 2014 6   
 

ending in significant water savings. Turf maintenance equipment is now being cleaned using air pressure 
and will be washed with water far less often. 
 
The ProShop and Mulligans are engaged in promoting water conservation within their respective 
businesses. Golf Carts, which have routinely been cleaned with hose and nozzle, are being washed with 
cloths, and floor boards and cup holders being rinsed after each use.  Full cart washes will be limited to 
once a month.  
 
Department-Wide Efforts and Conclusion 
Most significant drought responses are discussed by program. However, the plan also addresses the 
following: 

• New planting projects in parks, facilities and public right of ways will likely be delayed until 
drought conditions improve.  

• The department operates a number of vehicles in various operations. The frequency of vehicle 
washing routines is being reduced except where there is risk of damage to equipment.  

• Outreach and Public Education is a critical component of implementing this Strategic Drought 
Response. Water conservation signage is being installed in all of our public buildings, shower 
facilities, and restrooms. In parks and at the golf course, the reduction in water use will be 
increasingly visible to the public as turf and some landscape areas dry out. Signage is being put 
in place to remind parks and golf course visitors that we are working to conserve our community 
water resources. Information and this Drought Strategic Response Plan will be placed on the 
Department website as well.    

 
The Department will be closely monitoring the 107 Parks and Recreation water accounts with respect to 
water use and water cost vs. budget. While water cost may increase, less water is expected to be used 
throughout the Department. In Parks and Golf, most water meters are being monitored on a daily 
and/or weekly basis to assist with water conservation planning. Due to varying water priorities, it is 
expected that some meters may see a reduction greater than 20% while others may see a lower 
reduction or even an increase in use. Management will be reviewing division and department 
performance on a weekly and monthly basis, evaluating progress towards the water conservation target 
and monitoring impacts to natural resources and programs. Staff will provide occasional reports to the 
Parks and Recreation Commission on implementation of the Strategic Drought Response Plan and water 
conservation efforts in our parks, recreation facilities and golf course. 
 
CONCLUSION 
The 2014-2015 Strategic Drought Response Plan will guide the Parks and Recreation Department in how 
best to achieve City water conservation objectives. Water conservation is the key objective as the City, 
region and state are facing unprecedented drought conditions. However, as stewards of the 
community’s park and recreation resources, staff will also need to carefully manage how and where 
water is used to mitigate long-term damage and potential loss of these valued community assets.   
 



CITY OF SANTA BARBARA PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT                                   
2014-2015 STRATEGIC DROUGHT RESPONSE PLAN 

 

June 2014 7   
 

It has been 25 years since Santa Barbara, the Parks Department and Recreation Department (now Parks 
and Recreation Department), faced similar extreme drought conditions. There are many stories of parks 
and the golf course going brown, dry fountains, and similar outcomes. Unfortunately, staff has been 
unable to locate any planning documents that may have been used to guide the Department through 
that time. Staff will be using this Strategic Drought Response Plan as a working tool over the duration of 
the drought conditions. The plan will be modified as needed to ensure that the required reduction in 
water use is achieved. The plan and subsequent status reports will reside in department files so that 
these materials can be a resource going forward.     
 
  



CITY OF SANTA BARBARA PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT                                   
2014-2015 STRATEGIC DROUGHT RESPONSE PLAN 

 

June 2014 8   
 

II. INTRODUCTION 
 
In Santa Barbara, it is not unusual to experience extremely dry conditions from time to time. Water is a 
precious resource and conservation is routinely practiced throughout the community. In our City parks, 
recreation facilities, community buildings, and golf course, water conservation is always a priority, and 
many improvements have been made to infrastructure over the years, especially since the last declared 
drought in the late 1980s-early 1990s. Water efficiency improvements include but are not limited to 
plumbing fixtures, pool systems, HVAC and other facility systems, irrigation systems, and water 
conserving landscaping. Like much of Santa Barbara, the City’s infrastructure has become significantly 
more water efficient since the previous serious drought and overall water use has declined.  
 
The 2013-2014 rain year is the fifth driest year on record, and Santa Barbara is currently experiencing 
the three consecutive driest years on record. The Santa Barbara City Council declared a Stage One 
Drought on February 11, 2014, asking the community to voluntarily conserve water by 20%. With only 
limited rainfall since then, a Stage Two Drought was declared on May 20, 2014, and Extraordinary Water 
Conservation Regulations have been adopted. City water users are required to reduce water use by 20%, 
more with irrigation. To encourage compliance, higher water rates will go into effect on July 1, 2014, 
applying to June 2014 water use. If rainfall continues to be below the norm, Santa Barbara could face 
Stage Three Drought as early as next spring.  
 
To assist the Parks and Recreation Department (Department) in meeting water conservation objectives, 
staff developed the 2014-2015 Strategic Drought Response Plan to meet the City’s water conservation 
mandate. The Plan is intended as a working tool that will be modified as conditions change. In 
developing this plan for the Parks and Recreation Department, a number of factors were taken into 
consideration, including: 

1. Short-term and longer-term impact of reduced water use to turf, plants, and trees 
2. Need to protect historic and other resources  
3. Priorities for public use of certain parks and recreation facilities 
4. Programmatic changes which could conserve water use 
5. Modifications to irrigation and plumbing infrastructure, which could further increase water 

conservation  
6. Financial impacts due to increased water cost, loss of revenue from the changed appearance of 

park and facility rentals areas; and, particularly loss of play and revenue at the Santa Barbara 
municipal golf course.  

 
Infrastructure Water Efficiencies 
The City of Santa Barbara has prioritized retrofitting infrastructure with low-flow plumbing and water 
efficient devices for many years. Most Parks and Recreation offices and recreation and park facilities are 
outfitted with water efficient devices in restrooms, showers, kitchens, work sinks, and drinking 



CITY OF SANTA BARBARA PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT                                   
2014-2015 STRATEGIC DROUGHT RESPONSE PLAN 

 

June 2014 9   
 

fountains.  Such improvements include low-flow and dual-flush toilets, waterless urinals where possible, 
reduced flow faucets and/or faucet aerators, low-flow showerheads, etc.  
 
Irrigation Water Efficiencies 
Both the Parks Division and Golf Course have computerized Central Control Irrigation Systems to provide 
the highest irrigation efficiencies in the landscape industry. Due to the many different microclimates in 
Santa Barbara, there are weather stations placed in two parks (one beach, one inland park location) and 
on the golf course. These weather stations operate the Central Control Irrigation System through daily 
weather data collection using evapotranspiration rates, commonly known as ETo (which is simply 
the loss of water from the soil surface into the atmosphere).  The system automatically adjusts irrigation 
schedules daily to match actual landscape water requirements, and allows irrigation technicians to 
prevent or terminate irrigation during rain events and windy conditions. The central control also 
monitors for mainline breaks and shuts off the system, saving thousands of gallons of water annually. It 
also has automatic wind velocity shut down capacity for when wind speeds exceed five miles per hour.  
In those situations, the system goes into a pause mode, and once the wind speed drops below five miles 
per hour the system restarts itself and continues with the scheduled irrigation cycles.    
  
There are 33 satellite irrigation controllers on the golf course, and 33 satellite irrigation controllers 
located in 20 parks. All ballfields and major parks with substantial turf acreage are irrigated using the 
Central Control Irrigation. This includes Alice Keck Park Memorial Garden, the Alamedas, A.C. Postel 
Memorial Rose Garden, Mackenzie, Ortega, and Pershing parks, among others. The newest park added 
to the Central Control Irrigation list is Willowglen Park (2014).  Additionally, there are over 44 
standalone Smart Irrigation Controllers in other neighborhood parks, passive parks, and facilities 
maintained by the Parks Division. These are monitored by Parks staff weekly, adjusting irrigation 
programs per weather data collection. Parks also uses the newest state of the art irrigation sprinklers 
throughout its park system.    
 
Additional infrastructure improvements specific to different program areas are discussed within this 
report. 
 
Water Use, Potable and Recycled 
The Department uses both potable and recycled water. In Water Year (WY) 2013, 49% of all water use 
was in the Parks Division, 47% was at the Golf Course, and 4% was in the Recreation Division. Of all 
water used, 74% is Recycled and 26% is potable.  Recycled water is used in irrigating parks and facility 
landscaping. Potable water is used in restrooms, showers, kitchens, and pools.  In parks, potable water is 
also used for watering young trees, and in fountains, ponds, park restrooms and drinking fountains. At 
the golf course, 88% of water use is recycled and 12% is potable. The majority of potable water is used 
on the golf greens (small, manicured area immediately surrounding each hole), and in restrooms, the 
restaurant facility, and drinking fountains. The following charts reflect how water is used in the 
department.  
 



CITY OF SANTA BARBARA PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT                                   
2014-2015 STRATEGIC DROUGHT RESPONSE PLAN 

 

June 2014 10   
 

 
The City’s recycled water facility has been in a steady state of decline over the past few years. The 
Tertiary Treatment Facility Rehabilitation Project is now underway and due to be completed in summer 
2015. Until then, the recycled water system is delivering potable water. Once the facility is in operation 
there will be no further reliance on the City’s potable water resources. Because of this, the Parks and 
Recreation Department Strategic Drought Response Plan makes no differentiation in the type of water 
used for this water year. Once the plant is functioning, the department’s use of potable water will 
decrease significantly, providing an equal benefit to the City’s potable water resources. Under normal 
circumstances, 1% of the City’s potable water use would be attributed to Parks, Recreation and Golf. 
With the recycled plant under construction, that potable water use increases to 3.2%.  
 
 
  



CITY OF SANTA BARBARA PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT                                   
2014-2015 STRATEGIC DROUGHT RESPONSE PLAN 

 

June 2014 11   
 

 

III. PARKS, SPORTS FIELDS AND PUBLIC LANDSCAPED AREAS 
 
The Parks Division is responsible for maintenance of 47 City parks, as well as landscaped areas of 26 
sports facilities and recreation buildings, various City facilities such as the libraries and City Hall, as well 
as 81 medians, islands, and parkways areas throughout the City. Each of these areas is addressed below. 
The Division is also responsible for maintaining over 32,000 trees, including 23,600 street trees, and 
9,295 trees in parks and public property. Trees are maintained primarily by the Forestry staff with 
assistance from Parks staff in park areas. Trees are addressed in Chapter III, Trees. 
 
General Strategy   
Turf, planter beds, and trees are the main categories of plant material that are considered in the  
Strategic Drought Response Plan. Irrigation priorities have been determined for the various parks, sports 
facilities, public buildings, and other areas maintained by the Parks Division. How the area is used by the 
public, types and characterization of horticultural or landscaping elements (i.e., historically important, 
unique species, etc.), as well as short and long-term impacts of sustained drought conditions have all 
played a role in developing this plan. Water resources will be directed first to higher priority needs, with 
fewer resources applied to others, and in some cases, no irrigation will support the vegetation or 
landscaping. Staff will monitor conditions and adjust the plan as needed over the drought period. 
 
Water Efficiencies 
Existing – The Parks Division uses an advanced Central Control Irrigation system and maintains its own 
weather stations to facilitate efficient use of water in City parks. Past droughts have also fostered 
greater use of native and drought tolerant plant materials.  
 
In Progress – The City’s water truck and trailer used to irrigate street and park trees will be outfitted 
with outflow meters to monitor and evaluate the use of water on a per tree basis.  Weekly monitoring of 
water use will be conducted to determine where adjustments needs are necessary and more accurately 
account for water used. 
 
Turf Areas  
Turf irrigation is the largest water use in the Parks Division. Prioritizing water use on park turf takes into 
consideration the issues of safety, recreational use, aesthetics, and revenue generation. Also considered 
is the Maintenance Service Level (MSL) assigned to all parks and facilities. These MSLs range from 1 to 5 
and are indicative of the standards the Division maintains at the site. Level 1 is assigned to our most 
visible and popular sites and Level 5 is assigned to most open spaces and undeveloped parks. 
 
The table below shows the groupings of Turf Irrigation Priorities. Some sites will have no changes to turf 
irrigation, others will see a reduction of 20% to 30%, and others will have no irrigation. Some turf in high 
profile MSL 1 sites will continue to be irrigated with no reduction. These locations are “gateway” sites or 



CITY OF SANTA BARBARA PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT                                   
2014-2015 STRATEGIC DROUGHT RESPONSE PLAN 

 

June 2014 12   
 

event locations in parks.  Ball field turf will be irrigated as it has in the past, with no reductions. This will 
keep the ball fields in a safe and playable condition.  No changes in irrigation will occur in Moreton Bay 
Fig Tree Park in order to protect this important City historical resource. Sports field turf and turf in parks 
areas that generate substantial revenue through rentals are addressed further below. Irrigation will be 
reduced by 20% to 30% in sites where the turf is not a developed sports field or not a substantial 
revenue generator, based largely on the MSL assigned to the site.  
 
The turf sites where irrigation will be eliminated completely are planted predominantly in Kikuyu. This 
type of grass is a deep-rooted perennial, has underground rhizomes or runners and is more tolerant of 
irrigation reductions. The Kikuyu turf grass will turn brown and will appear dead above ground. Runners 
below ground may or may not survive. With winter 2014/2015 rains or irrigation, the Kikuyu grass may 
be expected to at least partially recover.   
 

Irrigation Priorities for Turf Areas 
 

Turf Irrigation – No Change 
Cabrillo Ball Field & Chromatic Gate Ortega Park 
Chase Palm Park Soccer Field Pershing Park and Plaza del Mar 
Dwight Murphy Ball Field MacKenzie Park 
Chase Palm Park Expansion Interior Turf  
(meadow area) 

Moreton Bay Fig Tree 
 

Turf Irrigation – Reduced 20% - 30% 
Parks  
A.C. Postel Memorial Rose Garden Los Robles Park 
East Beach Park Oak Park  
Alameda Park  - East and West Parque de los Niños 
Alice Keck Park Memorial Garden Pilgrim Terrace Park 
Ambassador Park Plaza Vera Cruz Park 
Bohnett Park San Roque Park 
Chase Palm Park Sheffield Park  
De La Guerra Plaza Shoreline Park  
Eastside Neighborhood Park Skofield Park 
Escondido Park  Stevens Park  
La Mesa Park  Willowglen Park 
Leadbetter Beach Park  
Facilities  
Cabrillo Pavilion Arts Center & Bathhouse  Central Library 
Eastside Library Spencer Adams/ Davis Center  
Franklin Neighborhood Center Westside Neighborhood Center 
Turf Irrigation - Off 
Andree Clark Bird Refuge City Hall 
Cemetery Island Coast Village Road Islands 
Hidden Valley Park Hilda Ray Park 
Sunflower Park  Orpet Parks (upper and lower) 

 



CITY OF SANTA BARBARA PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT                                   
2014-2015 STRATEGIC DROUGHT RESPONSE PLAN 

 

June 2014 13   
 

 
Stage Two Drought Regulation Exemption Granted - Ambassador Park does not have an automated 
sprinkler system. The Public Works Director has approved an exemption from the Stage Two Drought 
Regulations to allow Parks staff to water this park by use of hose and a sprinkler attachment. The Parks 
Division will adhere to watering the park between the hours of 4:00 pm and 10:30 am. 
 
 Sports Fields 
 The Department maintains sports fields at 6 different facilities, including Pershing Park, Dwight Murphy 
Field, Cabrillo Ballfield, Chase Palm Park Soccer Field, Ortega Park and MacKenzie Park. Sports field turf 
will remain irrigated at levels that maintain the safety and playability of the field. Infield maintenance 
will allow for watering of the infield to reduce dust as part of field preparation, after dragging, and after 
practice or ball games. This activity helps maintain the infield in a safe and playable condition. 
 
Planter Beds 
The table below shows Irrigation Priorities for Planter Beds. Some beds will see no changes in irrigation, 
some will see a 20% to 30% reduction in irrigation, and others will receive no irrigation. Shallow rooted 
turf is generally watered differently than deep-rooted landscape shrubs and planter beds. Shrubs and 
perennials are generally more tolerant of changes in irrigation. Therefore, shrubs and deep-rooted 
plants in planter beds are targeted for a reduction in irrigation. There are some exceptions to protect 
the City’s special and/or historical resources.   
 
Priority is also given to recently planted or renovated areas, sites of concern for exterior of rental 
facilities, and preservation of plant resources.  Preservation of plant resources includes recent plant 
installations that need more water to establish. Once established, the plants are sustained through 
rainfall, or only the occasional irrigation.  
 
For sites that received regular irrigation in the past, the water will be reduced or eliminated based 
largely on the MSL of the site and on the ability of the plants to survive on less water. In locations where 
beds are not currently regularly watered or that have very low water requirements, no irrigation will 
occur. If extremely stressed, these sites may be strategically watered.   
  



CITY OF SANTA BARBARA PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT                                   
2014-2015 STRATEGIC DROUGHT RESPONSE PLAN 

 

June 2014 14   
 

Irrigation Priorities for Planter Beds 
 

Irrigated Beds – No Change 
A.C. Postel Memorial Rose Garden Oak Park 
Alice Keck Park Memorial Garden Orpet Parks (upper and lower) 
Andree Clark Bird Refuge – native 
restoration areas 

Moreton Bay Fig Tree 

Irrigated Beds – Reduced 20% - 30% 
Parks Facilities 
Alameda Park East Cabrillo Pavilion Arts Center & Bathhouse 
Escondido Park Carrillo Recreation Center 
Franceschi Park Community Development & Public Works 
La Mesa Park Parks and Recreation Administration Bldg.  
Parque de los Niños Police Station 
Dolphin Fountain Promenade Spencer Adams/Louise L. Davis Center 
Plaza Vera Cruz Park Westside Community Center 
San Roque Park Chase Palm Park Center 
Shoreline Park Casa Las Palmas 
Irrigated Beds - Off 
Dwight Murphy Ball Field City Hall 
Sunflower Park  

 
Medians, Islands and Parkways 
The majority of the Medians, Islands, and Parkways the Parks Division maintains are not irrigated. Of 
those that are irrigated most, if not all, will be shut off. Water use will be prioritized to sustain young, 
historic or specimen trees, using the water truck or water trailer. Water which serves the Coast Village 
Road Islands is provided by the Montecito Water District (MWD). The MWD is facing a severe water 
shortage and reports that their water supply could be depleted within the next three to four months. 
For that reason, turf irrigation for the Coast Village Road Islands has been turned off. Water will be 
prioritized for preservation of certain landscaping and trees. 
 
Park and Picnic Rentals Areas, Private and Public Events   
To the degree possible, designated rental venues in parks that generate substantial revenue to the 
Department will be maintained at standard irrigation levels, or irrigated to the least level possible to 
maintain the desired turf health. This will be a continuing challenge as the Department is already 
receiving complaints from people who made their event reservation months ago and are concerned 
about how conditions, browning turf, and non-functioning decorative fountains will affect their event 
experience. This is particularly the case with some of the more popular outdoor wedding venues, such 
as Chase Palm Park.  Staff will continue to educate people about the drought and need to conserve 
water. At some point, it may be necessary to consider price reductions to attract or retain renters. 
 
A number of changes will be made to park permit conditions. Renters and event organizers using park 
facilities will only have access to water for health and safety reasons, such as food preparation, drinking, 



CITY OF SANTA BARBARA PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT                                   
2014-2015 STRATEGIC DROUGHT RESPONSE PLAN 

 

June 2014 15   
 

hand washing, and sanitation. Prohibited uses include water-filled barrels to weigh down tents, VIP 
portable restrooms that require water hook-ups, and rides or activities that use water (such as water 
slides, portable wading pools, amusement rides). Limited water use will be allowed to pressure wash 
sidewalks and venues after major events to remove spilled liquids/foods (sanitation only). In some 
cases, County Health food handling regulations may supersede City water use regulations such as the 
number of required hand washing stations, number of 3-sink cleaning stations, etc. These may be 
required for events to obtain the health permit. 
 
Water Fountains and Ponds  
Per Stage Two Drought regulations, all decorative water fountains are turned off. These include A.C. 
Postel Memorial Rose Garden and Chase Palm Park. Regulations do not apply to ponds, so staff will 
continue to manage the open water ponds in Alice Keck Park Memorial Garden and Chase Palm Park.  

 
 Barbeques and Increased Wild Fire Concerns  
Given increased concerns for wild fire, the Department consulted with the City Fire Marshall regarding 
barbeque structures in City parks and whether any changes in use should be considered. No changes are 
recommended at this time. Parks staff will continue to maintain vigilant brush clearance in these areas, 
and work closely with the Fire Marshall should conditions change. Per City policy, during Red Flag 
Warnings all barbeque activity is prohibited in all City parks located in high fire areas.  
 
Public Buildings Maintained by Parks Division 
The Parks Division maintains the landscaping of a number of public buildings, including the Central 
Library, City Hall, Police Department, Community Development/Public Works and others. The reduction 
in irrigation will be decided jointly with the Directors of each respective building. It is anticipated that an 
irrigation reduction of 20% or more will be achieved at these sites. 
  



CITY OF SANTA BARBARA PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT                                   
2014-2015 STRATEGIC DROUGHT RESPONSE PLAN 

 

June 2014 16   
 

IV. TREES 
 
The Parks Division is responsible for maintaining over 32,000 trees, including 23,600 street trees, and 
9,295 trees in parks and public property (i.e., City Hall, Central Library, recreation facilities). Trees are 
maintained primarily by the Forestry staff with assistance from Parks staff in park areas.   
 
Inadequate water uptake, during prolonged drought conditions, can adversely affect several of a tree’s 
growth processes, including ceased photosynthesis, death to feeder roots (inability to supply canopy 
with water), and decreased carbohydrate production.  When any one of these processes slows or stops, 
the tree cannot provide adequate water to portions of the canopy, respond to damage by disease or 
pest infestation, or heal wounds caused by pruning or tree damage.  Short-term effects may include leaf 
wilting, leaf scorch, and some defoliation. Long-term damage from drought happens over a period of 
years and includes stunted growth, branch die-back, and possible death. Trees can take up to three 
years after a drought to display negative long-term effects. After three years of dry conditions, many 
trees in the community are showing signs of stress.  
 
General Strategy 
The loss of trees can have detrimental effects to the community as well, including wildlife habitat loss, 
disruptions to ecosystem services (reduced air and water quality, drop in aesthetics, reduced wind and 
shade control, and increased erosion), loss to horticultural heritage and enhanced opportunities for 
invasive or unwanted tree and plant species.  The Parks Divisions general strategy will be to limit the loss 
of this resource. 
 
When new trees are planted they are regularly watered with a watering truck, trailer, or in the case of 
some park trees hand watered, for roughly the first three years to establish the root system.  Once a 
tree displays signs of establishment, watering is tapered off and the tree is sustained through rainfall or 
localized irrigation in parks or from front lawns.  No changes will occur to this operation at this time.  
Although most established and mature trees are not watered, there are times when those trees display 
signs of water stress and are watered using the water truck or water trailer.  The urban forest will 
continue to be monitored as the drought persists and the water table continues to lower, potentially 
causing more mature trees to show signs of water stress.   
 
A number of trees have been prioritized to receive supplemental water as is described below.  
Additional strategies include adjustments in pruning practices for tree health and public safety, 
resupplying mulch to newly planted trees, and the postponement of new plantings. All trees will 
continue to receive the care and maintenance necessary for tree health and public safety. Scheduled 
pruning may be adjusted to decrease the amount of trimming to live tissue, with more focus on brittle 
branches as trees begin to show signs of dying back.  The Division is working on a long-term specific plan 
to address the needs of the urban forest during drought times. 
 



CITY OF SANTA BARBARA PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT                                   
2014-2015 STRATEGIC DROUGHT RESPONSE PLAN 

 

June 2014 17   
 

 
 
Irrigation Priorities 
The Division has prioritized 660 trees to receive irrigation in an attempt to preserve their health, safety 
to the public and value in the community.  These include trees that are newly planted and still 
establishing their root system, those that are an important community asset, of a rare species, of high 
value, or are historic or a notable specimen.  Since 2012, 524 trees have been planted in street parkways 
and 12 in City parks.  The Division will postpone any new plantings plus resupply these trees with mulch 
to decrease evaporation from the soil.  Historic and specimen trees account for 72 of the 660 trees 
prioritized for irrigation.  Sixty-two (62) of these are in City parkways and 10 are found at the Central 
Library, City Hall, Parking Lot 12, and on privately owned property maintained by the City.  Rare species 
that are drought intolerant are generally species native to temperate or tropical climates and add to the 
diversity of Santa Barbara’s urban forest.  Thirty (30) rare species exist in City parkways and 22 in parks 
including Bohnett, the Alamedas, Chase Palm Park, Alice Keck, and Franceschi Parks. 
 
In addition to the trees mentioned above, trees found within historically significant parks will be closely 
monitored to determine if supplemental irrigation is needed.  Species of pines and eucalyptus are 
among the trees that will be monitored due to their susceptibility to pest/beetle infestations under 
stressful environmental conditions.  Outreach to neighbors or neighborhood associations may occur to 
request front and side lawn watering for the benefit and health of nearby street trees.  Neighborhoods 
where rare or historic trees exist may be targeted first. 
 
It is anticipated that there will be an increase in the number of trees that die annually, as the result of 
the drought. This will impact tree maintenance planning. Particular attention will be paid to removal of 
dead trees within the high fire hazard areas. The Department routinely schedules removal of dead trees 
based on its hazard to the public. Where fire is not an issue, recently dead trees are not typically an 
immediate hazard and are scheduled when appropriate for removal.  
 
Water Efficiencies 
Existing - Newly planted trees are mulched to reduce the amount of water lost due to evaporation.  In 
addition, hand watering techniques include a soil probe to reduce water overflow and soil over-
saturation. 
 
In Progress - Forestry staff are outfitting the water truck and trailer with outflow meters to better 
quantify and monitor water use on a per tree basis.  Weekly reporting will be conducted to see where 
adjustments in watering will need to be made.  In addition, staff will be re-supplying mulch to trees 
where mulch is needed. 
 
  



CITY OF SANTA BARBARA PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT                                   
2014-2015 STRATEGIC DROUGHT RESPONSE PLAN 

 

June 2014 18   
 

V. RECREATON FACILITIES 
 
The Recreation Division manages nine recreation and rental facilities, three neighborhood centers, two 
lawn bowl clubs, four community gardens, four swimming pools and two tennis facilities. Water use 
includes restrooms, drinking fountains, kitchens, showers, pools, and gardens. The Recreation Division 
manages several leases of various Recreation buildings.  Tenants of four facilities including the East 
Beach Grill, Westside Boys and Girls Club, Twelve35 Teen Center, and Haley Street Youth Center are 
responsible for water use and payment as part of their lease requirements. Cost for water service for 
neighborhood center tenants (SB County Health Clinic, Special Olympics, UCP, etc.) is included in their 
leases. Sports facilities including soccer and softball fields, and irrigation surrounding recreation 
buildings, are included in Chapter II. Parks, Sports Fields and Public Landscaped Areas.   
 
General Strategy 
Staff has evaluated each facility individually for opportunities to reduce water use. Staff have met, or 
will soon meet, with Water Conservation staff to evaluate possible steps for further reduction. Aquatic 
facilities are the biggest program area of water use, with other recreation facilities use remaining 
relatively constant over the years. A large emphasis in recreation facilities will be educating and 
encouraging facility users to conserve water, particularly in showers, kitchens and restrooms.  
 
Water Efficiencies 
Existing – In most cases, low-flow fixtures, dual flush toilets, waterless urinals, and faucet aerators were 
installed a number of years ago in recreation facilities. City pool facilities have also seen energy and 
water efficient improvements to their systems.  
 
In Progress – Staff has identified a few fixtures that need upgrading to low-flow, and some fixtures (i.e., 
“wall” toilets at the Bathhouse) that will be upgraded with future renovation. Facilities water meter 
sizes are being evaluated to determine possible size reductions which will have a corresponding 
decrease in meter charges. Though an expenditure savings, this will not result in reduced water use.  
 
Swimming Pools 
Pool Covers – Stage Two Drought Regulations require covers on all outside pools. Los Baños Pool 
currently has a pool cover. A pool cover is being purchased for Ortega Park Pool. The Public Works 
Director has granted the Parks and Department an exemption from the pool cover regulation for Oak 
Park Wading Pool due to the seasonal nature of the facility and because the pool is drained when out of 
season.  
 
Year Round Swimming Pool – Los Baños Del Mar Swimming Pool - The Department plans to operate the 
pool facility with no impacts to regular scheduled programming.  However, staff is exploring the 
feasibility of installing an automatic backwash flow meter.  The installation of an automated device will 
trigger the backwash cycle for the pool filters when the gallons per minute (gpm) flow falls below the 



CITY OF SANTA BARBARA PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT                                   
2014-2015 STRATEGIC DROUGHT RESPONSE PLAN 

 

June 2014 19   
 

Health Department Operating Standards.  The cost for installation is estimated at $5,500 and will be a 
priority in FY 2015 due to the potential savings of 62,500 gallons through the elimination of eight 
manual backwash cycles per year.   
 
Seasonal Swimming Pools – The Department operates three seasonal swimming pools. Ortega Park Pool 
will operate for the 2014 summer season with no impacts to regular scheduled programming.  Although 
staff has confirmed that the Ortega Park pool has an identified leak, repairs are planned for FY 2015, 
with work being completed before the next operational season.  The Department operates two seasonal 
wading pools, one at Oak Park and one at West Beach adjacent to Los Baños. The West Beach facility has 
an extensive leak, and requires daily high-pressure deck washing for health and safety requirements to 
remain operational in the summer months.  The Department plans to close this facility for summer 
2014.  To mitigate the impact, staff is investigating an expansion of hours at the Oak Park pool, which is 
traditionally the more popular venue with young families. 
 
Pool Maintenance – During operational periods, prior to opening swimming pools, pool decks are 
routinely cleaned on a daily basis with hoses using high pressure/shut off water nozzles.  Stage Two 
Drought Regulations prohibit the use of running water from a hose, pipe or faucet for the purpose of 
cleaning buildings, pavement, tile, wood, plastic or other hard surfaces. To reduce use of water, the 
Department is purchasing three battery powered blowers for daily maintenance.  On an as needed basis, 
maintenance staff will spot clean using buckets and brushes or high pressure water nozzles to minimize 
the amount of water required to meet Health and Safety regulations.  
 
Shower Facilities 
The Recreation Division manages five shower facilities. Staff has identified a number of improvements or 
policy changes which can be implemented for further water efficiencies in shower facilities.  
 
Los Baños Del Mar - The average monthly gallons of water used for the operation of the Los Baños 
locker room facility is 78,600 gallons. Low-flow showerheads (1.25gpm), waterless urinals, dual flush 
toilets, and wash sink aerators are installed. The Department is currently investigating and testing the 
installation of new low-flow showerheads (0.62gpm) that will further reduce water use by 50%.  New 
standardized signage is being designed to inform patrons that shower use is not to exceed five minutes.  
Installation of new signage will coincide with the upcoming spring/summer Los Baños electronic 
newsletter which will further inform patrons about drought restrictions.  Additional options which are 
being considered include: 

• Reducing the amount of available showerheads in an effort to create a greater sense of urgency 
by the user to take a quick shower due to swimmers standing in line.   

• Installing water cut off valves to allow staff to turn off all non code required showers during 
summer recreation swim when showers are often left running and unattended.  Showers prior 
to entering and immediately exiting the pool would be available but not during programming. 

 



CITY OF SANTA BARBARA PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT                                   
2014-2015 STRATEGIC DROUGHT RESPONSE PLAN 

 

June 2014 20   
 

Cabrillo Bathhouse – The average monthly gallons of water used for the entire facility; including the 
upper level, exterior beach showers and restrooms is 257,935 gallons.  The highest water use can be 
attributed to the interior Bathhouse showers. All showers are currently equipped with low-flow 
showerheads (1.5gpm); however, the existing internal plumbing is dilapidated and will not support 
installation of low-flow urinals and dual flush toilets.  The Department plans to install new low-flow 
showerheads (0.62gpm) that will further reduce water use by 50%.  Concurrent with the showerhead 
replacement, new individual shower valves will be installed and the number of available showers will be 
reduced by 50%.  The concurrent implementations will require patrons to continuously hold a handle to 
deliver water while showering and create a greater sense of urgency to take a shorter shower.  New 
standardized signage is being designed to inform patrons that shower use is not to exceed five-minutes.   
 
East Beach Showers – These exterior showers are intended for the use of persons using the beach. The 
Department plans to turn off all three upper showerheads, but leave the two foot-showers active. The 
adjacent Cabrillo Bathhouse showers are available for use.  
 
Carrillo Gym – Except for the table tennis program which is open to the public, gym use is reserved by 
private user groups including non-profits, private schools, and a small adult pick-up game lunch group.  
Water use at the facility is very low, averaging less than two HCF per month. Though staff considered 
turning off the showers, since the benefit achieved would be minimal and the impact to the few shower 
user very high, it was decided to leave the showers on at this location. However, if water use increases, 
the decision may be revisited. Standard shower signage and the new low-flow (0.62 gpm) showerheads 
will be installed.  
 
Municipal Tennis Facility – The average monthly gallons of water used at the Municipal Tennis Facility is 
less than 3,000 gallons.  The existing restroom toilets and urinals cannot be updated with new waterless 
or dual flush options due to the existing plumbing.   There are a total of 12 interior showers, which have 
low-flow showerheads (1.5gpm).  Currently the showers are only accessible to annual permit holders 
that have been issued a combination for access.  There are a total 175 annual tennis permit holders, of 
which, fewer than 10 who use the shower facilities as part of their tennis activities.  Staff has confirmed 
that these permit holders enjoy the convenience of having a shower following their tennis activity but it 
is not considered a necessity.  Due to the infrequent use of the shower facilities and the potential for 
use to go up as residential water rates increase for residents, the Department plans to temporarily turn 
off and close these shower facilities.  This closure will involve consistent signage and annual tennis 
permit holders will be notified in-person and with the electronic tennis newsletter.   
 
Tennis Courts 
The Department maintains 12 tennis courts at the Municipal Tennis Center and two tennis courts at Oak 
Park. SBCC maintains the eight tennis courts at Pershing Park. Regular tennis court washing practices on 
City courts is conducted twice a month with a water efficient water broom using recycled water. To 
further conserve water, Tennis is purchasing a battery powered blower for daily court maintenance. As 



CITY OF SANTA BARBARA PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT                                   
2014-2015 STRATEGIC DROUGHT RESPONSE PLAN 

 

June 2014 21   
 

needed, the water broom will be used to remove any stubborn residues or materials that create unsafe 
playing surfaces.    
 
Recreation Rental Facilities 
For the most part, water use at Recreation rental facilities does not fluctuate, and since the water use is 
driven by public use (toilets, sinks, drinking fountains) and facility cleaning, the opportunity for water 
reducing measures is small. Water conservation will focus on educating facility users, eliminating 
wasteful water activities and on new water conservation policies for caterers.   
 
Neighborhood Centers 
The Recreation Division operates three neighborhood centers, including Westside, Franklin, and Louise 
Lowry Davis Center. Bilingual signage will be posted specific to area of use, tenants will be sent water 
conservation letters, and power washing will be discontinued on exterior surfaces (sidewalks and 
corridors) except for sanitation purposes.    
 
Community Gardens 
The Recreation Division manages four community garden facilities, including Rancheria, Parque de los 
Niños, Yanonali, and Pilgrim Terrace. Following the Stage Two Drought regulations, garden hand 
watering with a self-closing nozzle will only be allowed between 4:00 pm and 10:30 am, additional 
mulch will be provided, and bilingual signage will be posted.  
 
  



CITY OF SANTA BARBARA PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT                                   
2014-2015 STRATEGIC DROUGHT RESPONSE PLAN 

 

June 2014 22   
 

VI. CREEK RESTORATION AREAS 
 
The Creek Restoration Water Quality Improvement Program has completed four large creek restoration 
projects that have over 23,000 native plants and eight smaller projects with over 3,700 plants.  The sites 
are initially irrigated for two to three years following plant installation.  Irrigation is completely shut off 
after three years.  The projects also use recycled water when available at the site.  In addition, wood 
chips and drip irrigation are used at these sites to conserve water and to keep weeds down. 
 
General strategy 
The Creeks Division is currently irrigating the Mission Creek Restoration Project at Tallant Rd and the 
newly installed Low Impact Development (LID) parking lot landscaping.  The Tallant Rd. site is irrigated 
on an as-needed basis, which has been about twice per month.  Permits for the Tallant Rd. project 
require a certain amount of vegetative growth, so some irrigation will continue in order to ensure the 
project meets the permit performance measures.  And the LID parking lot site is being irrigated two 
mornings for an hour at a time.  This will be reduced in June to one day per week, then no irrigation 
once we get rain.   
 
In response to the drought, the Creeks Division has significantly reduced or ceased irrigation at all of its 
other restoration sites.  For example, the restoration areas on the Santa Barbara Golf Club property are 
not being irrigated at all now, and have not been irrigated for months.  Because the Creeks Division 
utilizes drought tolerant native plants in all of its restoration projects, the plants should survive 
(although they will not look as healthy) and bounce back when the rain does arrive. 
 
  



CITY OF SANTA BARBARA PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT                                   
2014-2015 STRATEGIC DROUGHT RESPONSE PLAN 

 

June 2014 23   
 

VII. GOLF COURSE 
 
The Santa Barbara Golf Club, the City’s only municipal golf course, is managed by the Golf Division. The 
golf course is open for play 364 days a year, with over 4,000 people a year playing more than 64,000 
rounds. The City maintains and operates the golf course with two concessionaires, Mulligans Restaurant 
and the Pro Shop. The course operates as an enterprise fund, meaning it is dependent upon revenue 
generated at the course and does not receive any tax dollars.   
 
At the golf course, 88% of water used is recycled and 12% is potable. Potable water is used in the 
restaurant, restrooms, and drinking fountains. It is also used to water the golf greens (for non-golfers 
this is the small, manicured putting area immediately surrounding each hole). The chemicals found in 
recycled water make it too damaging for the delicate turf comprising the greens, so potable water is 
used. Recycled water is used for the majority of irrigation and other areas of the course where allowed. 
 
The golf course is set in just under 100 acres of land with 20 putting greens, hundreds of trees of many 
species, and miles of fairway.  The challenges facing the golf course to maintain an attractive playing 
experience while conserving water are not to be underestimated. In the last major drought (1989-90), 
play declined over 25%, affecting revenues for the City and concessionaires. The golf course has faced 
serious financial setbacks over the last few years related to major construction and the recession. 
Although play has increased somewhat since the lowest point in 2009, it has still not recovered to pre- 
2009 levels. Staff is very concerned about dry course conditions becoming a deterrent to play, and the 
financial impact that will hold for the golf course operation. 
 
General Strategy 
Careful and specialized management of irrigation will be needed to ensure the golf course meets the 
standards expected of paying customers, while demonstrating effective water conservation to achieve 
the desired reduction in water use. The Santa Barbara Golf Club has a well-earned reputation for the 
quality of putting surfaces – maintaining that reputation is the highest priority for the golf course. Given 
that, it is unlikely that much can be done to reduce the amount of water used on greens without 
damaging the turf beyond repair. Moreover, the grass on the greens is particularly sensitive to heat and 
dry conditions given the need to maintain it at a shorter cut.   Since only 10% of the water used at the 
course is used on greens, it is expected that savings from other areas will negate the need to risk the 
putting surfaces. 
 
Shallow rooted turf needs to be watered differently than deep-rooted landscape shrubs.  Shrubs and 
perennials are generally more tolerant of changes in irrigation. Therefore, shrubs and deep-rooted 
plants in landscape beds are targeted for a reduction in irrigation along with areas of the course that the 
golf ball rarely travels into. In general, both the number of weekly irrigation cycles and the run-time of 
each cycle will be reduced.  
 



CITY OF SANTA BARBARA PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT                                   
2014-2015 STRATEGIC DROUGHT RESPONSE PLAN 

 

June 2014 24   
 

The ProShop and Mulligans are engaged in promoting water conservation within their respective 
businesses.  
 
Water Efficiencies 
Existing – The Golf Course computerized Central Control Irrigation System provides the highest irrigation 
efficiencies in the landscape industry. This system allows irrigation technicians to prevent or terminate 
irrigation during rain events and windy conditions. The system automatically adjusts irrigation schedules 
daily to match actual landscape water requirements, shuts off the system when mainline breaks or 
rainfall are detected, and automatic wind velocity detectors shut down the system when wind speeds 
exceed five miles per hour and allow the system to resume when wind speed fall below that level.  The 
golf course weather station operates in conjunction with the 33 satellite irrigation controllers and 
Central Control. Using daily weather data collection and evapotranspiration rates, commonly known as 
ETo (which is simply the loss of water from the soil surface into the atmosphere), to help manage water 
use on the course in the most efficient manner.  
 
Over the years, upgrades to the golf course irrigation system have improved water efficiency; however, 
the basic system is quite aged. Staff has been working with Public Works Water Resources over the last 
several months to map the  1,300+ sprinkler heads and irrigation system, identify where recycled and 
potable water are used, and evaluate the recycled water pumping operation for best efficiency.  
 
Water efficient icemakers and dishwashers are in used within the restaurant, along with waterless 
urinals in the maintenance shop.  Taps have efficient aerifiers, and timing has been set to reduce the 
water wasted in basins.   
 
In Process – Coupled with determining what is watered and how frequently, staff has been working with 
Public Works Water Resources to evaluate what irrigation infrastructure improvements might increase 
the effectiveness of irrigation, and the water pressure of the current system to ensure that sprinklers 
have the correct coverage, meaning that no one area is overwatered due to low pressure. Additionally,  
staff is evaluating whether the potable and recycled water irrigation infrastructures around all 20 greens 
can be redesigned to improve water efficiency.  Retrofitting of plumbing fixtures is being undertaken to 
reduce the amount of water used in restrooms.  The use of waterless soap and waterless urinals is being 
evaluated where financially feasible to install.  
 
Maintenance Practices and Modifications 
Hand watering is currently practiced on the greens and some trees to save water. This is less efficient 
from a labor standpoint, but necessary to ensure appropriate coverage and cooling in certain conditions. 
(Heat can exacerbate damage and disease, especially on the delicate greens.)The sprinkler system is 
controlled in blocks, meaning large areas are irrigated at one time.  Unfortunately, modifying the system 
to enable targeted watering of certain areas would require a major capital investment, thus hand 
watering is required.  
 



CITY OF SANTA BARBARA PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT                                   
2014-2015 STRATEGIC DROUGHT RESPONSE PLAN 

 

June 2014 25   
 

 Aerification has been stepped up and completed earlier in the year than would be typical. Aerification 
improves the amount of water that penetrates the turf and in turn encourages stronger deeper roots for 
the grass helping to improve the resilience of the turf and allowing staff to water more infrequently 
ending in significant water savings. 
 
A reduction in the time and frequency of watering the golf course has been in place for many months.  
This has resulted in some areas of the course looking drier than would typically be the case. The 
irrigation system works overnight when there is less evaporation due to heat and sunlight. Sprinklers are 
not being turned on in daylight hours unless due to exceptional circumstances.  The Central Control 
Irrigation System will stop all sprinklers if wind conditions are sufficient to lessen the effectiveness of the 
irrigation program.   
 
Mulching around trees, planters, and the practice areas enables less evaporation and reduces the 
amount of water required in those areas.  Water Trucks may be used to transport recycled or fresh 
water to areas where irrigation cannot be targeted sufficiently.  Care will be needed in terms of the 
weight on the access roads and turf to ensure damage is kept to a minimum. 
 
The Santa Barbara Golf Club has fully embraced the City’s Integrated Pest Management (IPM) Program, 
and is proud to be a leading example of reduced chemical use for other golf courses.  Occasionally, more 
hazardous materials are required to combat disease on the greens, especially as disease can take one or 
more greens literally overnight – resulting in thousands of dollars of damage. As needed, additional 
exemptions to use more hazardous materials will be submitted to the IPM Advisory Committee, should 
the Superintendent believe that the application will protect the greens, assist in compliance with Stage 
Two Drought regulations, and/or help to conserve water.   
 
Reduced Irrigation Frequency, Duration and Coverage 
The frequency and length of irrigation cycles have been reduced in response to the Stage One Drought 
declaration in February 2014, and additional changes are being implemented with Stage Two.  Weighing 
the impact on safety and play, targeted areas for further reduced watering have been identified, with a 
priority for protecting the playing surface of greens.  
 
Irrigation Priorities 
Resources will be focused on the following areas of the golf course in order of importance: 

1. Greens #1-18   
2. Main Putting Green 
3. Practice and Teaching Area 
4. Trees along perimeter of Course 
5. Second Putting Green (near #10) 
6. Tee Boxes on par 3s 
7. All other tee boxes 
8. Fairways  



CITY OF SANTA BARBARA PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT                                   
2014-2015 STRATEGIC DROUGHT RESPONSE PLAN 

 

June 2014 26   
 

9. All other trees 
10. Rough 
11. First 100 Yards 
12. Par 3 between Tee and Green 
13. Non playable areas 

 
Staff has prioritized further reductions in the low traffic areas of the course in order to achieve at least a 
20% or more reduction in water.  These actions will impact the look and playability of the course, but 
will also allow continued watering of more vital assets such as greens, tee boxes, fairways, and 
perimeter trees.  All four actions will be implemented concurrently; however, the following are ranked 
according to the frequency that golf shots are played from that area (i.e., number one has less impact to 
the golfer experience than number four).  

1. Out of play areas (target 10% of total water saving)  
2. Par 3, tee box to green  (target 2% of total water saving) 
3. First 100 yards of Par 4 and Par 5 holes. (target 12% of total water saving)  
4. Rough Areas (target 10% of total water saving)  

 
Trees 
Many trees will require hand watering to maintain them.  Trees are a natural shield for errant golf balls 
both internally on the course and on the perimeter; therefore, maintaining healthy trees are a safety 
priority for the course.  These trees require occasional deep watering, which can result in the perception 
of being wasteful; however, it is essential to ensure that the water penetrates deep enough for the trees 
to use it. 
 
Exception to Stage Two Regulations  
The Public Works Director has approved an exemption from the Stage Two Drought regulations to allow 
the Golf maintenance staff to water the greens outside of allowed hours. The golf course has 20 greens. 
Greens are maintained at a higher level than fairways, tee boxes, etc. due to the priority of those areas 
for the golfer experience. Greens are particularly susceptible to disease, fungus, and heat. When the 
weather is exceptionally dry and hot, it is necessary to use sprinklers or hand water the greens, which 
may occur outside of the allowed hours. The hose that is used for hand watering the greens has an 
automatic shut off nozzle as required within the regulations. 
 
Signage 
Communication with the customers is important so they can better understand the changes that they 
see on the golf course and in the restaurant, and to encourage water conservation actions. Signage is on 
display in the restaurant, pro shop and golf carts advising of the drought conditions. These include tent 
cards on tables in Mulligan’s and “waterwise” posters in the ProShop and restrooms, detailing some of 
the steps taken to reduce water use.  
 
 



CITY OF SANTA BARBARA PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT                                   
2014-2015 STRATEGIC DROUGHT RESPONSE PLAN 

 

June 2014 27   
 

Mulligan’s Restaurant  
The restaurant has water conservation tent cards on display at all tables. They now only serve water on 
request and in smaller glassware.  Restaurant staff will use power washers to clean outside areas, but 
will only do so to meet health and safety requirements given the area is used for eating and drinking.  
 
Cleaning of Vehicles, Equipment and Golf Carts 
Turf maintenance equipment is now being cleaned using air pressure and will be washed with water far 
less often. Cleaning with water is required on an occasional basis to remove salts that damage the 
blades and other metal components. When the machinery is cleaned with water, it is cleaned on the golf 
course with recycled water on grass areas around trees and on tee boxes to maximize water use.  
 
Golf Carts, which have routinely been cleaned with hose and nozzle, will be washed with cloths, and 
floor boards and cup holders being rinsed after each use.  Full cart washes will be limited to once a 
month.  It should be noted that water used to clean the carts is collected by drains that irrigate the 
course near the #1 tee box. 
 
  



CITY OF SANTA BARBARA PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT                                   
2014-2015 STRATEGIC DROUGHT RESPONSE PLAN 

 

June 2014 28   
 

VIII. DEPARTMENT WIDE EFFORTS AND CONCLUSION 
 
Outreach and Public Education 
The Department is working with the City’s Water Conservation Program to install water conservation 
signage in all of our public buildings, shower facilities, and restrooms. Tenants of Parks and Recreation 
facilities have been notified and encouraged to take extraordinary water conservation actions as well. In 
parks and at the golf course, the reduction in water use will be increasingly visible to the public as turf 
and some landscape areas dry out. Signage is being put in place to remind parks and golf course visitors 
that we are working to conserve our community water resources. Information and this Drought 
Strategic Response Plan will be placed on the Department website as well.    
 
Landscape Installation or Renovation Projects 
While the Department prioritizes renovation of landscaped area to reduce labor, water, and pesticide 
use, new plantings must be watered regularly for 2-3 years to establish healthy plants. For this reason, 
the Department will carefully analyze each proposed project to determine whether the project can be 
postponed until drought conditions have improved, or whether installation can be phased over time. For 
example, it may be cost effective to complete design and construction, delay plant installation and 
mulch the area until drought conditions have improved.  
 
Vehicle Washing 
The Department fleet includes work trucks, aerial lifts, tractors, mowers, and other assorted large 
vehicles, passenger vans, and a bus. The smaller Parks Division trucks and Recreation vans are cleaned at 
a drive-through car wash with recycled water. The large recreation bus is hand washed by a cleaning 
service that collects and recycles the water. Vans and the recreation bus are washed only when needed, 
no more than once or twice a year. The lifeguard truck is used primarily on the beaches and subject to 
sand and ocean moisture. It is washed daily during the summer operational months and as needed in 
the off-season to properly maintain the vehicle.  Cleaning is conducted at the City’s Yanonali wash 
station using a high pressure undercarriage device.  Parks Division trucks, mowers, and tractors are also 
washed at the City’s Yanonali wash station, but on an as needed basis, typically this is done twice a 
month.  The Forestry section also washes the aerial lift trucks at the City’s Yanonali wash station 15 
times a year to retain the dielectric capabilities and maintain electrical conductivity reduction. This 
practice will not be reduced. 
 
Financial Impacts of Drought Water Rates 
Over the last couple of years the Department has seen increased water expense, in most cases due to 
increased use of water due to dry conditions, as well as increased cost of water. In particular, the 
Department is projecting several shortfalls in water budgets in the current year, primarily due to 
changes in the City’s water rate structure and pricing which shows the cost of water increased between 
50% - 66%. In the General Fund the total shortfall is near $100,000 ($84,000 in Parks, $16,000 in 
Recreation), and Golf is projected at $76,000.  
 



CITY OF SANTA BARBARA PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT                                   
2014-2015 STRATEGIC DROUGHT RESPONSE PLAN 

 

June 2014 29   
 

In developing the FY 2015 budgets, the Department adjusted water budgets to the projected FY 2014 
actual. For the General Fund, $100,000 in new funding will augment the Parks Division and Recreation 
Division Budgets. The Golf Fund increased its water budget similarly by reducing other planned 
expenditures.    
 
While water cost may increase, less water is expected to be used throughout the Department. However, 
the Department is very concerned about the impact of the newly adopted Stage Two drought rates that 
will go into effect July 1, 2014. Staff will need to carefully monitor water use to insure compliance with 
the required 20% reduction. There is also the need to watch the cost of that water over the months 
against what is budgeted.  For the Golf Course especially, finding the right balance between 
conservation, cost containment, and preservation of rounds will be a challenge. 
 
Accountability 
The Department has 107 water meters that serve parks, recreation facilities, community building and 
golf course. There are separate meters for potable and recycled water, and each meter has a separate 
water bill. See table below.  

Parks and Recreation Water Meters 
 

  Potable Recycled Total 

GOLF 4 1 5 

PARKS 62 25 87 

RECREATION 14 1 15 

TOTAL 80 27 107 

 
The Department will be closely monitoring all water accounts with respect to water use and water cost 
vs. budget. While water cost may increase, less water is expected to be used throughout the 
Department. In Parks and Golf, most water meters are being monitored on a daily and/or weekly basis 
to assist with water conservation planning. Due to varying water priorities, it is expected that some 
meters may see a reduction greater than 20% while others may see a lower reduction or even an 
increase in use. Management will be reviewing division and department performance on a weekly and 
monthly basis, evaluating progress towards the water conservation target and monitoring impacts to 
natural resources and programs. Staff will provide occasional reports to the Parks and Recreation 
Commission on implementation of the Strategic Drought Response Plan and water conservation efforts 
in our parks, recreation facilities and golf course. 
 
CONCLUSION 
The 2014-2015 Strategic Drought Response Plan will guide the Parks and Recreation Department in how 
best to achieve City water conservation objectives. Water conservation is the key objective as the City, 
region and state are facing unprecedented drought conditions. However, as stewards of the 
community’s park and recreation resources, staff will also need to carefully manage how and where 
water is used to mitigate long-term damage and potential loss of these valued community assets.   
 



CITY OF SANTA BARBARA PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT                                   
2014-2015 STRATEGIC DROUGHT RESPONSE PLAN 

 

June 2014 30   
 

It has been 25 years since Santa Barbara, the Parks Department and Recreation Department (now Parks 
and Recreation Department), faced similar extreme drought conditions. There are many stories of parks 
and the golf course going brown, dry fountains, and similar outcomes. Unfortunately, staff has been 
unable to locate any planning documents that may have been used to guide the Department through 
that time. Staff will be using this Strategic Drought Response Plan as a working tool over the duration of 
the drought conditions. The plan will be modified as needed to ensure that the required reduction in 
water use is achieved. The plan and subsequent status reports will reside in department files so that 
these materials can be a resource going forward.      
 
 
APPENDICES 
A. Stage Two Drought Conditions Water Use Regulations, adopted by City Council May 20, 2014. 
B. Los Baños Signage (English and Spanish) 



 
City of Santa Barbara 

Stage 2 Drought Regulations & Waste of Water Prohibition  
 
On May 20, 2014, the Santa Barbara City Council declared a Stage Two Drought Condition 
in response to the driest consecutive three years on record, triggering drought related 
water use regulations. 

 
The Stage Two Water Use Regulations (SBMC 14.20.215) are Summarized as Follows: 
 

• Hoses must be equipped with an automatic shut-off nozzle. 
• Washing of pavement and other hard surfaces is generally prohibited. Exception: preventive 

maintenance of buildings and other facilities if accomplished by means of a pressure washer and when 
it is the only feasible means of correcting a potential threat to health and safety, provided it is 
accomplished by use of a pressure washer, mop, bucket, or brush. 

• Irrigation is limited to evening and early morning hours between the hours of 6:00 p.m. and 8:00 a.m. If 
manually operated, such irrigation is allowed only between the hours of 4:00 p.m. and 10:30 a.m.   

• Cars and boats must be washed at commercial facilities that recycle the water, or by hose with shut-off 
nozzle. 

• The use of water in ornamental water features and fountains is prohibited except:1) if located indoors or 
on residential properties; 2)for fountains that have a total water surface area less than or equal to 25 
ft.²; or 3)as of May 20, 2014 are home to aquatic life. 

• Pools and spas must be equipped with a cover when not in use. 
• No draining of pools by more than one third, unless authorized. 
• Drought notices required in restaurants and hotels; water served on request only. 
• Gyms, pools and other businesses providing showers must post drought notices and promote limitation 

of shower use. 
 

Santa Barbara Municipal Code (SBMC 14.20.007) Prohibits Waste of Water at All Times:  
 
Waste: "Waste" means any excessive, unnecessary or unwarranted use of water, including but not limited to 
any use which causes unnecessary runoff beyond the boundaries of any property as served by its meter and 
any failure to repair as soon as reasonably possible any leak or rupture in any water pipes, faucets, valves, 
plumbing fixtures or other water service appliances.   
 
Prohibition Against Waste of Water. It shall be a violation of this Chapter for any consumer or account 
holder to waste any water obtained from or through the distribution facilities of the City.  
 
Wasting Water - Repairs - Required.  Each and every consumer shall maintain in good order all his water 
pipes, faucets, valves, plumbing fixtures or any other appliances, at all times, to prevent waste of water.   
 
Violations 
 

A. Any failure to comply with a provision of this Chapter shall constitute a violation of this Code, regardless 
of whether the failure to comply is caused by an account holder, a consumer or any other person or 
entity. 
 

B. Where the failure to comply with this Chapter is continuing and reasonably preventable by the person 
or entity failing to comply, each successive hour of such failure to comply shall be a separate and 
distinct violation.  

 
Enforcement Process: 
 
1st Violation: Door hanger and Warning letter 
2nd Violation: $250 fine per violation 
3rd Violation: $250 fine per violation and possible flow restrictor 
4th and Subsequent Violation: $250 fine per violation, possible flow restrictor or shut off water service 

APPENDIX A



Enjoy Your Shower, 

But also Save Water!

Please Limit your Shower
to less than 5 minutes.

During these dry times 
any additional water savings 

you can do, helps offset water shortages
that are projected for next water year.

Let’s Save Together

APPENDIX B



Disfrute su Ducha

Pero Tambien Conserve Agua!

Por favor Limite su ducha 
a menos de 5 minutos. 

Durante estos tiempos de sequedad
cualquier ahorro de agua adicional que

usted puede hacer, ayuda a compensar la escasez de agua 
que se proyecta para el proximo año.

Ahorremos juntos

APPENDIX B



Agenda Item No.  22 
 

File Code No.  530.04 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
  

COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 
 
 

 
AGENDA DATE: July 15, 2014 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Transportation Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Bicycle Master Plan Update Community Engagement Process 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council approve the proposed approach for a community engagement process to 
update the Bicycle Master Plan. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 
The Bicycle Master Plan was last comprehensively updated in 1998, and the plan was re-
adopted by Council in 2003 and 2008.  The City is required to update the Bicycle Master 
Plan every four years in order to qualify for grant funding through the State of California’s 
Active Transportation Program, formerly the Bicycle Transportation Account.   
 
The City has made significant bicycle achievements that have benefited residents and 
received national recognition.  The next level of bicycle improvements will require a 
renewed community commitment.  The easier bike network expansion improvements have 
been done.  Further improvements will need to balance all modes of transportation based 
on community needs and desires.  Understanding the community’s needs and desires for 
bicycling, therefore, is the proposed focus of the Bicycle Master Plan Update. The 
following objectives are proposed for the Bicycle Master Plan Update: 
 

1. Identify current bike network deficiencies and analyze bike collision record. 
2. Gauge the community’s commitment level to bicycling now and in the future. 
3. Increase community awareness of the rules of the road and promote mutual 

respect between road users. 
4. Propose an updated Bike Master Plan that reflects the community’s input and 

needed safety improvements. 
  
Staff is coming to Council for the approval of the proposed community engagement 
process before releasing the request for proposal.  
 
 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Bicycle Master Plan Update Community Engagement Process  
July 15, 2014 
Page 2 

 

DISCUSSION: 
 
Background 
 
Since 1998, the City of Santa Barbara has made significant advancements in bicycling 
for transportation and recreation.  The three main goals of the 1998 Plan update were: 
1) Making a decision to ride, 2) Improving the bicycle network, and 3) Removing 
destination barriers and providing bicycle parking.  City staff, alongside other regional 
partners, have made considerable progress with all three Plan objectives.   
 
The network of bike lanes has been expanded from 13 to 40 lane miles.  The number of 
additional places to lock a bike has been expanded by an estimated 2,000 locations in 
the public realm and in new commercial and multi-family developments.  An example of 
a Capital Improvement Project that added a separate bike path is the Shoreline Bike 
Lane Project between La Marina and Loma Alta Drive, adjacent to Ledbetter Beach.  
The City has supported various successful programs to invite Santa Barbara residents 
to try bicycling through Bike-to-Work-Week, Bike to School, the Team Bike Challenge, 
CycleMAYnia, and “Take a Vacation from your Car”. 
  
These community and non-profit led activities, along with City investments in the 
transportation infrastructure, have enhanced the public awareness and attractiveness of 
bicycling. Cycling for transportation has gradually increased from 3.4 percent of the 
commute to work in 2000 to 6.9 percent in 2012, as reported by the United States 
Census Bureau.  Santa Barbara is ranked 3rd in the nation for percentage of cycling 
commute trips for cities our size (65,000 – 100,000 people) and 8th overall in the nation 
among all cities.  The proportion of Santa Barbara residents who drive to work has 
dropped from 80 percent in 2000 to 72 percent in 2012, while the share of workers 
biking, walking, and taking transit has grown by 101 percent, 10 percent, and 27 
percent, respectively, over the same period.  Accordingly, the rise in bicycling and other 
modes has equated to a reduction in traffic congestion. 
 
Future Bicycle Infrastructure 
 
Bike growth in terms of percentage of commute trips has grown across America by 61 
percent since 2000. Communities like Long Beach, Los Angeles, San Luis Obispo, San 
Francisco and Santa Cruz have installed modern bike facilities, separated lanes, bike 
share programs, bicycle boulevards, and even painted bike lanes in a contrasting color 
to increase visibility.  Staff has received requests from community members who have 
visited these cities and suggested similar facilities in Santa Barbara.  Additionally, the 
League of American Cyclist has rated Santa Barbara at the Silver level for bicycling for 
the past 9 years (league scorecard is attached).  Gold, Platinum, and Diamond are 
levels that could be achieved with further expansion of the bike network. 
 
Expanding the City’s bike network in Santa Barbara can be accomplished, but requires 
community commitment to implement.  Nearly all of the “easy” Class II bike lanes have 
been completed.  Most bike lanes were added by restriping wider streets at the time 



Council Agenda Report 
Bicycle Master Plan Update Community Engagement Process  
July 15, 2014 
Page 3 

 

they were repaved.  Haley Street is the most recent example.  Additional expansion will 
likely involve some compromises in the form of additional one-way streets, lane 
reconfigurations, or removal of on-street parking (Bath and Castillo bike lanes are 
examples of streets that were made one way in the early 1970’s to accommodate bike 
lanes).  The question is: what does Santa Barbara’s bicycle future look like?  How far 
does the community want to go to provide for bicycling?  To answer these questions, 
the staff is proposing a focus on community engagement for the scope of work of the 
Bicycle Master Plan Update.  
 
Proposed Community Engagement Process 
 
Staff recommends the following scope of work for a community engagement process.  
Staff recommends selecting a firm that specializes in community engagement rather 
than bicycle planning. A professional bike planning firm could be a subcontracted 
service to provide expertise on cycling infrastructure and planning options.  
   
Staff hired a public relations consultant to develop a community engagement strategy 
for the Bicycle Master Plan Update. The proposed strategy calls for a listening 
campaign to engage the community, which would include the following components: 
 

• Online Survey:  The survey will be framed by a short video entitled: “The Santa 
Barbara Bicycle Dilemma.”  The video short will also be used broadly in 
presentations to describe the process and invite participation from the 
community.  The survey provides an opportunity to ask a broad range of 
questions, is easy to access, can be completed at the user’s convenience, and 
will reach those inclined to use the Internet and smart phones. 

 
• Interviews:  Interviews would be conducted in the physical context of the users, 

such as on the street, at bike racks, in the business district, etc.  A team of 
trained interviewers would conduct one-on-one interviews (250) with people that 
represent distinct perspectives and experiences: people who bicycle, drive motor 
vehicles, and walk; Downtown business owners, and homeowners who live along 
bike lanes and routes (about 50 interviews for each category).  The interviews 
would be videotaped to tell the story of what residents are saying. 

 
• Stakeholder Road Show:  Staff would conduct outreach to local groups of interest 

including community groups, School Parent Teacher Associations, and business 
organizations to increase community awareness of the project, promote 
participation, and gain insights.   

 
• “The Future of Cycling” Neighborhood Summits:  The community outreach 

professionals would use the survey results, the interviews, and the stakeholder 
input to produce a presentation of what residents are  recommending about its 
bicycle future. This presentation would be taken to the Downtown, Eastside, 
Westside, Mesa, and Uptown neighborhoods.  Neighborhood-specific proposals 
for bicycle improvements would be vetted with the goal of establishing 2-3 key 



Council Agenda Report 
Bicycle Master Plan Update Community Engagement Process  
July 15, 2014 
Page 4 

 

initiatives based on community input.  These summits would be videotaped to 
capture the meeting process, outcomes, and participation. 

• Draft a Bicycle Master Plan Update:  Using the community survey, the one-on-
one interviews, the stakeholder outreach, and neighborhood summits, the 
consultants would produce a Draft Bicycle Master Plan Update and mini-
documentary telling the story of the process and the outcomes.  Boards, 
Commissions, and Council would be presented options for implementation.  
Whatever the option chosen by council, Staff would prepare for immediate 
implementation of any approved council projects such that actions are taken as 
close as possible to the community/council decisions. 

 
• Boards and Commissions:  This process envisions multiple check-ins with the 

Boards, Commissions, and Council to keep decision makers actively engaged in 
the process at various milestones.  Staff proposes including the Transportation 
Circulation Committee, Downtown Parking Committee, and Planning 
Commission as the guiding Boards and Commissions invested in this process. 

 
Board and Commission Input 
 
Staff took this item before the Transportation Circulation Committee (TCC) and the 
Council Sustainability Committee.  Both supported the proposed community process.  
The Sustainability Committee  asked that examples of facilities in other cities be tried so 
that the community could learn about modern bike facilities first hand.  The TCC also 
asked for examples.  Staff is considering the cost of painting some portions of a bike 
lane green as one example that has been well received in other cities by both motorists 
and cyclists. 
 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
If Council approves the proposed scope of work, a request for proposals will be issued for 
consulting services to conduct the community engagement process. Staff will return to 
Council to recommend awarding the contract. The budget for drafting the Bicycle Master 
Plan Update and conducting the proposed scope of work is $200,000.  The City received 
$130,000 in regional Measure A funds to create the new Bicycle Master Plan and the 
balance of anticipated cost ($70,000) is funded via the Streets Measure A Fund.  
 
SUSTAINABILITY IMPACT:   
 
Implementation of the Bicycle Master Plan increased bicycle ridership in Santa Barbara.    
More people choosing to bicycle helps to reduce daily traffic congestion, pollution, and 
the use of non-renewable fossil fuels.  Bicycle use also promotes a healthy lifestyle.   
 
ATTACHMENT: League of American Bicyclist Scorecard for Santa Barbara 
PREPARED BY: Browning Allen, Transportation Manager/RD/kts 
SUBMITTED BY: Rebecca J. Bjork, Public Works Director 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 



0                                   2  5

CRASH RATE
189 
Per 10k daily cyclists

0                              7 20

RIDERSHIP
6.9%
Commuting by bicycle

0                                                  8  15

FATALITY RATE
.8
Per 10k daily cyclists

0                                              5  10

PUBLIC RATING
Local cyclists  
take on Santa Barbara

0                                        5  10

EDUCATION
Motorist awareness and 
bicycling skills

0                                    4 10

ENFORCEMENT
Promoting safety and 
protecting bicyclists’ rights

0                                               5  10

ENCOURAGEMENT
Mainstreaming bicycle 
culture

0                                    4                                                       10

EVALUATION
Setting targets and having 
a plan

0                          3  10

ENGINEERING
Bicycling network and  
connectivity

COMMUNITY:

SANTA BARBARA  
CALIFORNIA
TOTAL POINTS:

43 
of  100 

KEY STEPS  
TO GOLD
Expand the bike network and improve 
network connectivity through the use 
of bike lanes, buffered bike lanes, 
cycle tracks and bike boulevards

Increase bike program staff beyond 
current 0.5 FTE and establish a Bicycle 
Advisory Committee

Update the current 1998 bike plan, 
setting a high but attainable target for 
safety, ridership and comfort

GET INVOLVED: 
ANSWER 5 SHORT 
QUESTIONS TO IMPROVE 
BIKING & GET CONNECTED  
TO LOCAL ADVOCACY! 

» BIKELEAGUE.ORG/    
COMMUNITY-SURVEY

»

SANTA BARBARA IS A

LEARN MORE » WWW.BIKELEAGUE.ORG/COMMUNITIES SUPPORTED BY

2000–2012

RIDERSHIP 
GROWTH 

80%

101%

NATIONAL

AVERAGE 
 BFC

SANTA  
BARBARA

61%

Bronze Silver Gold Platinum Diamond

Bronze Silver Gold Platinum Diamond

ATTACHMENT



Agenda Item No.  23 

File Code No.  640.09 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: July 15, 2014 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Planning Division, Community Development Department 
 
SUBJECT: Municipal Code Amendments For Implementation Of Senate Bill 2 

Related To Emergency Shelter Zoning 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council introduce and subsequently adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Establishing Regulations for Emergency Shelters.  
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 
Senate Bill 2 (SB2) requires municipalities to provide zoning that encourages and 
facilitates emergency shelters, and limits the ability of a city or county to deny land use 
permits necessary to open an emergency shelter or develop transitional and supportive 
housing. Specifically, SB2 requires jurisdictions to provide a zone or zones where 
emergency shelters are permitted without a conditional use permit or other discretionary 
action.  To satisfy the requirements of SB2, the City Council directed Staff to prepare 
ordinance amendments allowing emergency shelters with minimal services without a 
conditional use permit or other discretionary action in zones that allow overnight 
accommodations. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Background 
 
SB2 was enacted in 2007, requiring all cities and counties in California to provide at 
least one zoning district which allows emergency shelters without a conditional use 
permit or other discretionary approval.  The Housing Element must identify the zoning 
district and demonstrate that there is sufficient land capacity to accommodate the 
locality’s need for emergency shelters and at least one year-round emergency shelter 
facility.  To comply with this mandate, the 2011 Housing Element included Implementation 
Action H4.1 directing amendments to the Commercial Manufacturing (C-M) zoning district 
allowing emergency shelters without a conditional use permit or other discretionary action 
within one year of adoption of the Housing Element (the one year timeline is required by 



Council Agenda Report 
Municipal Code Amendments For Implementation Of Senate Bill 2 Related To 
Emergency Shelter Zoning 
July 15, 2014 
Page 2 

 

SB2).  The C-M zone has sufficient land capacity (123 vacant or underutilized parcels) and 
allows the development of residential uses, including mixed use development and other 
related uses that encourage emergency shelters, therefore making the zone suitable and 
appropriate to meet the City’s identified unmet need for emergency shelter beds. 
 
Under the Municipal Code, facilities that provide overnight shelter to the homeless are also 
considered short-term, transitional accommodations similar to a hotel use.  As a result, 
upon further review and consultation with the City Attorney, it was determined that the City 
appears to meet the requirements of SB2 because it provides multiple zones that allow the 
development of hotels that are, in effect, “overnight accommodation” uses similar to 
overnight emergency shelter for the homeless. 
 
These zones include the R-4 (Hotel-Motel-Multiple Residential), HRC-1 & HRC-2 (Hotel 
and Related Commerce), R-H (Resort-Residential), C-P (Restricted Commercial), C-L 
(Limited Commercial), C-1 (Limited Commercial), C-2 (Commercial), C-M (Commercial-
Manufacturing), OC (Ocean-Oriented Commercial), M-1 (Light Manufacturing) and OM-1 
(Ocean-Oriented Light Manufacturing) zones. 
 
Initiation of Ordinance Amendments 
 
On November 12, 2013, Staff presented two options for Council’s consideration: 1) permit 
emergency shelters with minimal supportive services without a conditional use permit or 
other discretionary action in existing zones where overnight accommodations are currently 
allowed, or 2) limit the development of emergency shelters with minimal supportive 
services to specific zones.  The City Council voted unanimously to direct Staff to proceed 
with option 1 and prepare municipal code amendments permitting emergency shelters with 
minimal supportive services without a conditional use permit or other discretionary action 
in zones that currently allow overnight shelter. 
 
Ordinance Committee Review 
 
On May 13, 2014, the Ordinance Committee considered the draft ordinance amendments 
allowing emergency shelters without a conditional use permit in zones that permit 
overnight accommodations.  Staff recommended that the Ordinance Committee remove 
the HRC-1, HRC-2, R-H, OC, and OM-1 zones due to unsuitability of the zone and/or 
timing issues with the Local Coastal Program (LCP) Update process.  The Ordinance 
Committee voted 2 to 1 to accept Staff’s recommendation and forward the ordinance 
amendments to the Planning Commission for further review, and subsequently to Council 
for adoption. 
 
Committee Member Hotchkiss opposed the motion as he preferred that emergency 
shelters without conditional use permits be allowed in a single zone (e.g., C-M zone), 
rather than multiple zones.  Committee Members Rowse and Murillo felt it would be 
beneficial to designate more than one zoning district as this approach would both allow for 



Council Agenda Report 
Municipal Code Amendments For Implementation Of Senate Bill 2 Related To 
Emergency Shelter Zoning 
July 15, 2014 
Page 3 

 

greater distribution as well as provide more opportunity sites to meet the City’s homeless 
need. 
 
Planning Commission Review 
 
On June 12, 2014, the Planning Commission reviewed the proposed ordinance 
amendments recommended by the Ordinance Committee.  Staff recommended that the 
M-1 zone be removed as a suitable zone for emergency shelters.  Because the M-1 zone 
discourages residential uses due to potential incompatibility with adjacent heavy industrial 
uses, it was determined that the M-1 would be unsuitable for emergency shelter use as 
well (see Attachment 1).  The Planning Commission considered the draft ordinance 
amendments and after discussing the key aspects of the ordinance voted 6/1 to forward 
to Council the draft ordinance amendments with changes.  The Planning Commission’s 
recommended changes to the ordinance are discussed below. 
 
Proposed Ordinance Amendments 
 
The discussion below highlights the comments provided, and recommendations made 
by the Ordinance Committee and Planning Commission related to the emergency 
shelter zoning ordinance amendments.  
 
Emergency Shelter Definition 
 
The definition of “Emergency Shelter” is included in the draft ordinance amendments 
(Section 28.04.273) to define the parameters of shelters with minimal supportive 
services pursuant to SB2.  The definition is consistent with SB2 and the Health and 
Safety Code (Section 50801(e)) and also clarifies that emergency/homeless shelters 
that provide supportive services beyond those described in the definition would be 
required to obtain a Conditional Use Permit.   
 
Permitted Zones 
 
During its initial review, Council determined that the City complies with SB2 
requirements because there are existing multifamily and commercial zones that allow 
overnight accommodations (see Attachment 2).  Homeless shelters provide transitional 
accommodations similar to hotel use and therefore can be developed without a 
conditional use permit in these zones.  Staff has since determined that the R-H, OC, 
OM-1, HRC-1 HRC-2, and M-1 zones are unsuitable to satisfy the requirements of SB2 
and recommends that these zones not be included in the proposed ordinance 
amendments. 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Municipal Code Amendments For Implementation Of Senate Bill 2 Related To 
Emergency Shelter Zoning 
July 15, 2014 
Page 4 

 

The zones listed below are not included in the ordinance amendments due to suitability 
of the zone and/or timing with the LCP Update.   

 HRC-1: Zone not suitable at this time due to the LCP Update certification timing. 
 HRC-2: Zone not suitable at this time due to the LCP Update certification timing. 
 R-H: Zone not suitable because the R-H zone is specific to the El Encanto 

Hotel and sufficient land capacity is unavailable. 
 OC: Zone not suitable because hotel use is allowed with CUP and not by right, 

as well as the LCP Update certification timing. 
 OM-1: Zone not suitable because hotel use is allowed with CUP and not by right, 

as well as the LCP Update certification timing. 
 M-1: Zone not suitable because residential uses are discouraged, therefore 

potentially incompatible with emergency shelter use.  
 
Both the Ordinance Committee and Planning Commission supported Staff’s reasoning 
for removing these zones.  Additionally, the majority of the Ordinance Committee and 
Planning Commission supported designating multiple zones, rather than a single zone 
stating that a wider area would allow flexibility for dispersal of emergency shelter 
facilities.  Ordinance Committee Member Hotchkiss and Planning Commissioner Jordan 
preferred a single zone (e.g., C-M zone). 
 
The Ordinance Committee voted 2/1 and the Planning Commission voted 6/1 to 
designate the R-4, C-P, C-L, C-1, C-2 and C-M zones as suitable for the development 
of emergency shelters without a conditional use permit or other discretionary approval, 
but subject to certain development and management standards as allowed by State law 
(see Attachment 3). 
 
Development and Management Standards 
 
SB2 allows the application of a very specific and narrow set of development and 
management standards for the operation of emergency shelters (e.g., number of beds, 
length of stay, parking, lighting, etc.).  State law is clear that these standards as well as 
any permit processing procedure must be designed to encourage and facilitate the 
development of an emergency shelter and not unduly impede the operation.  The 
standards described below are included in proposed Chapter 28.79 (Emergency Shelter 
Regulations): 
 
 Capacity – Based on the homeless need identified in the Housing Element, as well 

as the number of beds currently provided by existing facilities, Staff proposes that 
shelters developed in the R-4 zone be limited to a maximum of 50 beds, shelters 
located in the identified commercial zones would be limited to a maximum of 100 
beds. 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Municipal Code Amendments For Implementation Of Senate Bill 2 Related To 
Emergency Shelter Zoning 
July 15, 2014 
Page 5 

 

 Length of Stay – According to the State’s definition of an Emergency Shelter, an 
individual’s occupancy is limited to six months or less.  A review of several local 
shelters found that length of stay ranged from 10 days to 120 days, with extensions 
available on case by case basis.  The length of stay for emergency shelters with 
minimal supportive services proposed by the ordinance is limited to six months or 
less.   
 

 Intake/Waiting Area – Most if not all emergency shelter facilities provide intake and 
waiting areas.  Adequate interior intake and waiting areas are necessary to reduce 
queuing outside or loitering on adjacent properties.  Based on ordinances from other 
jurisdictions, approximately 10 square feet of space per bed is needed to provide 
sufficient intake and waiting areas.  The proposed ordinance specifies that at least 
10 square feet per bed must be provided to accommodate intake and waiting areas.  
In addition, these areas shall be located within the building. 
 
Ordinance Committee Member Murillo expressed concern that 10 square feet of 
floor area per bed might be excessive, especially for emergency shelters trying to 
maximize the number of beds.  Staff explained that the intent was to provide 
sufficient space indoors so that intake and waiting activities do not occur outdoors.  
Conversely, Planning Commissioner Jordan felt that 10 square feet per bed was not 
adequate to handle 24 hour operations. 
 
Changes to this standard were not recommended by the Ordinance Committee.  
However, the Planning Commission recommended that the proposed Intake/Waiting 
Area standard be amended to include the words “at least” 10 square feet of interior 
intake and waiting space per bed be provided.   The proposed ordinance has been 
revised to reflect this recommendation. 
 

 Outdoor Area/Activity – Most emergency shelter facilities provide outdoor gathering 
areas for their residents.  The proposed ordinance amendments require outdoor 
areas that are used for gathering and activities to be screened from the public right 
of way and adjacent properties.  Policies related to outdoor activities would be 
addressed in the facility’s management plan. 
 

 Parking – Because there is no parking standard for emergency shelters, Staff initially 
proposed that parking for emergency shelters be based on their parking need 
identified by a parking demand study.  This approach is consistent with what has 
been required of existing emergency shelters (Rescue Mission, Transition House, 
and Casa Esperanza).  Parking for these facilities is based on their need determined 
through a parking demand study. 
 
The Ordinance Committee supported this approach and voted to forward this 
standard as proposed.  However, the Planning Commission expressed concern that 
requiring a parking demand study would result in undue burden and/or financial 



Council Agenda Report 
Municipal Code Amendments For Implementation Of Senate Bill 2 Related To 
Emergency Shelter Zoning 
July 15, 2014 
Page 6 

 

hardship to non-profit providers and requested that Staff develop a parking standard 
for emergency shelter use. 
 
Research of the homeless population reveals that most individuals do not own a car, 
limiting the demand for parking.  To determine a specific parking rate, Staff reviewed 
a past parking demand study from the highest period in winter months at Casa 
Esperanza.  Based on parking counts, the proposed emergency shelter parking 
standard has been revised to include a parking rate of one parking space for every 
10 beds and at least one parking space for each on-duty staff employee or volunteer 
during peak hours times for volunteers and staff.  One covered and secured bicycle 
parking space for every four beds would also be required.  Fewer parking spaces 
may be proposed if it can be demonstrated by a parking study that the proposed 
parking will meet the shelter’s parking need. 
 
From observations of the Casa Esperanza operation, Staff believes that the 
proposed parking rate for emergency shelters is sufficient to meet on-site parking 
demand and not impact street parking.  Staff recommends that the City Council 
approve the revised parking standard. 
 

 Lighting – The proposed ordinance amendments require that lighting be provided in 
compliance with the City’s Outdoor Lighting Ordinance.  In addition, the emergency 
shelter would be required to provide adequate on-site external lighting to ensure a 
safe and secure environment. 
 

 Concentration of Uses – SB2 allows local governments to regulate the proximity of 
emergency shelters to other shelters provided that they are not required to be more 
than 300 feet apart.  The proposed ordinance requires that no more than one shelter 
shall be within 300 feet of another shelter. 
 

 On-Site Management – An on-site management plan would be required to address 
certain operational and management aspects of the shelter.  The management plan 
addresses operational procedures and policies related to shelter uses and 
amenities, such as hours of operation, on-site management and security, 
cooking/dining facilities, laundry facilities, and outdoor gathering and activity policies.  
The shelter’s management plan must be submitted for review with the master 
application and subject to approval by the Community Development Director. 
 

 Ability to Pay – State law prohibits the denial of emergency shelter to a homeless 
individual or household due to an inability to pay.  The proposed amendments 
specify this requirement.  
 



Council Agenda Report 
Municipal Code Amendments For Implementation Of Senate Bill 2 Related To 
Emergency Shelter Zoning 
July 15, 2014 
Page 7 

 

Conditional Use Permits 
 
SB2 defines Emergency Shelter as “housing with minimal supportive services for 
homeless persons that is limited to occupancy of six months or less by a homeless 
person.  No individual or household may be denied emergency shelter because of an 
inability to pay.” 
 
Proposed Section 28.04.273 defines an emergency shelter with minimal supportive 
services, including administrative office, intake and waiting areas, kitchen/dining 
facilities, and laundry facilities that are directly related to and for the exclusive use of the 
residents.  Emergency shelters with supportive services beyond those listed in 
proposed Section 28.04.273 must obtain a conditional use permit pursuant to Section 
28.94.030.W. of the municipal code.  This section would be amended to include 
emergency shelters with expanded supportive services and programs (e.g., health 
services, counseling, etc.) as a permitted use allowed upon the granting of a conditional 
use permit. 
 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
The Zoning Ordinance Amendments related to emergency shelter zoning pursuant to 
SB2 do not require allocation of funds.  The amendments can be prepared and 
implemented with existing staff resources. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):   1. Planning Commission Staff Report without Exhibits, dated 

June 5, 2014 
 2. Zones that Allow Hotel Use Map 
 3. Recommended Emergency Shelter Zone Map 
 
PREPARED BY: Irma Unzueta, Project Planner 
 
SUBMITTED BY: George Buell, Community Development Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 















ATTACHMENT 2



ATTACHMENT 3



1 
 

COUNCIL INTRODUCTION DRAFT 7/15/14 
SHOWING CHANGES FROM EXISTING CODE 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA ESTABLISHING REGULATIONS FOR 
EMERGENCY SHELTERS  

 
WHEREAS, Senate Bill 2 was enacted in 2007, requiring all cities and counties in California to 
provide at least one zoning district which allows emergency shelters without a conditional use 
permit or other discretionary approval; 

WHEREAS, on December 1, 2011, the City Council adopted an update to the General Plan, 
including policies in the Housing Element directing amendments to Title 28 of the Municipal 
Code in compliance with Senate Bill 2 requiring emergency shelters in at least one zone without 
any discretionary permits (Council Resolution No. 11-079); 

WHEREAS, the 2011 Housing Element contains Implementation Action H4.1 directing 
Municipal Code amendments to the C-M (Commercial Manufacturing) zone to allow emergency 
shelters without a conditional use permit or other discretionary action; 

WHEREAS, upon further review and consultation with the City Attorney’s Office, it was 
determined that the City is in compliance with the requirements of Senate Bill 2 because multiple 
zones exist which allow the development of hotels that are, in effect, “overnight 
accommodation” uses similar to overnight emergency shelter for the homeless; 

WHEREAS, under the City’s Zoning Ordinance, facilities that provide overnight shelter to the 
homeless are also considered short-term, transitional accommodations similar to a hotel use and 
are allowed without a conditional use permit in all zones that permit overnight accommodations; 

WHEREAS, overnight accommodations are allowed in the R-4 (Hotel-Motel-Multiple 
Residence), HRC-1 and HRC-2 (Hotel and Related Commerce), R-H (Resort Residential), C-P 
(Restricted Commercial), C-L and C-1 (Limited Commercial), C-2 (Commercial), C-M 
(Commercial Manufacturing), OC (Ocean-Oriented Commercial), M-1 (Light Manufacturing), 
and OM-1 (Ocean-Oriented Light Manufacturing) zones; 

WHEREAS, on November 12, 2013, the City Council initiated amendments to the Zoning 
Ordinance to permit emergency shelters with minimal supportive services without a conditional 
use permit or other discretionary approval in existing zones where overnight accommodations 
are allowed; 

WHEREAS, on May 13, 2014, the City Council Ordinance Committee held a public hearing to 
review the draft Emergency Shelter Zoning Ordinance and voted 2/1 to forward the ordinance 
amendments to the Planning Commission for further review and refinement; 

WHEREAS, on June 12, 2014, the Planning Commission held a duly noticed public hearing to 
review the draft Emergency Shelter Zoning Ordinance and after discussing the key components 



2 
 

of the ordinance voted 6/1 to forward the ordinance amendments with revisions to the City 
Council for adoption; 

WHEREAS, on _______________, The City Council held a duly noticed public hearing to adopt 
ordinance amendments to the Municipal Code adding Chapter 28.79 establishing development 
and management standards for emergency shelters with minimal supportive services; adding 
Section 28.04.273 to define emergency shelters consistent with State law; amending Sections 
28.21.030, 28.54.030, 28.57.030, 28.63.030, 28.66.030, and 28.69.030 to add emergency shelter 
as a permitted use; and amending Section 28.94.030.W to specify which emergency shelters 
require a Conditional Use Permit; and 

WHEREAS, a Program Final Environmental Impact Report (FEIR) was certified for the 2011 
General Plan, and includes EIR Addenda prepared and considered by City Council as part of 
adoption of the final 2011 General Plan (12-1-11), Climate Action Plan (9-18-12), and Historic 
Resources Element (10-2-12). 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA BARBARA DOES ORDAIN AS 
FOLLOWS: 

 
SECTION 1. The City Council of the City of Santa Barbara makes the following findings in 
accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act regarding the adoption of the 
Emergency Shelter Zoning Ordinance: 

1. Public Resources Code Section 21083.3 and CEQA Guidelines Section 15183 
provide that projects which are consistent with the development density established by General 
Plan policies for which a FEIR was certified, and rezoning consistent with the plan, shall not 
require additional environmental review except under specified instances.  The City 
Environmental Analyst determined that the proposed zoning ordinance amendments to the 
General Plan emergency shelter policies do not trigger additional environmental review 
requirements for the following reasons: 

a. There are no additional site-specific or project-specific significant effects 
which are peculiar to the proposed zoning amendments; 

b. There are no new significant effects not addressed in the prior FEIR; and  
c. There is no new information since the FEIR that would involve more 

significant impacts than identified in the FEIR. 

Environmental review for the proposed zoning ordinance amendments is addressed by the 
General Plan FEIR and Addenda, and no further environmental review is required. 

2. The policies and standards for the development of emergency shelters with 
minimal supportive services have been previously analyzed in the FEIR and Addenda for the 
General Plan.  Specifically, the environmental impacts associated with implementing the General 
Plan policies related to homeless shelters and services were included in the General Plan FEIR 
and Addendum and the potential emergency shelter development under the implementing 
ordinance is within in the growth assumptions analyzed. 

 



3 
 

3. The City Planner is the custodian of the record of proceedings for the General 
Plan Update FEIR, the Addenda, and the documents and other materials which constitute the 
record of proceedings for these City actions are located at the City of Santa Barbara Community 
Development Department, Planning Division, 630 Garden Street, Santa Barbara, California.  
Copies of these documents are available for public review during normal business hours upon 
request at the office of the City of Santa Barbara Community Development Department, 
Planning Division. 

SECTION 2.  Chapter 28.04 of Title 28 of the Santa Barbara Municipal Code is amended by 
adding Section 28.04.273 to read as follows: 
 

28.04.273 Emergency Shelter. 

 Housing for homeless persons with minimal supportive services that is limited to a length of 

occupancy of not more than six months.  Minimal supportive services shall mean administrative 

offices, intake and waiting areas, kitchen and dining facilities, and laundry facilities as long as 

the facilities are directly related to the operation of the emergency shelter or for the exclusive use 

of the residents of the emergency shelter.  Homeless shelters providing more than minimal 

supportive services or supportive services to persons other than the residents of the shelter shall 

require a conditional use permit pursuant to Section 28.94.030.W of this Title. 

 
SECTION 3.  Sections 28.21.030, 28.54.030, 28.57.030, 28.63.030, 28.66.030, and 28.69.030 of 
Title 28 of the Santa Barbara Municipal Code are amended to read as follows: 
 
 
28.21.030 Uses Permitted. 
 
 A. R-3 ZONE.   
  1. Any use permitted in the R-2 Zone and subject to the restrictions and limitations 
contained therein, except that any use specifically mentioned hereafter shall be subject to the 
restrictions of the R-3 Zone.   
  2. One-, two-, and multiple-family dwellings.   
  3. Community care facilities, residential care facilities for the elderly and hospices 
serving 7 to 12 individuals subject to the provisions in Chapter 28.93. 
 B. R-4 ZONE. 
  1. Any use permitted in the R-3 Zone and subject to the restrictions and limitations 
contained therein, except that any such use specifically mentioned hereafter shall be subject to 
the restrictions of the R-4 Zone. 
  2. Hotels and related recreational, conference center and other auxiliary uses primarily 



4 
 

for use by hotel guests.  Any hotels, when units are designed or constructed with cooking 
facilities shall, as to such units, be subject to the lot area per unit requirements of the  R-4 Zone 
and to the parking requirements for multiple family units required in Subsection 28.90.100.G.3 
of this Code.  Such hotels when designed, constructed or used for either twenty-four (24) or more 
dwelling units, or fifty (50) guest rooms or more may include a business, except a restaurant, 
conducted therein for the convenience of the occupants and their guests; provided entrance to 
such places of business be from the inside of such buildings; that the floor area used for all the 
businesses in the facility shall not exceed thirty percent (30%) of the total ground floor area of all 
the buildings comprising the hotel which are on a single lot or contiguous lots; and provided 
further that no street frontage of any such building shall be used for such business.  Any hotel, 
regardless of the number of units or rooms therein, may include a restaurant for use by the hotel 
occupants and their guests only, provided that such facility conforms to all other requirements 
imposed on any "business" by this paragraph.  A restaurant not conforming to all other 
requirements imposed on any "business" by this paragraph or not for use solely by hotel 
occupants and their guests may be established only if a conditional use permit is obtained for 
operation of a restaurant under Chapter 28.94 of this Code.  
  3. Emergency Shelters in compliance with Chapter 28.79. 
 
 
28.54.030 Uses Permitted in the C-P Zone. 
 
 A. Any use permitted in the R-4, R-O and C-O Zones and subject to the use restrictions and 
limitations contained in the respective zone and in Section 28.54.130. 
 B. Any of the following uses:   
  1. Art school.   
  2. Automobile parking areas.   
  3. Automobile service station or automobile service station/mini-market containing not 
more than six (6) pumps and limited to incidental tire and tube repairing, battery servicing, 
automobile lubrication and other minor automotive service and repair with a conditional use 
permit issued pursuant to Subsection 28.94.030.U of this Code.   
  4. Bakery employing not more than ten (10) persons.   
  5. Bank.   
  6. Barber shop.   
  7. Beauty shop.   
  8. Billiard parlor.   
  9. Bookstore.   
  10. Bowling alley.   
  11. Caterer.   
  12. Child care center. 
  13. Confectionery store.   
  14. Dancing school.   
  15. Dressmaking or millinery shop.   
  16. Drugstore.   
  17. Dry cleaning, pressing and laundry agency.   
  18. Dry goods or notion store. 
  19. Emergency Shelters in compliance with Chapter 28.79. 



5 
 

  1920. Florist shop.   
  2021. Garden nursery.   
  2122. Gift shop.   
  2223. Grocery, fruit and vegetable store.   
  2324. Hardware store.   
  2425. Household appliance store and repair.   
  2526. Ice storage house of not more than five (5) ton capacity.  
  2627. Jewelry store.   
  2728. Liquor store.   
  2829. Meat market or delicatessen.   
  2930. Music and vocal schools.   
  3031. Pet shop.  
  3132. Photographic shop.   
  3233. Restaurant, bar, tearoom or cafe.   
  3334. Self-service laundry or dry cleaning.   
  3435. Shoe store or shoe repair shop.   
  3536. Stationery store.   
  3637. Tailor, clothing or wearing apparel shop.   
  3738. Television, radio store and repair.   
  3839. Veterinary hospital for small animals provided;   
   a. That no animals are to be boarded overnight except for medical reasons.   
   b. That the building shall be designed so as to prevent the escape of all obnoxious 
odors and noises.  
  3940. Wig shop. 
  4041. Household hazardous waste collection facility, as defined in Section 28.04.405. 
  4142. Accessory buildings and accessory uses, including a storage garage for the 
exclusive use of the patrons of the above stores or businesses.   
  4243. Automobile rental, restricted to passenger vehicles, not including trailers, 
campers, trucks, recreational vehicles, etc., with the specific location subject to approval by the 
Planning Commission.   
  4344. Other businesses and occupations that are substantially similar to the uses 
enumerated above, as determined and documented by the Community Development Director in a 
manner similar to the substantial conformance determination process provided in the adopted 
Planning Commission Guidelines. 
 C. The above specified stores, shops or businesses, to the extent that they sell merchandise 
shall sell only at retail, shall sell only new merchandise, except for the resale of used 
merchandise acquired incidentally in the sale of new merchandise, and shall be permitted only 
under the following conditions:   
  1. Such store, shop or business, except automobile service station and nursery shall be 
conducted entirely within an enclosed building.   
  2. Products made incidental to a permitted use shall be sold at retail on the premises. 
 
 
28.57.030 Uses Permitted in the C-L Zone.  
 
 A. Any use permitted in the R-O, C-O and R-4 Zones and subject to the use restrictions and 
limitations contained in the respective zone, except that any such use specifically mentioned 



6 
 

hereafter shall be subject to the use restrictions of the C-L Zone.   
 B. Any of the following uses:   
  1. Antique shop. 
  2. Bank.   
  3. Barber, beauty shop, including hair stylist.   
  4. Candy, ice cream, pastry shop.   
  5. Caterer. 
  6. Child Care Center.   
  7. Delicatessen and specialty food store, including convenience grocery items. 
  8. Drug store and pharmacy, limited to stores carrying primarily drugs, personal care 
and health products. 
  9. Emergency Shelters in compliance with Chapter 28.79. 
  10. Florist shop.   
  1011. Funeral parlor. 
  1112. Gift shop.   
  1213. Household hazardous waste collection facility, as defined in Section 28.04.405 of 
this Title.   
  1314. Interior decorating shop.   
  1415. Jewelry store. 
  1516. Liquor, wine store. 
  1617. Photographic studio. 
  1718. Restaurant. 
  1819. Other businesses and occupations that are substantially similar to the uses 
enumerated above, as determined and documented by the Community Development Director in a 
manner similar to the substantial conformance determination process provided in the adopted 
Planning Commission Guidelines. 
 C. The above-specified stores, shops or businesses shall be permitted only under the 
following conditions:   
  1. Merchandise shall be sold only at retail;   
  2. Except for restaurants and child care centers, all activities shall be conducted entirely 
within an enclosed building;  
  3. Products made incidental to a permitted use shall be sold at retail on the premises.   
 D. Accessory buildings and uses. 
 
 
28.63.030 Uses Permitted in the C-1 Zone. 
 
 A. Any use permitted in the R-4, R-O and C-O Zones and subject to the use restrictions and 
limitations contained in the respective zone and in Section 28.63.130, except as otherwise 
provided in Subsection B. herein.   
 B. When land classified in a C-1 Zone is also classified in another zone, as provided in 
Section 28.63.001, uses shall be limited to the following: 
  1. Any use permitted in Subsection C. herein;   
  2. Any use permitted in the other zone in which the land is classified and when so used 
subject to the restrictions and limitations contained therein.   
 C. Any of the following uses:   



7 
 

  1. Antique shop.   
  2. Automobile service station or automobile service station/mini-market, and accessory 
uses, limited to incidental tire and tube repairing, battery servicing, automobile lubrication and 
other minor automotive service within the building not including auto body repair with a 
conditional use permit issued pursuant to Subsection 28.94.030.U of this Code.   
  3. Bakery employing not more than ten (10) persons.   
  4. Bank.   
  5. Barber shop.   
  6. Beauty shop.   
  7. Billiard parlor.   
  8. Bookstore.    
  9. Caterer.   
  10. Child Care Center.   
  11. Clothing store.   
  12. Club or lodge.   
  13. Confectionery store.   
  14. Dressmaking or millinery shop.   
  15. Drugstore.   
  16. Dry cleaning, pressing and laundry agency.   
  17. Dry goods or notion store.   
  18. Emergency Shelters in compliance with Chapter 28.79. 
  1819. Florist.   
  1920. Garden nursery.   
  2021. Gift shop.  
  2122. Grocery, fruit and vegetable store.   
  2223. Hardware store.   
  2324. Hotel.   
  2425. Household appliance store and repair.   
  2526. Household hazardous waste collection facility, as defined in Section 28.04.405 of 
this Title.   
  2627. Ice storage house of not more than five (5) ton capacity.   
  2728. Interior decorator.   
  2829. Jewelry store. 
  2930. Liquor store. 
  3031. Meat market or delicatessen store.   
  3132. Offices:  general, administrative, business, professional, public.   
  3233. Pet store.   
  3334. Photographer.   
  3435. Photographic store.   
  3536. Research and development.   
  3637. Restaurant and bar.   
  3738. Self-service laundry and dry cleaning.   
  3839. Shoe store, shoe repair.   
  3940. Stationery store.   
  4041. Tailor.   
  4142. Television and radio store and repair.   



8 
 

  4243. Veterinary hospital for small animals, provided:   
   a. That no animals are to be boarded overnight except for medical reasons.   
   b. The building shall be designed so as to prevent the escape of all obnoxious odors 
and noises.  
  4344. Wig shop. 
  4445. Accessory buildings and accessory uses, including a storage garage for the 
exclusive use of the patrons of the above stores or businesses.   
  4546. Other businesses and occupations that are substantially similar to the uses 
enumerated above, as determined and documented by the Community Development Director in a 
manner similar to the substantial conformance determination process provided in the adopted 
Planning Commission Guidelines. 
 D. The above-specified stores, shops or businesses shall be permitted only under the 
following conditions:   
  1. Such stores, shops or businesses, except automobile service stations, child care 
centers, and nurseries, shall be conducted entirely within an enclosed building.   
  2. Products made incidental to a permitted use shall be sold at retail on the premises.  
 
 
 
28.66.030 Uses Permitted. 
 
 A. Any use permitted in the C-P Zone and subject to the use restrictions and limitations 
contained in that zone, except that any such use specifically mentioned hereafter shall be subject 
to the restrictions of the C-2 Zone.  
 B. Such use shall not be inimical to the public health, welfare, safety or morals by reason of 
the offering to distribute, or distributing or exhibition to members of the public of any obscene 
matter as defined in Section 311 of the Penal Code of the State of California.   
 C. Any of the following uses:   
  1. Retail, wholesale or service store or business provided that there shall be no 
manufacturing, assembly, processing or compounding or products other than such as are 
customarily incidental or essential to such establishments and provided further that there shall be 
not more than ten (10) persons engaged in any such manufacture, processing or treatment of 
products, and not more than fifty percent (50%) of the floor area of the building is used in the 
treatment, manufacture or processing of products, and that such operations are not objectionable 
due to noise, odor, dust, smoke, vibration or other similar causes.   
  2. Advertising sign board or structure.   
  3. Automobile parking area.   
  4. Automobile super service station or automobile service station/mini-market including 
automobile laundry or car wash and auto steam cleaning establishment provided that all tire and 
tube repairing, battery, servicing and steam cleaning shall be conducted wholly within a building 
with a conditional use permit issued pursuant to Subsection 28.94.030.U of this Code.  
  5. Bakery employing not more than twenty (20) persons on premises.   
  6. Bath, Turkish and the like.   
  7. Billiard or pool hall or bowling alley.   
  8. Blueprinting and photostating shop.   
  9. Church.   



9 
 

  10. Cleaning and pressing establishment using non-inflammable and non-explosive 
cleaning fluid.   
  11. Conservatory of music. 
  12. Contractor - no outside storage or storage of heavy equipment.   
  13. Department store. 
  14. Educational facility. 
  15. Electric distributing substation.   
  16. Emergency Shelters in compliance with Chapter 28.79. 
  17. Florist.   
  18. Funeral parlor. 
  1719. Furniture warehouse for storing personal household goods. 
  1820. Health club, spa, gymnasium.   
  1921. Hospital, clinic or skilled nursing facility. 
  2022. Interior decorating shop.   
  2123. Medical laboratory.   
  2224. Parking garage, public. 
  2325. Pest control.   
  2426. Plumbing shop.   
  2527. Printing, lithographing or publishing establishment. 
  2628. Public parking area. 
  2729. Radio and television store.   
  2830. Refrigerated locker.   
  2931. Restaurant, tea room or cafe.   
  3032. Skating rink. 
  3133. Storage garage, including repairing and servicing.   
  3234. Studio.   
  3335. Taxidermist. 
  3436. Telephone exchange.   
  3537. Theater or auditorium (except drive-in theater).   
  3638. Trade school, not objectionable due to noise, odor, dust, smoke, vibration or other 
similar causes. 
  3739. Trailer and equipment sales and rental - non-industrial use. 
  3840. Upholstery shop. 
  3941. Used car sales area, provided that no repair or reconditioning of automobiles shall 
be permitted, except when enclosed in a building. 
  4042. Wedding chapel. 
  4143. Other businesses and occupations that are substantially similar to the uses 
enumerated above, as determined and documented by the Community Development Director in a 
manner similar to the substantial conformance determination process provided in the adopted 
Planning Commission Guidelines. 
 D. Accessory buildings and accessory uses. 
 
 
28.69.030 Uses Permitted. 
 
 A. Any use permitted in the C-2 Zone and subject to the use restrictions and limitations 



10 
 

contained in that zone, except that any such use specifically mentioned hereafter shall be subject 
to the restrictions of the C-M Zone.   
 B. Any of the following uses, provided that such operations, manufacturing, processing or 
treatment of products are not obnoxious or offensive by reason of emission of odor, dust, gas, 
fumes, smoke, liquids, wastes, noise, vibrations, disturbances or other similar causes which may 
impose hazard to life or property:   
  1. Automobile body shop. 
  2. Automobile paint shop. 
  3. Bakery goods manufacturing.   
  4. Boat building and repairing and machine shop.   
  5. Building contractor and material storage.   
  6. Cabinet shop.   
  7. Canvas and canvas products manufacturing.   
  8. Car wash. 
  9. Cement products manufacturing.   
  10. Cleaning and dyeing.   
  11. Clothing products manufacturing.   
  12. Draying and truck yard or terminal.   
  13. Electronics products manufacturing.   
  14. Emergency Shelters in compliance with Chapter 28.79. 
  15. Equipment and trailer rental and storage.   
  1516. Food products manufacturing.   
  1617. House moving.   
  1718. Laundry.   
  1819. Lumber yard.   
  1920. Machine shop.   
  2021. Plating works.   
  2122. Produce warehouse.   
  2223. Research and development establishment and related administrative operations.   
  2324. Rug cleaning. 
  2425. Sheet metal shop.   
  2526. Sign manufacturing.   
  2627. Storage warehouse.   
  2728. Tire retreading.   
  2829. Veterinary hospital.   
  2930. Other businesses and occupations that are substantially similar to the uses 
enumerated above, as determined and documented by the Community Development Director in a 
manner similar to the substantial conformance determination process provided in the adopted 
Planning Commission Guidelines.   
 C. Accessory buildings and accessory uses. 
 



11 
 

SECTION 4.  Title 28 of the Santa Barbara Municipal Code is amended by adding Chapter 
28.79 to read as follows: 
 

28.79.010 Use Permitted. 

 
 An emergency shelter, as defined in SBMC Section 28.04.273, is a permitted use in the R-4, 

C-P, C-L, C-1, C-2, and C-M Zones subject to the development and management standards 

specified in Section 28.79.020.  Notwithstanding any other provision within this Title 28, 

without the approval of a conditional use permit pursuant to Chapter 28.94, an emergency shelter 

is not a permitted use in the following zones: A-1, A-2, E-1, E-2, E-3, R-1, R-2, R-3, HRC-1, 

HRC-2, PR, P-D, R-H, S-H, S-D, C-O, C-X, HC, M-1, OC, OM-1.   

 

28.79.020  Development and Management Standards. 

 In addition to all other development standards generally applicable within the zone in which 

the emergency shelter is located, an emergency shelter shall comply with the following 

development and management standards: 

 A. Capacity.  An emergency shelter located in the R-4 zone may provide a maximum of 50 

beds and shall serve no more than 50 homeless persons per night.  An emergency shelter located 

within the C-P, C-L, C-1, C-2, and C-M Zones may provide a maximum of 100 beds and shall 

serve no more than 100 homeless persons per night.   

 B. Length of Stay.  A resident of an emergency shelter shall not reside in the emergency 

shelter for more than 180 consecutive nights. 

 C. Intake/Waiting Area.  An emergency shelter shall provide at least 10 square feet of 

interior intake and waiting space per bed.  Intake and waiting areas shall be located within the 

building.   



12 
 

 D. Outdoor Area/Activity.  Outdoor gathering areas shall be screened from the public right 

of way and adjacent properties.  An emergency shelter shall not allow prospective residents to 

que on the public right of way or parking areas. 

 E. Parking.  An emergency shelter shall provide the following parking:  

  1. One resident parking space for every 10 beds;  

  2. At least one employee parking space and one parking space for each on-duty staff 

employee or volunteer during largest shift; and  

  3. One covered and secure bicycle parking space for every 4 beds.  

  4. Exceptions.  An emergency shelter may propose fewer parking spaces if the 

emergency shelter can demonstrate by a parking study that the proposed parking will satisfy the 

anticipated parking demand for the project to the satisfaction of the Public Works Transportation 

Planning Division.  In any case, the required parking for an emergency shelter shall not be more 

than that which is required for similar residential or commercial uses within the zone.   

 F. Lighting.  Subject to compliance with the Lighting Ordinance (SBMC Chapter 22.75), 

adequate external lighting shall be provided on-site in order to maintain a safe and secure 

environment. 

 G. Concentration of Uses.  No emergency shelter or homeless shelter shall be permitted 

within 300 feet of another emergency shelter or homeless shelter. The distance between shelters 

shall be measured in a straight line without regard to intervening structures or objects from the 

nearest point on the property line of one shelter to the nearest point on the property line of the 

other. 

 H. Onsite Management.  On-site management shall be present at all times that the shelter is 

in operation.  A Management Plan for the operation of the emergency shelter must be submitted 



13 
 

with the master application and shall be subject to approval by the Community Development 

Department Director.  As appropriate, the Management Plan shall address: 

  1. Hours of operation 

  2. On-site management and security procedures 

  3. Neighborhood relations and communication 

  4. Cooking and dining facilities (for residents only) 

  5. Shower and laundry facilities (for residents only) 

  6. Smoking areas and policies 

  7. Outdoor gathering areas and policies 

 I. Ability to Pay.  No individual or household may be denied emergency shelter due to an 

inability to pay.   

 

SECTION 5.  Section 28.94.030 of Chapter 28.94 of the Santa Barbara Municipal Code is 
amended to read as follows: 

28.94.030 Uses Permitted in Specific Zones. 
 
 The following uses may be permitted in the zones herein indicated upon the granting of a 
Conditional Use Permit, except that where another section of this Title specifically allows such 
use in a zone in conflict with this section, the provision of such other section shall apply and a 
Conditional Use Permit shall not be required. 
 A. Church in the A-1, A-2, E-1, E-2, E-3, R-1, R-2, R-3, R-4, C-1, C-P, C-L, C-O, R-O, C-
X, H-C, HRC-1,  HRC-2, OM-1 and OC zones. 
 B. Convent and monastery in the A-1, A-2, E-1, E-2, E-3, R-1, R-2, C-X, H-C, HRC-1, 
HRC-2, OC, M-1, and OM-1 zones. 
 C. Educational institution in the A-1, A-2, E-1, E-2, E-3, R-1, R-2, R-3, R-4, C-1, C-P, C-L, 
C-O, R-O, C-X, H C, HRC-1, HRC-2, OC, M-1, and OM-1 zones. 
 D. Golf course or driving range (but excluding miniature golf) in any zone. 
 E. Outdoor tennis club and lawn bowling club in the A, E and R Zones.  Normal clubhouse 
facilities such as pro shop, coffee shop, administrative offices, lounge, etc. may be allowed in 
connection with a private club only, provided that such uses shall be clearly shown to be 
incidental and accessory to the outdoor recreational use of the premises, and that the clubhouse 
facilities shall be available only to the club members and their guests. 
 It is hereby declared that in addition to being special uses as set forth in Sections 28.94.001 
and 28.94.005, the uses permitted under this subsection are of such a nature that it is impractical 
to establish in advance of development the minimum requirements for parking, site area, 
setbacks, hours or manner of operation, lighting, landscaping, or other standards usually applied 
to classes or types of use, and that distinct and different performance and development standards 
must be applied to each individual facility proposed to be established under these provisions. 



14 
 

 This declaration is based on the fact that the type of club permitted by these provisions will 
usually be within the City area, unique in terms of the facilities provided, activities conducted, 
method and intensity of operation, relationship to topography and impact on surrounding urban 
development and potential, and that meaningful minimum standards can only be established in 
relation to the particular features of each individual development. 
 In lieu of prescribing herein minimum performance and development standards, the Planning 
Commission shall, as a part of any Conditional Use Permit issued to permit the establishment of 
outdoor tennis or lawn bowling clubs under this subsection, make the following findings and 
impose conditions necessary to secure and perpetuate the bases for such findings: 
  1. That the total area of the site and the setbacks of all facilities from property and street 
lines are of sufficient magnitude in view of the character of the land and of the proposed 
development that significant detrimental impact on surrounding properties is avoided. 
  2. That the prescribed hours and days of operation of the various facilities of the club 
are such that the character of the area is not altered or disturbed. 
  3. That the design and operation of outdoor lighting equipment will not be a nuisance to 
the use of property in the area. 
  4. That adequate access and off-street parking is provided in a manner and amount so 
that the demands of the development for such facilities are adequately met without altering the 
character of the public streets in the area at any time. 
  5. That the appearance of the developed site in terms of the arrangement, height, scale 
and architectural style of the buildings, location of parking areas, landscaping and other features 
is compatible with the character of the area. 
 F. Planned unit development in A, E and R-1 Zones in accordance with the provisions of 
Chapter 28.36 of this Title. 
 G. Planned residence development in the A, E and R-1 Zones, subject to provisions of 
Chapter 28.33 of this Title. 
 H. Child care centers in the A, E, R-1, R-2, R-3, R-4, R-O, C-O and C-X zones, subject to 
the following conditions, standards and limitations: 
  1. Location of play areas.  Outdoor play areas shall be located in a manner that is 
compatible with the character of the surrounding area, that minimizes significant detrimental 
noise impacts to adjacent properties, and that complies with the minimum standards of State 
Law. 
  2. Passenger loading.  Facilities shall be provided for loading and unloading passengers, 
and shall be subject to the review and approval of the Planning Commission taking into 
consideration the recommendation of the Transportation Engineer. 
 I. Driveways and parking areas for nonresidential uses in residential zones. 
 J. Boarding house in the R-2, R-3 and R-4 Zones. 
 K. Club and lodge in the R-3, R-4 and R-O Zones. 
 L. Garden apartments in the R-2 Zone, subject to the provisions of Chapter 28.30 of this 
Title. 
 M. Hospitals, skilled nursing facilities and other similar buildings and facilities for the 
treatment of human ailments where facilities are provided for the keeping of patients overnight 
or longer, in the R-4, C-O, C-P, C-1, C-2 and C-M Zones. 
 N. Restaurant in the R-4 Zone, provided there is a minimum of one hundred (100) 
established hotel-motel guest rooms within five hundred feet (500') from the boundary of the 
proposed restaurant site.  The one hundred (100) established hotel-motel guest rooms within five 
hundred feet (500') may be used to support any number of restaurants within the affected area. 
 O. Establishment or enterprises which involve large assemblages of people on more than 
four occasions per year, including, but not limited to, any open air theater, Certified Farmers 
Market, street market, trade fair, trade exchange, recreational or sport center, in the C Zones. 
 P. Automobile wrecking in the C-M and M-1 Zones. 
 Q. Car wash, auto polishing, auto steam cleaning establishment in the C-1, C-P and C-2 
Zones, provided that such installation shall be subject to the noise restrictions established in 
Chapter 28.60 of this Title. 
 R. State-licensed residential care facilities for the elderly, community care facilities and 
hospices serving more than 12 individuals in the A, E, R, and C Zones. 
  1. STANDARDS. 
   a. If a new residential care facility for the elderly, community care facility or 
hospice which is subject to a Conditional Use Permit includes a staffed congregate kitchen and 



15 
 

dining facility providing regular meals to residents, living units may include modular cooking 
units without being counted as residential units. 
   b. If an existing residential care facility for the elderly, community care facility or 
hospice as of the effective date of this Ordinance, which is subject to a Conditional Use Permit 
includes a staffed congregate kitchen and dining facility providing regular meals to residents, 
living units may be converted to include modular cooking units without being counted as 
residential units under the provisions of a new Conditional Use Permit.    
   c. If a new or existing residential care facility for the elderly, community care 
facility or hospice as of the effective date of this Ordinance, which is subject to a Conditional 
Use Permit does not include a congregate dining facility, but does include kitchens in its living 
units, living units shall be counted as residential units. 
   d. Recreational facilities and skilled nursing facilities intended primarily for the 
residents may be allowed in connection with residential care facilities for the elderly, community 
care facilities or hospices provided that such uses are incidental and accessory thereto.  The use 
of the facilities by persons other than residents and staff may be limited.   
  2. FINDINGS: 
   a. For new State licensed residential care facilities for the elderly, community care 
facility or hospice, in addition to the findings required under Section 28.94.020, the Planning 
Commission or City Council on appeal must find upon a showing of adequate information that: 
    (1) The facility will generate a demand for resources such as water, traffic, 
and other public services equivalent to no more than that which would be demanded by 
development of the property in accordance with the underlying zone, and such resources are 
available in amounts adequate to service the proposed facility. 
    (2) The intensity of use in terms of the number of people, hours of operation, 
hours of major activities, and other operational aspects of the proposed facility is compatible 
with any neighboring residential use. 
    (3) The proposed facility shall be able to be converted to a density which 
conforms to the residential unit density of the underlying zone.  Sufficient land area has been 
shown to be available to meet the parking demand of a future use. 
   b. For existing State-licensed residential care facilities for the elderly, community 
care facility or hospice as of the effective date of this Ordinance requesting an alteration or 
modification, in addition to the findings required under Section 28.94.020, the Planning 
Commission or City Council on appeal must find upon a showing of adequate information that: 
    (1) The proposal has been reviewed and approved by the City Fire Marshall 
and the City Building Official. 
    (2) The facility will generate a demand for resources such as water, traffic and 
parking capacity, and other public services equivalent to no more than that which would be 
demanded by development of the property in accordance with the underlying zone, or if existing 
resource use exceeds the underlying zone, then resource use shall be equivalent to no more than 
that of the existing use. 
    (3) The intensity of use in terms of the number of people, hours of operation, 
hours of major activities and other operational aspects of the proposed facility is compatible with 
any neighboring residential use. 
 S. Facilities and equipment, not to include offices, used by public utilities or quasi-public 
utilities, e.g., cable television, to provide services to the general public in any zone, except for 
Radio and Television Antennas, Cellular Telephone Antennas and Emergency Service Antennas 
and any facilities or equipment expressly permitted in the zone or authorized pursuant to Chapter 
28.93 of this Code. 
  
 T. Medical equipment and supply stores of more than 3,000 square feet of net floor area in 
the C-O Zone, subject to the following special provisions: 
  The Planning Commission shall find that the use is supportive and directly related to the 
providing of medical and related services.  The Commission may permit a portion of the space to 
be used for non-medically related sales and/or a percentage of dollar volume of business for non-
medically related sales, provided that said amount of non-medically related use is set forth in the 
Conditional Use Permit. 
 U. Banks of more than 1,000 square feet of net floor area in the C-O Zone, subject to the 
following: 



16 
 

  The intent is to allow branch banks as a convenience to the medical community and 
neighborhood, so that there will be less traffic into the commercial areas for deposits, and as a 
cash source for patients in the area.  It is not the intent to establish a banking community in the 
area.  As a result, the limitations set forth below shall apply. 
  Prior to issuance, the Planning Commission shall find the following: 
  1. No similar facility is located on adjacent property or on a parcel within three hundred 
(300) feet of the subject property. 
  2. There shall not be more than one thousand (1,000) square feet of space accessible to 
customers for services. 
  3. There shall be no drive-up window, but a walk-up window may be permitted. 
  4. The signing of the operation is in a manner as to identify but not advertise, and to 
blend in with the neighborhood. 
  5. Services are limited to deposits, check cashing, cashier and travelers checks, 
acceptance of loan applications, and night deposits.  The following services are excluded:  loan 
applications processing and safety deposit boxes. 
  6. The permitted number of employees is consistent with the above. 
 V. Automobile service station, automobile service station/mini-market or conversion to an 
automobile service station/mini-market shall be subject to the following conditions, standards 
and limitations: 
  1. Conditions.  Specific conditions may be imposed to carry out the purposes of this 
Code. 
  2. Lot Area.  The minimum area of the parcel or lot shall not be less than eight thousand 
(8,000) square feet. 
  3. Street Frontage.  Each lot shall have a minimum frontage of not less than one hundred 
(100) feet on one abutting street. 
  4. Architecture.  The architecture of the service station structures and landscaping shall 
be reviewed and approved by the Architectural Board of Review, or the Historic Landmarks 
Commission if the property is located within El Pueblo Viejo Landmark District or another 
landmark district or if the structure is a designated City Landmark.  The architectural theme shall 
be integrated into the design of all improvements of the site including canopies and fencing. 
  5. Driveways. 
   a. New Service Stations.  For service stations constructed after the effective date of 
this Subsection, driveway entrances to the service station shall not be within twenty (20) feet of 
the curb return (beginning of curve) on corner lots. 
   b. Existing Service Stations.  For driveway entrances of service stations that have 
been constructed prior to the effective date of this Subsection, relocation of driveway entrances 
may be required to minimize interference with the movement and safety of vehicular and 
pedestrian traffic. 
  6. Internal Circulation.  Where access from an internal circulation system of a shopping 
center or public parking area is available, direct street access to a service station may be 
prohibited or restricted. 
  7. Parking.  Parking shall conform to the minimum parking requirements as outlined in 
Section 28.90.100 or a minimum of five (5) parking spaces shall be provided or one (1) parking 
space for each two hundred fifty (250) square feet of gross floor area used for mini-market use 
and one (1) space for each employee shall be provided; whichever is greater. 
  8. Lighting.  Any perimeter flood lighting shall be hooded or shielded so that no direct 
beams fall upon adjacent residential property.  Indirect soft lights and low garden lights shall be 
used wherever possible, and shall be required as necessary to assure compatibility with adjacent 
and surrounding properties. 
  9. Landscaping.  All landscaped areas shall be as follows: 
   a. A planter shall be provided along all street-side property lines except for driveway 
openings. 
   b. On corner lots, a minimum of one hundred fifty (150) square feet of planter area 
shall be provided on the property adjacent to the corner intersection. 
   c. At least ten percent (10%) of the area not covered by buildings on the parcel shall 
be landscaped. 
  10. Restrooms.  The entrance to all restrooms shall be screened from abutting properties 
by a decorative screen. 



17 
 

  11. Fencing.  A decorative fence six (6) feet in height from finished grade shall be 
provided on all property lines that do not abut a street, alley or parking area, with the exception 
that a fence may not be required for a service station that is an integral part of a commercial, 
industrial or office center or where combined landscaping will be achieved with such adjacent 
properties. 
  12. Operations and Storage. 
   a. Repair of vehicles is only permitted within an enclosed building. 
   b. All servicing of vehicles other than minor servicing shall be conducted within an 
enclosed building. 
  
   c. All materials, products and merchandise shall be stored and displayed only within 
an enclosed building. 
   d. No used or discarded automotive parts or equipment or visible junk or wrecked 
vehicles shall be located or stored outside the service station building. 
   e. Trash shall be stored in areas screened from public view by a fence with a 
minimum height of six (6) feet.  Trash shall not be stored or piled above the height of the fence. 
  13. Fire Department Approval.  Prior to the issuance of any building permit for a service 
station or any portion thereof, the Fire Department shall review the plans and approve said plans 
if they comply with applicable Fire Department ordinances and regulations. 
 
 W. Public or quasi-public facility, including homeless shelters providing services and 

programs beyond the definition of minimal supportive services specified in Section 28.04.273 

(subject to a separation of at least 300 feet from another emergency shelter or homeless shelter), 

in any zone, except those expressly permitted in the zone or authorized pursuant to Chapter 

28.93 of this Code, and Radio and Television Antennas, Cellular Telephone Antennas and 

Emergency Service Antennas. 

 X. Any use other than those permitted by Section 28.73.030.A of the OM-1 Zone and 
permitted in the M-1 Zone and subject to those findings required in Section 28.73.030.B and 
Section 28.94.020. 
 Y. General office uses in the HRC-2 Zone as permitted by Subsection 28.22.030.2.c, and 
subject to the findings required in Subsection 28.22.030.2.c and Section 28.94.020.  
 Z. Secondary Dwelling Units in any A, E or R-1 Zone, subject to the following provisions: 
  1. The minimum lot size for any parcel containing a Secondary Dwelling Unit shall be 
seven thousand (7,000) square feet. 
  2. There shall be no more than one (1) existing single-family dwelling, hereinafter 
referred to as the primary dwelling, on the parcel.   
  3. The Secondary Dwelling Unit shall be attached to the primary dwelling by a common 
wall, floor or ceiling and not simply by an attached breeze-way or porch.  Said unit shall involve 
no more than a ten percent (10%) increase in the square footage of the primary dwelling nor shall 
it constitute more than forty percent (40%) of the combined floor area of the primary dwelling 
and Secondary Dwelling Unit, exclusive of the garage or carport. 
  4. The maximum floor area of the Secondary Dwelling Unit shall not exceed six 
hundred (600) square feet. 
  5. Setbacks and height limitations for the Secondary Dwelling Unit shall be the same as 
for the primary dwelling. 
  6. One (1) off-street parking space, covered or uncovered, shall be required for a 
Secondary Dwelling Unit.  In addition, if the primary dwelling does not provide parking as 
required by Subsection 28.90.100.G.1 of this Title, such parking shall be provided.  The garage 
or carport for the primary dwelling shall not be converted to provide a Secondary Dwelling Unit. 



18 
 

  7. There shall be no more than four (4) separate rooms in a Secondary Dwelling Unit, 
one of which shall be a kitchen and one a bathroom. The total number of rooms on the parcel 
shall not be increased by more than two (2), including the bathroom and kitchen for the 
Secondary Dwelling Unit.  The Secondary Dwelling Unit shall also provide a separate entrance. 
  8. Both the primary dwelling and the Secondary Dwelling Unit shall comply with all 
requirements of the housing code in effect on the date of issuance of the building permit for the 
Secondary Dwelling Unit.  Any alteration or addition shall comply with all requirements of the 
California Building Code as adopted and amended by the City. 
  9. A separate water meter shall be provided for the Secondary Dwelling Unit.  The 
primary dwelling shall be retrofitted with water-conserving devices to the same extent as if the 
dwelling were being built under the California Building Code as adopted and amended by the 
City. 
  10. Before obtaining a building permit for a Secondary Dwelling Unit, the property 
owner shall file with the County Recorder, upon approval by the City Attorney as to form and 
content, a covenant containing a reference to the deed under which the property was acquired by 
the present owner and stating that: 
   a. The Secondary Dwelling Unit shall not be sold separately from the primary 
dwelling. 
   b. The Secondary Dwelling Unit is restricted to the approved size. 
   c. The conditional use permit for the Secondary Dwelling Unit shall be in effect 
only so long as either the primary dwelling or the Secondary Dwelling Unit is occupied by the 
owner of the lot on which the Secondary Dwelling Unit is located, except for bona fide 
temporary absences.  The conditional use permit shall remain valid if disability or infirmity 
require the institutionalization of the owner. 
   d. The Secondary Dwelling Unit shall be rented at a rate that is affordable to low 
and moderate income families or to immediate family members as required under Subsection 
28.94.030.Z.12 of this Title. 
   e. The conditional use permit, and any conditions imposed by said permit, shall 
lapse upon removal of the Secondary Dwelling Unit. 
   f. There shall be no more than two (2) inhabitants in any Secondary Dwelling Unit. 
   g. The above declarations are binding upon any successors in ownership of the 
property; any lack of compliance shall revoke the conditional use permit. 
  11. Secondary Dwelling Units shall be prohibited in High Fire Hazard Areas (as defined 
in the Fire Master Plan.) 
  12. The Secondary Dwelling Unit, or the primary dwelling if the owner chooses to live in 
the Secondary Dwelling Unit, shall be leased or rented to a person or persons falling within one 
or more of the following categories: 
   a. A household whose head is a member of the owner's immediate family.  For 
purposes of this Section, "immediate family" shall be defined as parents, grandparents, children, 
grandchildren, sisters, brothers, and equivalent in-laws. 
  
   b. Low income households (incomes less than 80 percent of the median income for 
the City), as determined by the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development 
(HUD).  The rent level will be no more than the Fair Market Rent levels for the City as 
determined and adjusted from time to time by HUD, and the owner shall give priority for 
occupancy to households referred by the Santa Barbara Housing Authority.  If the unit is rented 
or leased to households not referred by the Housing Authority, the income level of the renter 
selected must be certified by the Housing Authority as to eligibility and this certification must be 
submitted to the Community Development Director.  The Housing Authority may assess a fee 
for certification of renters other than those referred by the Housing Authority.  The rent level for 
such low-income renters shall not exceed one twelfth (1/12) of thirty percent (30%) of the 
certified income of the renter.  In addition, the owner must submit annually to the Housing 
Authority a copy of the lease or rental agreement in effect that identifies the rent level and the 
name and income level of the lessee/renter. 
   c. Moderate income households (incomes between 81 and 120 percent of the median 
income of the City), if the owner chooses not to rent to a family member and a sworn declaration 
supported by written documentation, such as loan documents, setting forth the financial reasons 
why the unit will not be rented to a low-income household is submitted to the City.  Generally, 
the only acceptable financial reason would be that higher rent is required in order to meet the 



19 
 

carrying costs of new construction.  The rent levels will be not more than one-twelfth (1/12) of 
thirty percent (30%) of the median income for a family of four in the City adjusted for 
household/unit size according to the following factors: 
 

 
 
     Unit Size 
 
     Studio 
     One-Bedroom 
     Two-Bedroom 
     Three-Bedroom

 
  Factor 
 
 .70 
 .80 
 .95 
 1.065  

 
   Prior to the rental or leasing of the unit, the income level of the household shall be certified 
by the Housing Authority.  The Housing Authority may assess a fee for certification of renters other 
than those referred by the Housing Authority.  In addition, the owner must submit annually to the 
Housing Authority a copy of the lease or rental agreement in effect that identifies the rent level and 
name and income of the lessee/renter. 
  13. Approved Secondary Dwelling Units shall be subtracted from the Density Reserve 
established by Policy 5-1.0 of the City's Housing Element, as adopted by the City of Santa Barbara on 
June 8, 1982.  When there are no units available in the Density Reserve, no conditional use permits 
shall be granted for Secondary Dwelling Units. 
  14. Secondary Dwelling Units shall be prohibited if there is an accessory building containing 
additional dwelling space, an additional dwelling unit approved under Section 28.93.030.E, caretaker's 
residence or similar use on the parcel.  Furthermore, no accessory building intended to provide 
additional dwelling space, additional dwelling unit under Section 28.93.030.E, caretaker's residence or 
similar use shall be constructed on a lot where there is an approved Secondary Dwelling Unit. 
  15. The Architectural Board of Review, or the Historic Landmarks Commission if the property 
is located within El Pueblo Viejo Landmark District or another landmark district or if the structure is a 
designated City Landmark, shall review all Secondary Dwelling Units which require exterior change to 
the primary dwelling to assure that there is minimal evidence of occupancy of the parcel by more than 
one (1) family and that any changes or additions to the exterior of the primary dwelling necessary to 
establish the Secondary Dwelling Unit blend architecturally with the primary dwelling. 
  16. In order to encourage the development of housing opportunities for disabled and 
handicapped individuals, the Planning Commission may allow reasonable deviation from the stated 
physical requirements where necessary to install features that facilitate access and mobility for 
disabled persons.  Otherwise, no modification of the requirements for a Secondary Dwelling Unit shall 
be allowed unless specifically stated in this Section. 
  17. In addition to the findings required under Section 28.94.020, the Planning Commission, or 
City Council on appeal, must find that: 
   a. The Secondary Dwelling Unit does not overload the capacity of the neighborhood to 
absorb it or cause a concentration of such units sufficient to change the character of the single-family 
neighborhood in which it is located. 
   b. The Secondary Dwelling Unit does not detract from the privacy of the surrounding 
residents. 
  18. Modifications. 
   a. Parking.  No modification of the required number of parking spaces shall be allowed.  
Modification of other parking-related requirements may be allowed subject to the provisions of Section 
28.92.110 of this Code. 
   b. Setbacks and height limitations.  Modification of these requirements may be allowed 
subject to the provisions of Section 28.92.110 of this Code.   
 AA. Any interim use deemed appropriate by the Planning Commission in those areas identified by 
resolution of the City Council as impacted by governmental action.  Such interim uses shall be limited 
in duration as specified by the Planning Commission, provided all such uses are discontinued within 
two (2) years of the completion of the governmental action.  Any authorization granted by the 
conditional use permit shall terminate at that time. 
 



20 
 

 The conditional use permit granted pursuant to this Subsection shall not be effective until the 
property owner has duly executed and recorded an instrument binding itself, its successors in interest 
and any person holding thereunder, which contains (i) notice of the conditional use permit, (ii) notice 
of any conditions established thereunder, (iii) an agreement  to comply with the terms and conditions 
of the conditional use permit, (iv) a waiver of any claim that a temporary use or any improvements on 
real property creates any vested right to continue a non-conforming use after completion of the  
governmental action, and (v) any other conditions as deemed necessary to comply with the purposes 
and intent of this Subsection.  This instrument shall be subject to the review and approval of the City 
Attorney and the Community Development Director. 
 BB. Bed and Breakfast Inns in Designated Historic Structures. 
  1. R-O Zone 
   a. Bed and Breakfast Inns in Structures of Merit or Landmarks in the R-O zone, in 
accordance with the provisions of Chapter 22.22 of this Title. 
   b. Bed and Breakfast Inns in a structure located on a lot in the R-O zone, on which a 
Structure of Merit or Landmark used as a Bed and Breakfast Inn is also located. 
  2. R-3 Zone 
   a. Bed and Breakfast Inns in Structures of Merit or Landmarks in the R-3 zone, in 
accordance with the provisions of Chapter 22.22 of this Title, subject to the following conditions. 
    (1) The owner or manager of the Bed and Breakfast Inn shall maintain his or her 
primary residence on the property that contains the Bed and Breakfast Inn. 
    (2) No meals shall be served to persons other than guests and residents of the Bed 
and Breakfast Inn. 
    (3) No conference or meeting rooms/facilities shall be provided. 
    (4) No outdoor swimming pool shall be provided; however, outdoor spas, hot tubs 
or similar facilities may be provided. 
    (5) Other conditions imposed by the Planning Commission in order to ensure 
compatibility with the surrounding neighborhood. 
   b. Bed and Breakfast Inns in a structure located on a lot in the R-3 zone, on which a 
Structure of Merit or Landmark used as a Bed and Breakfast Inn is also located, subject to the 
conditions listed in §28.94.030.BB.2.a. above. 
  3. Review by the Historic Landmarks Commission.  Plans for new structures or alterations to 
existing structures under 1 and 2 above shall be submitted to the Historic Landmarks Commission for 
review and action in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 22.22 of this Title.   
 CC. Offsite Hazardous Waste Management Facilities in the C-M, M-1, and OM-1 zones, subject to 
the provisions in Chapter 28.75, HWMF Overlay Zone. 
 DD. Television, Radio and Cellular Telephone Antennas in all zones, subject to the following 
provisions: 
  1. Exemptions.  The following are exempt from the requirement of a Conditional Use Permit, 
and shall be considered a permitted use in all zones: 
   a. Repairs and maintenance of existing facilities, whether emergency or routine, or 
replacement of transmitters, antennas, or other components of existing permitted facilities, provided 
there is little or no change in the visual appearance or any increase in radio frequency emission levels. 
   b. Satellite Dish Antennas designed or used for the reception of television or other 
electronic communications signal broadcast or relayed from an earth satellite. 
   c. One or more cellular telephone antennas or paging antennas, provided that the 
Community Development Director finds as follows: 
    (1) Height:  The height of the antenna and supporting structure does not exceed 
Municipal Code height limits set forth in Sec. 28.87.260, except where said antenna is being installed 
on an existing structure, in which event the height limit is measured from the highest point of the 
building and cannot exceed 15 feet above the building height. 
    (2) Separation:  There is at least 100 feet between the base of the antenna support 
structure and the nearest dwelling unit. 
    (3) Access Control:  The applicant establishes that the general public will be 
excluded from an area at least 50 feet in all directions from the antenna if antenna is not at least 10 feet 
off the ground.  If the antenna is at least 10 feet above grade, this distance may be reduced to 30 feet. 
    (4) No Resource Impacts:  The project will have no significant impact on any 
biological or archeological resources and will not generate additional traffic.  The applicant may be 
required to provide information to the Community Development Director regarding these matters. 
    (5) No Visual Impacts:  The project has been reviewed by the Architectural Board 
of Review, or the Historic Landmarks Commission if the property is located in the El Pueblo Viejo 
Landmark District or another landmark district or if the property contains a designated City Landmark.  
The Board and Commission may take action regarding the location of the antenna(s) on the site, color 
and size of the proposed antennas so as to minimize any adverse visual impacts. 



21 
 

   d. A microcell, provided it has been reviewed by the Architectural Board of Review, or the 
Historic Landmarks Commission if the property is located in the El Pueblo Viejo Landmark District or 
another landmark district or if the property or a structure thereon is a designated City Landmark.  The 
Board and Commission may take action regarding the location of the antenna(s) on the site, color and 
size of the proposed antennas so as to minimize any adverse visual impacts. 
  2. Conditional Use Permit by Planning Commission.  A Radio or Television Antenna shall be 
permitted only upon issuance of a conditional use permit by the Planning Commission, and only if 
each of the following findings has been made: 
   a. Shared Use of Support Structure.  The applicant had made a good faith effort to 
demonstrate that no existing or planned support structure, including an antenna tower, is available to 
accommodate the proposed antenna. 
   b. Site Size.  The site is of a size and shape sufficient to provide an adequate setback from 
the base of the antenna support structure to any property line abutting a residential use. 
   c. Visual Impact.  The project has been reviewed by the Architectural Board of Review, or 
the Historic Landmarks Commission if the property is located in the El Pueblo Viejo Landmark 
District or another landmark district or if the property contains a designated City Landmark.  The 
Board and Commission may take action on the location of the antenna(s) on the site, color and size so 
as to minimize any adverse visual impacts by requiring that the antenna and its supporting structure be 
designed and placed so as to be as visually unobtrusive as feasible, taking into consideration technical 
engineering and other pertinent factors.  The Planning Commission may grant a waiver from height 
limitations if it finds that no feasible alternative location or design would not require such a waiver. 
   d. Non-ionizing Electromagnetic Radiation (NIER) Emissions.  Any new transmitters 
and/or antennas, when combined with existing sources of NIER emissions on or adjacent to the site 
and when operating as designed and licensed, shall not expose the general public to ambient radiation 
emissions which exceed American National Standards Institute (ANSI) C95.1-1992 standard (if the 
Federal Communications Commission (FCC) rulemaking committee adopts a revised standard, said 
standard shall apply). 
 EE. Outdoor performance areas involving structures such as bandshells or amphitheaters in the PR 
Zone. 
 
SECTION 6.  The portions of this ordinance that amend the Santa Barbara Municipal Code to allow 
Emergency Shelters as a permitted use within the R-4, C-1, and C-2 Zones shall not be affective within 
the Coastal Zone until 30 days following certification of those amendments by the California Coastal 
Commission. 
 
 



Agenda Item No.  24 

File Code No.  440.05 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: July 15, 2014 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: City Administrator’s Office 
 
SUBJECT: Conference With Labor Negotiator 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council hold a closed session, per Government Code Section 54957.6, to consider 
instructions to City negotiator Kristine Schmidt, Administrative Services Director, 
regarding negotiations with the Treatment and Patrol Bargaining Unit. 
 
SCHEDULING:  Duration, 30 minutes; anytime 
 
REPORT:  None anticipated 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Kristine Schmidt, Administrative Services Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



Agenda Item No.  25 

File Code No.  170.01 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 

 
AGENDA DATE: July 15, 2014 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: City Administrator’s Office 
 
SUBJECT: Public Employment/Public Employee Appointment 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That Council hold a closed session, per Government Code Section 54957(b)(1), to 
discuss the appointment for the position of Interim City Administrator and, if appropriate, 
make a decision regarding that appointment.  
 
SCHEDULING: Duration, 30 minutes; anytime    
 
REPORT:   Possible 
  
PREPARED BY: Kristine Schmidt, Administrative Services Director 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Helene Schneider, Mayor 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 


	1.DOC (8 pages)
	2.DOC (1 page)
	3.DOC (2 pages)
	4.DOC (1 page)
	5.DOC (43 pages)
	6.DOC (1 page)
	7.DOC (1 page)
	8.DOC (1 page)
	9.DOC (2 pages)
	10.DOC (3 pages)
	11.DOC (1 page)
	12.DOC (1 page)
	13.DOC (1 page)
	14.PDF (135 pages)
	15.DOC (2 pages)
	16.DOC (2 pages)
	17.DOC (1 page)
	18.DOC (2 pages)
	19.DOC (2 pages)
	20.DOC (1 page)
	21.DOC (2 pages)
	22.DOC (3 pages)
	23.DOC (3 pages)
	24.DOC (2 pages)
	25.DOC (2 pages)
	26.DOC (2 pages)
	27.DOC (1 page)
	28.DOC (8 pages)
	29.PDF (37 pages)
	30.DOC (4 pages)
	31.PDF (1 page)
	32.DOC (7 pages)
	33.PDF (6 pages)
	34.PDF (1 page)
	35.PDF (1 page)
	36.DOC (21 pages)
	37.DOC (1 page)
	38.DOC (1 page)
	Blank Page



